
 

 
1 
 

  
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING – AGENDA 

July 15, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. | 100 US Highway 80 SW, Pooler, GA 31322 
 
 

I. ROLL CALL 
 

II. CALL TO ORDER 
 

III. INVOCATION 
 

IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

V. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
A. Millage Rate Public Hearing 

 
VII. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
A. City Council Workshop Minutes of July 1, 2024 

 
B. City Council Meeting Minutes of July 1, 2024 

 
C. City Council Executive Session Minutes of July 1, 2024 

 
D. Town Hall Minutes of July 2, 2024 

 
E. Special Event Permit Application for Jesus the Captain of My Boat Children’s 

Festival on July 27, 2024  
 

F. Release of Performance Bond and Acceptance of Maintenance and Sidewalk 
Bonds for Harmony Phase 7, Subject to City Attorney Approval 
 

VIII. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 
A. Public Works 
 
B. Finance 
 
C. Fire-Rescue 
 
D. Police 
 
E. Recreation & Parks 
 
F. Planning & Development  



  

2 

 
IX. ORDINANCES, PROCLAMATIONS, RESOLUTIONS 

 
A. Ordinance O2024-07.B – To Amend Chapter 46 – Fire Prevention and 

Protection; Sections 7, 8, 9 (First Reading) 
 

B. Proclamation for International Friendship Day 
 

X. OUTSTANDING BUSINESS 
 
A. Westside Commerce Center Native Development Group Request  

for Consideration 
 

XI. NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Zoning Map Amendment for 1405 Quacco Road  

(Public Hearing, Action) 
 

B. Zoning Map Amendment for Jabot PUD  
(Public Hearing, Action) 
 

C. Variance Request for 130 Towne Center Drive  
(Public Hearing, Action) withdrawn by petitioner 
 

D. Variance Request for 850 Patel Drive  
(Public Hearing, Action) withdrawn by petitioner 
 

E. Variance Request for 1565 Pooler Parkway Lowe’s Outparcel  
(Public Hearing, Action) 
 

F. Final Plat and Performance Bonds for Westbrook Areas L1, L2, L3 
 

XII. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

XIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

XIV. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 



 

 
City of Pooler • 100 SW Hwy 80 • Pooler, Georgia 31322 • (912) 748-7261 

www.pooler-ga.gov 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
Notice of Property Tax Increase 

 
 
The City of Pooler, Georgia has tentatively adopted a millage rate which will require an 
increase in property taxes by 3.99 percent. All concerned citizens are invited to the public 
hearings on this tax increase to be held at Pooler City Hall located at 100 US Highway 80 
SW, Pooler, Georgia on Monday, July 15, 2024 at 6:00 p.m., Monday, July 22 at 6:00 p.m., 
and Monday, August 5, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
This tentative increase will result in a millage rate of 3.780 mills, an increase of .145 mills. 
Without this tentative tax increase, the millage rate will be no more than 3.635 mills. The 
proposed tax increase for a home with a fair market value of $175,000 is approximately $10 
and the proposed tax increase for non-homestead property with a fair market value of 
$200,000 is approximately $16. 
 
This notice includes two corrections to the initial advertised notice: The previously stated 
4.31 percentage has been amended. The August 19, 2024 public hearing has been 
rescheduled for July 22, 2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.pooler-ga.gov/


2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Real & Personal 1,501,832,500          1,669,252,592          1,722,654,090          2,344,874,316          2,720,465,525          3,206,068,309         

Motor Vehicles 10,934,240                9,551,720                  7,662,850                  6,737,070                  7,461,720                  7,208,810                 

Mobile Homes 4,336,858                  3,702,212                  3,725,166                  4,455,704                  4,876,486                  4,377,166                 

Timber ‐ 100% 14,846                        288,255                      ‐                                   190,000                      190,000                      ‐                                  

Heavy Duty Equipment 2,762,316                  3,123,354                  3,330,751                  2,683,271                  3,463,367                  3,796,538                 

Gross Digest 1,519,880,760          1,685,918,133          1,737,372,857          2,358,940,361          2,736,457,098          3,221,450,823         

Less M& O Exemptions 74,057,869                74,127,367                89,696,383                167,127,380              243,394,349              317,572,432             

Net M & O Digest 1,445,822,891          1,611,790,766          1,647,676,474          2,191,812,981          2,493,062,749          2,903,878,391         

State Forest Land Assistance 

Grant Value

Adjusted Net M&O Digest 1,445,822,891          1,611,790,766          1,647,676,474          2,191,812,981          2,493,062,749          2,903,878,391         

Gross M&O Millage 8.583                          8.087                          9.077                          8.036                          7.909                          7.758                         

Less Rollback (LOST) 4.829                          4.436                          4.480                          3.773                          4.129                          3.978                         

Net M&O Millage 3.754                          3.651                          4.597                          4.263                          3.780                          3.780                         

Total City Taxes Levied 5,427,619                  5,884,648                  7,574,369                  9,343,699                  9,423,777                  10,976,660               

Net Taxes $ Increase 457,029                      1,689,721                  1,769,330                  80,078                        1,552,883                 

Net Taxes % Increase 8.42% 28.71% 23.36% 0.86% 16.48%

The City of Pooler does hereby announce that the 2024 millage rate will be set at a meeting to be held at City Hall on August 5, 

2024 at 6:00pm and pursuant to the requirements of O.C.G.A. Section 48‐5‐32 does hereby publish the following presentation of 

the current year's tax digest and levy, along with the history of the tax digest and levy for the past five years.

CURRENT 2024 TAX DIGEST AND 5 YEAR HISTORY OF LEVY

PUBLIC NOTICE

ProSystems Engagement/2023 Millage Rate/Current Tax Digest and Five Year History 7/10/2024 4:24 PM



COUNTY TAXING JURISDICTION

REASSESSMENT OF OTHER CHANGES

EXISTING REAL PROP TO TAXABLE DIGEST

2,200,850,385 183,212,288 231,399,060 2,615,461,733

519,615,140 70,991,436 590,606,576

 MOTOR VEHICLES 7,461,720 -252,910 7,208,810

 MOBILE HOMES 4,876,486 -499,320 4,377,166

 TIMBER -100% 190,000 -190,000 0

 HEAVY DUTY EQUIP 3,463,367 333,171 3,796,538

 GROSS DIGEST 2,736,457,098 183,212,288 301,781,437 3,221,450,823

 EXEMPTIONS 243,394,349 71,716,129 2,461,954 317,572,432

 NET DIGEST 2,493,062,749 111,496,159 299,319,483 2,903,878,391

(PYD) (RVA) (NAG) (CYD)

3.780 3.780

ABBREVIATION AMOUNT FORMULA

PYD 2,493,062,749

RVA 111,496,159

NAG 299,319,483

CYD 2,903,878,391 (PYD+RVA+NAG)

PYM 3.780

Millage Equivalent of Reassessed Value Added ME 0.145 (RVA/CYD) * PYM

RR 3.635 PYM - ME

If the 2024 Proposed Millage Rate for this Taxing Jurisdiction exceeds the Rollback Millage Rate     Rollback Millage Rate 3.635

computed above, this section will automatically calculate the amount of increase in property     2024 Millage Rate 3.780

taxes that is part of the notice required in O.C.G.A. Section 48-5-32.1(c) (2)     Percentage Increase 3.99%

DESCRIPTION 2023 DIGEST 2024 DIGEST

COMPUTATION OF MILLAGE RATE ROLLBACK AND PERCENTAGE INCREASE IN PROPERTY TAXES FOR YEAR 2024

Chatham Pooler

INFORMATION FOR THE SHADED PORTIONS OF THIS SECTION MUST BE ENTERED 

This information will be the actual values and millage rates certified to the Department of Revenue for the applicable tax years.

Other Net Changes to Taxable Digest

 REAL

 PERSONAL

                            2024 PROPOSED MILLAGE RATE >>>

THIS SECTION WILL CALCULATE AUTOMATICALLY UPON ENTRY OF INFORMATION ABOVE

DESCRIPTION

2023 Net Digest 

Net Value Added-Reassessment of Existing Real Property

             2023 MILLAGE RATE >>>

2024 Net Digest

2023 Millage Rate

Rollback Millage Rate for 2024

COMPUTATION OF PERCENTAGE INCREASE IN PROPERTY TAXES

H:\Millage rate\2024\2024.05.23 PT32



Understanding Millage Rate and Assessed Value

When it comes to property taxes, two key concepts are assessed value and millage rate. Let’s 
explore how they work together to determine how much you owe in taxes.

What is assessed value? Assessed value is the dollar amount that the local government gives to 
your property for tax purposes. It’s not necessarily the same as the market value (how much 
your property could sell for), but it’s used to figure out how much you owe in property taxes. 

How is my assessed value determined? Local tax assessors figure out the assessed value of 
your property using things like the size of your property, the condition of your home, and what 
similar properties are selling for in your area. Assessed value can change based on updates to 
property values, changes in local laws, or changes in the economy. For Pooler, the assessed 
value is currently 40% percentage of the market value. 

What is millage rate? Millage rate is the amount of tax you pay per $1,000 of your property’s 
assessed value. It is expressed in mills, where one mill equals $1 per $1,000. For example, if the 
millage rate is 5 mills, you would only pay $5 for every $1,000 of assessed property value. 
Millage rates can change based on the budget needs of the local government and the total 
assessed value of properties. 

How is the millage rate calculated? To find out the millage rate, the local government divides 
the total amount of money they need by the total assessed value of all properties, then 
multiplies the result by 1,000.

Example:

1. Assessed Value of Your Home: $200,000
2. Millage Rate: 5 mills (which is $5 per $1,000)
3. Tax Calculation:

o Convert $200,000 into $1,000 units:  
200,000

1,000 = 200 units
o Multiply by the millage rate: 5 mills × 200 = 1,000 dollars

So, if the assessed value of your property is $200,000 and the millage rate is 5 mills, you would 
owe $1,000 in property taxes. 

By understanding these concepts, you can see how your property taxes are determined.



 

 
1 
 

 
  

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP – MINUTES 
July 1, 2024 at 5:00 p.m. | 100 US Highway 80 SW, Pooler, GA 31322 

 
 

I. ROLL CALL 
 
Present: Karen Williams, Mayor  
    Wesley Bashlor, Councilmember 
    Michael Carpenter, Councilmember 
    Aaron Higgins, Mayor Pro Tem 
    Tom Hutcherson, Councilmember  
    Matthew Saxon, City Manager 
    Craig Call, City Attorney     
    Caroline Hankins, Assistant City Manager 
    Kiley Fusco, Clerk of Council    
 
Absent:  Shannon Valim, Councilmember    
    John Wilcher, Councilmember 
 

II. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Karen Williams called the workshop to order at 5:01 p.m. 
 

III. TOPICS OF DISCUSSION 
 
A. Millage Rate 

 
Mayor, Council, and City Staff discussed the 2025 millage rate and proposed 
public hearings. No action was taken. 
 

B. Council Meeting Agenda Review  
 
Mayor Karen William reviewed the July 1, 2024 City Council Meeting agenda 
items. No action was taken. 
 

C. Open Dialogue  
 
There were no items discussed. No action was taken. 
 

IV. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Karen Williams adjourned the workshop at 5:36 p.m.  
 
The foregoing minutes are true and correct and are approved on this  
 
 
________ day of ________________, ________. 



  

2 

 
 

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Karen L. Williams, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 

__________________________________ 
Kiley Fusco, Clerk of Council 

 
 
 



 

 
1 
 

  
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING – MINUTES 

July 1, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. | 100 US Highway 80 SW, Pooler, GA 31322 
 

I. ROLL CALL 
 
Present: Karen Williams, Mayor  
    Wesley Bashlor, Councilmember 
    Michael Carpenter, Councilmember  
    Aaron Higgins, Mayor Pro Tem 
    Tom Hutcherson, Councilmember 
    Shannon Valim, Councilmember 
     Craig Call, City Attorney   
     Matthew Saxon, City Manager     
    Chris Lightle, Finance Officer    
    Kiley Fusco, Clerk of Council  
 
Absent:  John Wilcher, Councilmember 
 

II. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Karen Williams called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 

III. INVOCATION 
 
Reverend Nelle Bordeaux of Wesley Monumental United Methodist Church gave 
the invocation. 
 

IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Reverend Nelle Bordeaux led the pledge.  
 

V. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Greater Pooler Area Chamber of Commerce President and CEO Courtney Rawlins 
announced the release of the Pooler “Discover the Charm” hotel book published 
in conjunction with the Tourism Leadership Council. Mayor Karen Williams, Mayor 
Pro Tem Aaron Higgins, and Councilmembers Tom Hutcherson, Michael 
Carpenter, and Wesley Bashlor reported on the GMA Annual Convention held in 
Savannah from June 21-25, 2024. 
 

VI. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
A. City Council Meeting Minutes of June 17, 2024 

 
B. City Council Executive Session Minutes of June 17, 2024 

 



  

2 

C. Alcoholic Beverage License Application for Moonlight BP Station, LLC 
at 2020 Pooler Parkway, Unit A (Convenience/Gas/Drug Store) 
 

D. Alcoholic Beverage License Application for Traders Queen, Inc. at 40 
Trader’s Way (Restaurant) 
 

E. Alcoholic Beverage License Application for Krazy Taco Place, LLC DBA 
Krazy Taco at 1503 Dean Forest Road (Restaurant) 
 

F. Temporary/Special Event Permit Application (Dispensing Alcohol) for 
the Taste of Pooler on September 26, 2024 (Seeking Waiver) 
 

G. Public Fireworks/Pyrotechnics Exhibition/Display Permit Application 
for Savannah Quarters Fourth of July on July 3, 2024  
 
Councilmember Tom Hutcherson moved to approve the Consent Agenda. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (5-0-0) 
MOVER: Hutcherson 
SECONDER: Valim 
AYES: Bashlor, Carpenter, Higgins, Hutcherson, Valim  
NAYS: 
 

VII. ORDINANCES, PROCLAMATIONS, RESOLUTIONS 
 
A. Resolution R2024-07.A - Amendment to the 2024 Schedule of Fees 

(Fireworks Displays, Planning & Development) 
 
City Manager Matthew Saxon presented the resolution for consideration. 
Mayor Pro Tem Aaron Higgins moved to approve Resolution R2024-07.A - 
Amendment to the 2024 Schedule of Fees. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (5-0-0) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Hutcherson 
AYES: Bashlor, Carpenter, Higgins, Hutcherson, Valim 
NAYS: 
 
 

VIII. OUTSTANDING BUSINESS 
 
A. Westside Commerce Center Native Development Group Request  

for Consideration 
 
City Manager Matthew Saxon presented the request for consideration. Mayor 
Pro Tem Aaron Higgins moved to postpone the Westside Commerce Center 
Native Development Group Request for Consideration until the July 15, 2024 
City Council Meeting. 
 
Motion to Postpone; PASSED (5-0-0) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Valim 
AYES: Bashlor, Carpenter, Higgins, Hutcherson, Valim 
NAYS: 
 



  

3 

B. Site Plan for AJ Garcia Container Stacking Yard at 6 AJ Garcia Road 
 
City Manager Matthew Saxon presented the site plan for consideration. 
Attorney Josh Yellin and Marc Liverman were present on behalf of the 
petitioner to answer questions. Councilmember Wesley Bashlor, upon review 
of the criteria, moved to approve the Site Plan for the AJ Garcia Container 
Stacking Yard at 6 AJ Garcia Road. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (4-1-0) 
MOVER: Bashlor 
SECONDER: Higgins 
AYES: Bashlor, Higgins, Hutcherson, Valim  
NAYS: Carpenter 
 

IX. NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Memorial Park Parking Lot Bids (CCI Job #23-071) 

 
City Manager Matthew Saxon presented the bids for consideration. 
Councilmember Tom Hutcherson moved to award the Memorial Park Parking 
Lot (CCI Job #23-071) to B&D Clearing, Inc. in the amount of $155,296.76. 
 
Motion to Award; PASSED (5-0-0) 
MOVER: Hutcherson 
SECONDER: Bashlor 
AYES: Bashlor, Carpenter, Higgins, Hutcherson, Valim 
NAYS:  
 

B. 2024 Surplus Property List 
 
City Manager Matthew Saxon presented the list for consideration. Travis 
Burke of Coleman Company was present to answer questions. Councilmember 
Tom Hutcherson moved to approve the 2024 Surplus Property List.  
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (5-0-0) 
MOVER: Hutcherson 
SECONDER: Valim 
AYES: Bashlor, Carpenter, Higgins, Hutcherson, Valim 
NAYS: 
 

C. Disciplinary Hearing for Owner of Naan Appetite at 1 North Godley 
Station Boulevard, Unit C-105 
 
City Manager Matthew Saxon presented the item for consideration and 
Finance Officer Chris Lightle provided background information. Owner Sharath 
Gudia was present. Councilmember Aaron Higgins moved to enforce a six-
month probationary period for the license holder of Naan Appetite at 1 North 
Godley Station Boulevard, Unit C-105. During this period, the licensee is 
required to make monthly Alcohol Excise Tax payments and submit monthly 
reports. Failure to comply with these requirements will result in a second 
disciplinary hearing. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (5-0-0) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Hutcherson 



  

4 

AYES: Bashlor, Carpenter, Higgins, Hutcherson, Valim 
NAYS: 
 

D. Disciplinary Hearing for Owner of Miya Buffet at 120 Towne Center 
Drive 
 
City Manager Matthew Saxon presented the item for consideration and 
Finance Officer Chris Lightle provided background information. The owner was 
not present. Councilmember Michael Carpenter moved to enforce a six-month 
probationary period for the license holder of Miya Buffet at 120 Towne Center 
Drive. During this period, the licensee is required to make monthly Alcohol 
Excise Tax payments and submit monthly reports. Failure to comply with 
these requirements will result in a second disciplinary hearing. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (5-0-0) 
MOVER: Carpenter 
SECONDER: Valim 
AYES: Bashlor, Carpenter, Higgins, Hutcherson, Valim 
NAYS: 
 

X. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Citizen Richard Danis commented.  
 

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
With no further public business to conduct, Mayor Pro Tem Aaron Higgins moved 
to enter Executive Session. Mayor and Council entered at 6:55 p.m.  
 
Motion to Enter; PASSED (5-0-0) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Hutcherson 
AYES: Bashlor, Carpenter, Higgins, Hutcherson, Valim 
NAYS: 
 
Mayor Karen Williams called the meeting back to order at 10:05 p.m. 
 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Aaron Higgins moved to adjourn the meeting. 
 
Motion to Adjourn; PASSED (5-0-0) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Valim 
AYES: Bashlor, Carpenter, Higgins, Hutcherson, Valim 
NAYS: 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:05 p.m. 
 
The foregoing minutes are true and correct and are approved on this  
 
________ day of ________________, ________. 
 
 

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 



  

5 

 
 

__________________________________ 
Karen L. Williams, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 

__________________________________ 
Kiley Fusco, Clerk of Council 

 
 







 

 
1 
 

 
  

TOWN HALL MEETING – MINUTES 
July 2, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. | 100 US Highway 80 SW, Pooler, GA 31322 

 
 

I. ROLL CALL 
 
Present: Karen Williams, Mayor  
    Wesley Bashlor, Councilmember 
    Michael Carpenter, Councilmember  
    Aaron Higgins, Mayor Pro Tem 
    Tom Hutcherson, Councilmember  
    Nicole Johnson, Planning & Development Director 
    Marcy Benson, City Planner 
    Captain John Schmitt, Police Department 
    Matthew Saxon, City Manager 
    Kiley Fusco, Clerk of Council   
 
Absent:  Shannon Valim, Councilmember    
    John Wilcher, Councilmember  
    Craig Call, City Attorney 
     

II. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Karen Williams called the town hall to order at 6:02 p.m. 
 

III. WELCOME/STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 
 
Mayor Karen Williams reminded those present of the guidelines for public 
comment. 
 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT/Q&A 
 
14 citizens came forward to share opinions, concerns, and ask questions on the 
topics of the most recent draft of Ordinance O2024-03.A – Short-Term Rental 
Requirements, Resolution R2024-03.A - Moratorium on Short-Term Rentals, and 
short-term rentals in general.  
 

V. ADJOURNMENT 
 
No action was taken by Council. Mayor Karen Williams adjourned the meeting at 
7:46 p.m. 
 
The foregoing minutes are true and correct and are approved on this  
 
________ day of ________________, ________. 
 
 



  

2 

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Karen L. Williams, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 

__________________________________ 
Kiley Fusco, Clerk of Council 

 
 
 























































 

 
City of Pooler • 100 SW Hwy 80 • Pooler, Georgia 31322 • (912) 748-7261 

www.pooler-ga.gov 

 

 
 

Council Report for the month of June 

 

Date: 07/9/2024 

 

To: Council and Mayor  

 

From: John Winn  

 

Subject:     Council Report  

 

Cc:  Kiley Fusco  

 

Council and Mayor, 

It gives me great pleasure to present to you, the work that our Wastewater Treatment 

Plant, Sewer, and Water Departments have accomplished since the last council meeting: 

 

Water: 

 

• 65 Grease trap inspections completed. 

• 67 C.O inspections conducted. 

• Replaced 21 residential and/or commercial laterals. 

• Completed multiple misc. service orders throughout the city. 

• Repaired and/or replaced 33 water meters/mxu’s. 

• Reviewed 3 Excavation/Encroachment Permits.   

• Witnessed the testing and certification of 72 backflow preventers. 

• Assisted Benchmark with several locates.  

• Repaired water main and lateral at 200 Blue Moon. 

• Assisted contractor abandoned a 6” water main on Moore Ave and Rothwell 

St. 

• Repaired the water mains on Parson Street, Benton Drive, and Holly Ave. 

 

  Sewer & WWTP: 

EOM report attached. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

John Winn 

http://www.pooler-ga.gov/


 

 
City of Pooler • 100 SW Hwy 80 • Pooler, Georgia 31322 • (912) 748-7261 

www.pooler-ga.gov 

 

 
 

Council Report for the month of June 
 

 

Date: 7/9/2024 

 

To: Council and Mayor  

 

From:         John Winn  

 

Subject:     Council Report  

 

Cc:             Kiley Fusco   

 

Street: 

 

• Continued routine maintenance throughout the city repairing potholes, sidewalks, 

and shoulder work.  

• Sprayed islands and sidewalks along Hwy 80, Memorial Blvd and Park Ave 

roundabout. 

• Removed graffiti on 8 power distribution boxes (Traders Way, N. Godley Station 

Blvd. and Towne Center Blvd).  

 

Street Sweeping:  

• 121 Miles  

 

Signs: 

• Replaced 13 signs throughout the city. 

• Repaired 16 signs throughout the city. 

 

Storm Water:  

 

• Completed routine residential workorders. 

• Completed 33,987 feet of routine roadside ditch and outfall maintenance.  

• Cleaned out and dug roadside ditches in various locations. 

• Removed 473Ft of bamboo along S. Rogers Street. 

• Replaced broken storm inlet lids at various locations. 

• Drainage improvements at 207-209 W. Tietgen Street.  

http://www.pooler-ga.gov/


  

City of Pooler • 100 SW Hwy 80 • Pooler, Georgia 31322 • (912) 748-7261 
www.pooler-ga.gov 

 

 

 

Canal Maintenance:  

 

• Routine maintenance of canals throughout the city. 

• Continue mowing access roads on canals. 

• Started repairing the access road on Harden Canal off Pine Barren Rd.  

 

Public Works Admin: 

 

• Reviewed 6 sets of site plans.  

• Approved 3 pre-construction meetings. 

 

 

 

 

http://www.pooler-ga.gov/


JUNE 
2024 

Monthly Report 

PO BOX 1648 
Richmond Hill, GA 31324 
912.445.0050 
www.eomworx.com 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JUNE 2024 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
         
 
 
 
Content                 Section 
 
Executive Summary…………………………………………………………………………………… 1.0 
 
Wastewater Treatment ……………………………………………………………….………... 2.0  
 
Collections & Distribution….…………………….…………………………………….……….. 3.0 
 
Engineering …..…………….……………………………………………………………….………….....  4.0 
 
Administration………………………..……………………………………………………………………. 5.0 
 
Appendix …………………………………………………………………………………………………………6.0 
 
 
   



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JUNE 2024 

SECTION 1.0  
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
EOM is pleased to provide this revised monthly report to the City of Pooler for 
review.  Departmental reports and requested supplemental data can be 
found enclosed.  
 
MONTH HIGHLIGHT 

 
▪ SEWER – Responded to (1) Sewer Blockage 
▪ SEWER – Completed (3) Sewer Repairs 
▪ SEWER – Responded to (3) Grinder Pump Issues  
▪ SEWER – Completed (11) Sewer Manhole Inspections 

 
WASTEWATER LIFT STATIONS 
 
Responded to (1) After Hours Call  

▪ PO-LS-05.02 Benton BLVD: Removed Pump Debris 
▪ PO-LS-12.01 Arbors: Replaced Pump 
▪ PO-LS-12.02 Arbors: Replaced CU362 Controller 
▪ PO-LS-12.05 Arbors: Replaced Phase Monitor 
▪ PO-LS-22.02 East Spine Road 1: Replaced Thermals 
▪ PO-LS-40.05 Daniels Tract: Replaced CU362 Controller  

 
 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 
 

▪ PO-WW-BP-64 Sludge Pump Motor_1: Tightened Pump 
Packing 

▪ PO-WW-GR-22 FINE SCREN_1: Replaced VFD 
▪ PO-WW-MB-62 Submerged Membrane Unit_MBR 4: 

Replaced Gasket 
▪ PO-WW-UT-09 GENERATOR: Replaced Battery Charger 
▪ PO-WW-EF-12 Check Valve_Plant Water Pump 1: Replaced 

Water Line 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JUNE 2024 

  
 
 
  

WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT 

Section 2.0 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JUNE 2024 

 
SECTION 2.0 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT 
 
Table 1 – WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT PERMIT COMPARISON 
 

  



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JUNE 2024 

  

COLLECTIONS & 
DISTRIBUTION 

Section 3.0 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JUNE 2024 

SECTION 3.0 
COLLECTIONS & DISTRIBUTION 
 
 
Table 1 – SEWER MAINTENANCE WORK ORDER REPORT 
 
 

  



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JUNE 2024 

  

ENGINEERING 

Section 4.0 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JUNE 2024 

 
SECTION 4.0 
ENGINEERING 
 
Site Plan Review: 
 
I. Approved Projects 

▪ N/A 
 

II. Projects Under Review 
▪ Pooler Vet Clinic (Submittal #1) 
▪ 313 Collins Site Improvements (Submittal #3) 
▪ Advanced Academics – fire Line (Submittal #2) 
▪ Cross Creek Subdivision Phase 3A (Submittal #1) 
▪ Savannah Quarters Country Club Tennis & Pickleball (Submittal #3) 
▪ Palmetto Cay Multifamily (Submittal #1) 
 

III. Projects Waiting On Responses 
▪ Tract W Townhomes – 1st Review 6/27/2024 
▪ Forest Lakes Access Road – 1st review 4/27/2024 
▪ Forest Lakes Phase 13 – 1st review 6/25/2024 
▪ 317 W Collins St Office Building – 1st review 6/21/2024 
▪ TIA Pooler Mixed Use (Merlot Ln & Pine Barren) – 1st review 6/21/2024 
▪ Pet Paradise – 5th review 6/21/2024 
▪ Stoneweg Apartments – 2nd review 6/20/2024 
▪ Harmony Force Main Upgrades – 1st review 6/19/2024 
▪ Enmarket Improvements – 3rd review 6/18/2024 
▪ Lot A Blakely Commons – 3rd review 6/3/2024 
▪ Memorial Blvd Commercial Development – 2nd review 5/10/2024 
▪ Pooler Plaza Condos Water & Sewer Connection – 2nd review 5/3/2024 
▪ Godley Commons Tract 2 & 3 – 1st review 4/29/2024 
▪ Circle K Expansion – 3rd review 4/17/2024 
▪ Rehobeth Church Sanctuary Expansion – 1st review 4/16/2024 
▪ Wood Lake Townhomes – 1st review 4/2/2024 
▪ Merlot Lane Retail – 1st review 3/19/2024 
▪ DST Trailer Yard – 2nd review 1/23/2024 
▪ Oglethorpe Speedway Industrial Park – 1st review 11/13/2023 
▪ Pipemaker’s Independent Senior Living Center – 2nd review 9/11/2023 
▪ Little Neck Trailer Yard – 3rd review 9/7/2023 
▪ Old Louisville Storage Yard – 1st review 7/13/2023 
 
 
 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JUNE 2024 

Bond Review: 
 
I. Approved Bond Requests 

▪ Drury Inn Mill & Resurface Asphalt (Performance Bond) 
▪ Westbrook Area L1 (Performance Bond) 
▪ Westbrook Area 2 (Performance Bond) 
▪ Westbrook Area L3 (Performance Bond) 
▪ Cross Creek - Phase 2 (Warranty Bond) 
▪ HIG Property Management (Warranty Bond) 

 
II. Bond Requests Under Review 

▪ Harmony Subdivision Phase 8B (revised) – Performance Bond 
 

III. Bond Requests Reviewed 
▪ N/A 

 
 
Additional Engineering Services: 

 
▪ City Standard Specifications:  

A number of updated construction details for Standard 
Specifications document were completed & submitted to 
City for review in June 2024.  
 

▪ Lift Station #21 & 22:  
EOM submitted proposal for construction of Lift Stations to 
City in August 2023. It is understood that the City Attorney 
currently working on a contract for proposed work.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JUNE 2024 

  

ADMINISTRATION 

Section 5.0 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JUNE 2024 

SECTION 5.0 
ADMINISTRATION 
 
 
BUDGET 
 

 
  



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JUNE 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 

Section 6.0 



PERMITTEE NAME/ADDRESS (Include Facility Name/Location if Different)

NAME:

ADDRESS:

FACILITY:

LOCATION:

Pooler City of

100 Southwest Hwy 80

Pooler, GA 31322

Pooler, City of (Bloomingdale Regional WPCP)

Winskie Road

Pooler GA 31322

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES)

DISCHARGE MONITORING REPORT (DMR)

FROM TO

PERMIT NUMBER DISCHARGE NUMBER

MONITORING PERIOD

YEAR YEARMO MODAY DAY

GA0047066 002-B3

24 05 01 24 05 31

DMR MAILING ZIP CODE:

Form Approved

OMB No. 2040-0004

Page

MAJOR

WPCP Discharge

External Outfall

No Discharge

EPA Form 3320-1 (Rev.01/06) Previous editions may be used.

COMMENTS AND EXPLANATION OF ANY VIOLATIONS (Reference all attachments here)

NAME/TITLE PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

TYPED OR PRINTED
SIGNATURE OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER OR

AUTHORIZED AGENT AREA Code NUMBER YEAR MO DAY

TELEPHONE DATEI certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or
supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and
evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the
system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant
penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations.

912 445-1894 24 06 17

1

  QUANTITY OR LOADING QUALITY OR CONCENTRATION
NO.
EX

FREQUENCY
OF ANALYSIS

SAMPLE
TYPEPARAMETER

VALUE VALUE UNITS VALUE VALUE VALUE UNITS

OXYGEN, DISSOLVED
(DO)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

6.9 **** ****
 mg/L

0 01/01 GR GRAB

00300  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

6.0
MINIMUM

**** ****
 mg/L

01/01 GR GRAB

BOD, 5-DAY
(20 DEG. C)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

49.9 56.8
 lb/d

**** 1.8 1.9
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00310  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

82.6
MO AVG

102.6
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** 3.0
MO AVG

4.5
WKLY AVG  mg/L

03/DW
CP

COMPOS

BOD, 5-DAY
(20 DEG. C)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

6459 8394
 lb/d

**** 235 305
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00310  1  0  0
RAW SEWAGE INFLUENT

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

Req Mon
MO AVG

Req Mon
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

Req Mon
WKLY AVG  mg/L

03/DW
CP

COMPOS

PH SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

6.6 **** 7.0
 SU

0 01/01 GR GRAB

00400  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

6.0
MINIMUM

**** 8.5
MAXIMUM  SU

01/01 GR GRAB

SOLIDS, TOTAL
SUSPENDED

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

36.0 24.1
 lb/d

**** 1.3 0.9
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00530  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

138.0
MO AVG

172.0
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** 5.0
MO AVG

7.5
WKLY AVG  mg/L

03/DW
CP

COMPOS

SOLIDS, TOTAL
SUSPENDED

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

8025 17939
 lb/d

**** 291 651
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00530  1  0  0
RAW SEWAGE INFLUENT

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

Req Mon
MO AVG

Req Mon
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

Req Mon
WKLY AVG  mg/L

03/DW
CP

COMPOS

NITROGEN, ORGANIC
TOTAL (AS N)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 1.260 ****
 mg/L

0 01/30
CP

COMPOS

00605  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 mg/L

01/30
CP

COMPOS

Charles Heino, WW1-015098



PERMITTEE NAME/ADDRESS (Include Facility Name/Location if Different)

NAME:

ADDRESS:

FACILITY:

LOCATION:

Pooler City of

100 Southwest Hwy 80

Pooler, GA 31322

Pooler, City of (Bloomingdale Regional WPCP)

Winskie Road

Pooler GA 31322

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES)

DISCHARGE MONITORING REPORT (DMR)

FROM TO

PERMIT NUMBER DISCHARGE NUMBER

MONITORING PERIOD

YEAR YEARMO MODAY DAY

GA0047066 002-B3

24 05 01 24 05 31

DMR MAILING ZIP CODE:

Form Approved

OMB No. 2040-0004

Page

MAJOR

WPCP Discharge

External Outfall

No Discharge

EPA Form 3320-1 (Rev.01/06) Previous editions may be used.

COMMENTS AND EXPLANATION OF ANY VIOLATIONS (Reference all attachments here)

NAME/TITLE PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

TYPED OR PRINTED
SIGNATURE OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER OR

AUTHORIZED AGENT AREA Code NUMBER YEAR MO DAY

TELEPHONE DATEI certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or
supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and
evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the
system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant
penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations.

912 445-1894 24 06 17

2

  QUANTITY OR LOADING QUALITY OR CONCENTRATION
NO.
EX

FREQUENCY
OF ANALYSIS

SAMPLE
TYPEPARAMETER

VALUE VALUE UNITS VALUE VALUE VALUE UNITS

NITROGEN, AMMONIA
TOTAL (AS N)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

7.9 8.6
 lb/d

**** 0.3 0.3
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00610  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

11.0
MO AVG

13.8
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** 0.4
MO AVG

0.6
WKLY AVG  mg/L

03/DW
CP

COMPOS

NITROGEN, KJELDAHL
TOTAL (AS N)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 1.550 ****
 mg/L

0 01/30
CP

COMPOS

00625  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 mg/L

01/30
CP

COMPOS

NITRITE PLUS NITRATE
TOTAL 1 DET. (AS N)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 8.7 ****
 mg/L

0 01/30
CP

COMPOS

00630  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 mg/L

01/30
CP

COMPOS

PHOSPHORUS, TOTAL
(AS P)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

17.7 20.2
****

**** 1.4 1.5
 mg/L

2 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00665  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

27.5
MO AVG

34.4
WKLY AVG ****

**** 1.0
MO AVG

1.5
WKLY AVG  mg/L

03/DW
CP

COMPOS

PHOSPHATE, ORTHO (AS
P)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 1.130 ****
 mg/L

0 01/30
CP

COMPOS

04175  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 mg/L

01/30
CP

COMPOS

FLOW, IN CONDUIT OR
THRU TREATMENT PLANT

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

3.3 3.59
 MGD

**** **** ****
 ****

0 99/99 CN CONTIN

50050  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

3.3
MO AVG

4.2
WKLY AVG  MGD

**** **** ****
****

99/99 CN CONTIN

COLIFORM, FECAL
GENERAL

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 0.0 0.9
 #/100mL

0 02/DA GR GRAB

74055  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 23
MO GEO

23
WKLY GEO  #/100mL

02/DA GR GRAB

Charles Heino, WW1-015098



PERMITTEE NAME/ADDRESS (Include Facility Name/Location if Different)

NAME:

ADDRESS:

FACILITY:

LOCATION:

Pooler City of

100 Southwest Hwy 80

Pooler, GA 31322

Pooler, City of (Bloomingdale Regional WPCP)

Winskie Road

Pooler GA 31322

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES)

DISCHARGE MONITORING REPORT (DMR)

FROM TO

PERMIT NUMBER DISCHARGE NUMBER

MONITORING PERIOD

YEAR YEARMO MODAY DAY

GA0047066 002-B3

24 05 01 24 05 31

DMR MAILING ZIP CODE:

Form Approved

OMB No. 2040-0004

Page

MAJOR

WPCP Discharge

External Outfall

No Discharge

EPA Form 3320-1 (Rev.01/06) Previous editions may be used.

COMMENTS AND EXPLANATION OF ANY VIOLATIONS (Reference all attachments here)

NAME/TITLE PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

TYPED OR PRINTED
SIGNATURE OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER OR

AUTHORIZED AGENT AREA Code NUMBER YEAR MO DAY

TELEPHONE DATEI certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or
supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and
evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the
system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant
penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations.

912 445-1894 24 06 17

3

  QUANTITY OR LOADING QUALITY OR CONCENTRATION
NO.
EX

FREQUENCY
OF ANALYSIS

SAMPLE
TYPEPARAMETER

VALUE VALUE UNITS VALUE VALUE VALUE UNITS

CYANIDE, TOTAL
(AS CN)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** **** ****
 ug/L

0 01/30 GR GRAB

00720  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** ****
MO AVG

****
 ug/L

01/30 GR GRAB

MERCURY, TOTAL
(AS HG)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** **** ****
 ng/L

0 01/30 GR GRAB

71900  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** ****
MO AVG

****
 ng/L

01/30 GR GRAB

SOLIDS, SUSPENDED
PERCENT REMOVAL

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
 dry ton

99.4 **** ****
 %

0 01/30 CA CALCTD

81011  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 dry ton

>85
MINIMUM

**** ****
 %

01/30 CA CALCTD

BOD, 5-DAY PERCENT
REMOVAL

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

99.2 **** ****
 %

0 01/30 CA CALCTD

81010  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

>85
MINIMUM

**** ****
 %

01/30 CA CALCTD

SOLIDS, SLUDGE, TOT,
DRY WEIGHT

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

38 ****
 dry ton

**** **** ****
****

0 01/30 CA CALCTD

78477  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 dry ton

**** **** ****
****

01/30 CA CALCTD

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

Charles Heino, WW1-015098



City of Pooler
Permit Compliance Data

Daily Data
Daily

5/1/2024 - 5/31/2024

Pooler
Pooler RainFall
Precip In/Day
Inches/Day

Pooler
Influent

Flow Mgd
MGD

Pooler
EQ-Flow

MGD

Pooler
Effluent

Flow Mgd
MGD

Pooler
ReUse

Flow Mgd
MGD

Pooler
ReUse

Turbidity NTU
NTU

Pooler
Influent
Bod 5
MG/L

Pooler
Influent

Solids TSS
MG/L

Pooler
Effluent
Bod 5
MG/L

Pooler
Effluent

Solids TSS
MG/L

5/1/2024 - Wednesday 0 3.24 1.808 3.24 0 0.07 220 256 1.56 0.64

5/2/2024 - Thursday 0 3.35 1.996 3.158 0 0.07 221.45 203 1.3 0.75

5/3/2024 - Friday 0 3.39 2.25 3.04 0 0.07

5/4/2024 - Saturday 0 3.43 2.045 3.135 0 0.07

5/5/2024 - Sunday 0.08 3.57 2.275 3.235 0 0.07

5/6/2024 - Monday 0.3 3.64 3.168 3.337 0 0.07

5/7/2024 - Tuesday 0.23 3.38 2.51 3.364 0 0.07 213.98 190 1.14 0.83

5/8/2024 - Wednesday 0 3.39 2.356 2.758 0 0.07 202.5 187 1.68 0.83

5/9/2024 - Thursday 0 3.56 2.272 3.119 0 0.07 207.86 197 1.9 0.95

5/10/2024 - Friday 0.8 3.42 2.277 3.156 0 0.06

5/11/2024 - Saturday 0.4 3.51 2.234 3.261 0 0.06

5/12/2024 - Sunday 0 3.306 2.635 3.196 0 0.07

5/13/2024 - Monday 0 3.38 2.598 3.245 0 0.08

5/14/2024 - Tuesday 0.9 3.28 1.94 3.119 0 0.07 446.2 1156 1.9 0.9

5/15/2024 - Wednesday 0 3.25 1.808 3.096 0 0.09 263.15 370 1.9 0.33

5/16/2024 - Thursday 0 3.424 2.042 3.017 0 0.08 204.6 426 1.9 0.95

5/17/2024 - Friday 0 3.25 1.829 3.192 0 0.07

5/18/2024 - Saturday 0.01 3.34 1.997 2.963 0 0.09

5/19/2024 - Sunday 0.95 3.86 2.282 3.86 0 0.09

5/20/2024 - Monday 2.56 3.9 2.367 3.463 0 0.06

5/21/2024 - Tuesday 0 1.98 2.165 3.814 0 0.1 195.38 163 1.9 1.02

5/22/2024 - Wednesday 0 3.543 2.02 3.54 0 0.11 201.3 182 1.9 0.55

5/23/2024 - Thursday 0 3.483 1.534 3.401 0 0.08 201.1 167 1.9 0.83

5/24/2024 - Friday 0 3.467 1.46 3.616 0 0.1

5/25/2024 - Saturday 0.69 3.649 1.458 3.436 0 0.13

5/26/2024 - Sunday 0.09 3.773 1.427 3.175 0 0.14

5/27/2024 - Monday 0 3.599 1.441 3.6 0 0.16

5/28/2024 - Tuesday 0.02 3.68 1.466 3.409 0 0.12 239.9 210 2.99 7.9

5/29/2024 - Wednesday 0 3.176 1.186 3.18 0 0.11 222.25 168 1.9 0.93

5/30/2024 - Thursday 0 3.299 1.176 3.172 0 0.09 251.68 205 1.9 0.83

5/31/2024 - Friday 0 3.261 1.11 3.231 0 0.08

Sum 7.03 105.78 61.132 101.528 0 2.67 3,291 4,080.00 25.77 18.2

Avg 0.23 3.41 1.972 3.275 0 0.09 235 291.4 1.84 1.3

Max 2.56 3.9 3.168 3.86 0 0.16 446 1,156.00 2.99 7.9

Min 0 1.98 1.11 2.758 0 0.06 195 163 1.14 0.3

GMean



City of Pooler
Permit Compliance Data

Pooler
Effluent

Nh3 N Ammonia
MG/L

Pooler
Effluent

Phosphorus
MG/L

Pooler
Effluent

Fecal Coliform
#/100ML

Pooler
Effluent

Nitrate + Nitrite
MG/L

Pooler
Effluent

TKN
MG/L

Pooler
Effluent

Org Nitrogen
MG/L

Pooler
Effluent

Ortho Phosphorus
MG/L

Pooler
Effluent
Cyanide

UG/L

Pooler
Effluent
Mercury
1631E
NG/L

Pooler
Effluent

Diss Oxygen
MG/L

Pooler
Effluent

pH
SU

0.303 1.19 8.41 6.9

0.311 1.21 8.55 6.83

7.98 6.95

7.82 6.88

7.77 6.97

1.5 7.81 6.92

0.286 1.14 0 8.73 1.55 1.26 1.13 7.48 6.85

0.293 1.31 7.44 6.86

0.259 1.12 7.04 6.73

7.7 6.85

7.35 6.81

7.57 6.81

7.41 6.93

0.284 1.18 0 7.93 6.98

0.26 1.41 0 8.25 6.88

0.288 1.51 7.73 6.76

8.16 6.55

7.7 6.73

7.81 6.78

7.84 6.82

0.305 0.95 0 8.3 6.82

0.282 1.64 50 6.87 6.86

0.275 1.93 7.9 6.75

8.35 6.6

7.71 6.9

7.67 6.88

7.44 6.83

0.344 1.69 3 7.53 6.78

0.271 1.86 0 7.65 6.84

0.338 2.05 8.76 6.92

7.62 6.8

4.1 20.19 54.5 8.73 1.55 1.26 1.13 241.55 211.77

0.29 1.44 0 8.73 1.55 1.26 1.13 7.79 6.83

0.34 2.05 50 8.73 1.55 1.26 1.13 8.76 6.98

0.26 0.95 0 8.73 1.55 1.26 1.13 6.87 6.55

0.0



City of Pooler
Permit Compliance Data

Pooler
Solids Removed

Dry TON

Pooler
Upstream

Diss Oxygen
MG/L

May-Oct

Pooler
Upstream

pH
SU

May-Oct

Pooler
Upstream

Water Temp C
DEG C

May-Oct

Pooler
Upstream

Cnductvy 25C
UMHOS/CM

May-Oct

Pooler
Downstream
Diss Oxygen

MG/L
May-Oct

Pooler
Downstream

pH
SU

May-Oct

Pooler
Downstream

Water Temp C
DEG C

May-Oct

Pooler
Downstream

Cnductvy 25C
UMHOS/CM

May-Oct

1.5

2

3

2

2

2

2

2

3

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

38

2

3

2



 

 

INTERIM 

COMPARATIVE 

OPERATING 

STATEMENTS 

 
 

City of Pooler, Georgia 
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2024 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: 

Finance Department 



 

 



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Interim Comparative Operating Statements (Unaudited) 

Table of Contents 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2024 

 

PAGE

COMPARATIVE OPERATING STATEMENTS

Fund 100 ‐ General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.................................... 1

Fund 201 ‐ Tree Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.......................................... 2

Fund 210 ‐ Forfeiture Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances................................. 3

Fund 230 ‐ ARP Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances..... 4

Fund 275 ‐ Accommodation Excise Tax Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances... 5

Fund 320 ‐ Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances............................................................................................................................................... 6

Fund 350 ‐ Local Resources Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances...................... 7

Fund 505 ‐ Water and Sewer Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position............................... 8



 

 

 



 

     

COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

(UNAUDITED)



 

     



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Fund 100 ‐ General Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

1 
 

2024 2023

REVENUES

Taxes...................................................................... 11,888,162.35$  11,673,501.16$ 

Licenses and permits............................................. 1,383,445.44      560,974.82        

Intergovernmental................................................. 877,624.20         403,627.83        

Charges for services............................................... 1,486,914.19      1,536,997.29     

Fines and forfeitures.............................................. 308,348.25         417,940.90        

Investment earnings.............................................. 363,613.12         289,665.07        

Contributions and donations.................................. 34,695.23           71,542.27          

Miscellaneous........................................................ 70,097.90           64,250.21          

Total revenues............................................................ 16,412,900.68    15,018,499.55    1,394,401.13      9.28%

EXPENDITURES

Current

General government.......................................... 2,411,337.11      1,757,635.79     

Judicial................................................................ 210,355.57         242,358.05        

Public safety....................................................... 7,748,288.39      6,783,324.19     

Public works........................................................ 3,319,224.75      2,861,638.26     

Health and welfare............................................. 100,777.83         86,780.53          

Culture and recreation....................................... 1,029,998.21      873,727.94        

Housing and development................................. 593,458.46         561,034.22        

Debt service

Principal.............................................................. 1,734,397.34      1,823,519.19     

Interest............................................................... 313,992.03         223,938.50        

Total expenditures..................................................... 17,461,829.69    15,213,956.67    2,247,873.02      14.78%

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.......................................... (1,048,929.01)     (195,457.12)       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in............................................................ 630,986.90         646,876.65        

Transfers out.......................................................... (2,439,976.46)     (890,486.25)       

Sale of general capital assets................................ 224,250.00         286,770.00        

Insurance recoveries.............................................. 29,128.52           54,263.07          

Total other financing sources (uses) (1,555,611.04)     97,423.47           (1,653,034.51)     ‐1696.75%

Net changes in fund balances.................................... (2,604,540.05)     (98,033.65)         

Fund balances at beginning of year........................... 38,919,239.75    32,947,279.67   

Fund balances at end of year..................................... 36,314,699.70$  32,849,246.02$ 



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Fund 201 ‐ Tree Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

2 
 

2024 2023

REVENUES

Contributions.......................................................... 37,125.00$         469,825.00$      

Investment earnings.............................................. 1,284.82             2,002.38            

Total revenues........................................................ 38,409.82           471,827.38         (433,417.56)        ‐91.86%

EXPENDITURES

Current

Parks................................................................... 159,239.89         87,097.73          

Total expenditures................................................. 159,239.89         87,097.73           72,142.16           82.83%

Net change in fund balance....................................... (120,830.07)        384,729.65        

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ 2,817,933.65      2,581,923.20     

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... 2,697,103.58$    2,966,652.85$   



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Fund 210 ‐ Forfeiture Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

3 
 

2024 2023

REVENUES

Fines and forfeitures.............................................. ‐$                    564.75$             

Investment earnings.............................................. 81.86                  150.53               

Total revenues............................................................ 81.86                  715.28                (633.42)               ‐88.56%

EXPENDITURES

Current

Public safety....................................................... 77,555.80           1,975.13            

Total expenditures..................................................... 77,555.80           1,975.13             75,580.67           3826.62%

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.................................. (77,473.94)  (1,259.85)   

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ 182,668.11         120,812.07        

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... 105,194.17$       119,552.22$      



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Fund 230 ‐ American Rescue Plan Local Fiscal Recovery Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

4 
 

2024 2023

REVENUES

Intergovernmental grants...................................... ‐$                    ‐$                   

Investment earnings.............................................. ‐                      6,696.45            

Total revenues............................................................ ‐                      6,696.45             (6,696.45)            ‐100.00%

EXPENDITURES

Current

Health and welfare............................................. ‐                      ‐                     

Total expenditures..................................................... ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.................................. ‐                      6,696.45            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers out.......................................................... ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

Total other financing sources (uses) ‐                      ‐                     

Net change in fund balance....................................... ‐                      6,696.45            

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ ‐                      7,675.69            

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... ‐$                    14,372.14$        



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Fund 275 ‐ Accommodation Excise Tax Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

5 
 

2024 2023

REVENUES

Taxes...................................................................... 1,261,973.80$    1,293,753.36$   

Total revenues............................................................ 1,261,973.80      1,293,753.36      (31,779.56)          ‐2.46%

EXPENDITURES

Intergovernmental:

Assistance.......................................................... 630,986.90         646,876.68        

Total expenditures..................................................... 630,986.90         646,876.68         (15,889.78)          ‐2.46%

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.................................. 630,986.90         646,876.68        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers out.......................................................... (630,986.90)        (646,876.68)        15,889.78           ‐2.46%

Total other financing sources (uses) (630,986.90)        (646,876.68)       

Net change in fund balance....................................... ‐                      ‐                     

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ ‐                      ‐                     

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... ‐$                    ‐$                   



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Fund 320 ‐ Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

6 
 

2024 2023

REVENUES

Intergovernmental........................................ 2,587,165.60$    1,821,548.99$   

Investment earnings..................................... 269,102.79         128,760.70        

Total revenues.................................................. 2,856,268.39      1,950,309.69      905,958.70         46.45%

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay

Public works.............................................. 84,295.10           342,355.58        

Recreation................................................. 1,710,543.10      1,000,584.86     

Total expenditures............................................ 1,794,838.20      1,342,940.44      451,897.76         33.65%

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures........................ 1,061,430.19      607,369.25        

Fund balance, beginning of year...................... 11,628,590.13    7,698,715.93     

Fund balance, end of year................................ 12,690,020.32$  8,306,085.18$   



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Fund 350 ‐ Local Resources Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

7 
 

2024 2023

REVENUES

Intergovernmental........................................ ‐$                    ‐$                   

Total revenues.................................................. ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay

General government................................. 78,376.56           296,693.00        

Public safety.............................................. 432,226.69         47,145.00          

Public works.............................................. 1,884,702.61      446,587.88        

Recreation................................................. 44,670.60           100,060.37        

Total expenditures............................................ 2,439,976.46      890,486.25         1,549,490.21      174.00%

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures........................ (2,439,976.46)     (890,486.25)       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in................................................... 2,439,976.46      890,486.25         1,549,490.21      174.00%

Total other financing sources (uses) 2,439,976.46      890,486.25        

Net change in fund balance.............................. ‐                      ‐                     

Fund balance, beginning of year...................... ‐                      ‐                     

Fund balance, end of year................................ ‐$                    ‐$                   



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Fund 505 ‐ Water and Sewer Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

8 
 

2024 2023

OPERATING REVENUES

Water fees............................................................. 2,070,004.63$    1,992,308.32$   

Sewer fees.............................................................. 2,625,489.31      2,383,340.99     

Miscellaneous fees................................................ 88,368.65           135,082.13        

Total operating revenues........................................... 4,783,862.59      4,510,731.44      273,131.15         6.06%

OPERATING EXPENSES

Sewer and Wastewater Treatment Plant

Purchased and contracted services.................... 1,083,942.91      1,197,063.50     

Materials and supplies....................................... 1,001,346.28      1,077,428.92     

Total sewer and wastewater treatment plant........... 2,085,289.19      2,274,492.42      (189,203.23)        ‐8.32%

Water

Personnel services and employee benefits....... 387,112.99         342,783.44        

Purchased and contracted services.................... 308,637.57         362,209.20        

Materials and supplies....................................... 1,153,832.79      914,315.18        

Total water................................................................. 1,849,583.35      1,619,307.82      230,275.53         14.22%

Total operating expenses........................................... 3,934,872.54      3,893,800.24      41,072.30           1.05%

Operating income (loss)............................................ 848,990.05         616,931.20         232,058.85         37.62%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest income...................................................... 266,428.46         229,189.52        

Interest expense..................................................... (174,296.67)        (152,526.44)       

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses).................. 92,131.79           76,663.08           15,468.71           20.18%

Income (loss) before capital contributions................ 941,121.84         693,594.28         247,527.56         35.69%

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

Tap fees.................................................................. 1,037,826.96      470,883.20        

Capital cost recovery charges................................ 3,322,070.26      2,297,441.86     

Total capital contributions......................................... 4,359,897.22      2,768,325.06      1,591,572.16      57.49%

Change in net position............................................... 5,301,019.06      3,461,919.34      1,839,099.72      53.12%

Net position, beginning of year................................. 81,527,784.57    63,204,310.41   

Net position, end of year........................................... 86,828,803.63$  66,666,229.75$ 
 



City of Pooler
Fire-Rescue Services

Fire-Rescue Report June 1st - 30th  , 2024

MAJOR INCIDENT TYPE # INCIDENTS 
June 2024

% Of TOTAL 
June 2024

YEAR to Date 
2024

YEAR to Date 
2023

Fires 9 2.16% 72 80
❖ Structure Fires 1 - 30 23

Emergency Medical Service 223 53.47% 1414 1344
Motor Vehicle Collisions 47 11.28% 286 296
Technical Rescues 9 2.16% 45 53
Hazardous Condition (No Fire) 11 2.64% 46 39
Service Call 56 13.43% 290 260
Good Intent Call 32 7.67% 235 215
False Alarm & False Call 30 7.19% 201 215
Severe Weather & Natural Disaster 0 0% 4 11
Special Incident/Citizen Complaint 0 0% 1 0

TOTAL 417 100% 2594 2513

June Call Volume Decreased from 435 in 2023 to 417 in 2024, (4.14 % decrease)

For the year, call volume has increased by 81 calls or 3.22%.

Total Fire Loss Year to Date 2024 - $693,434

Total Fire Loss Year to Date 2023 - $718,960

 June         Year to Date
1. Child Locked in Auto      1 11
2. Animal Locked in Auto      1 4
3. Blood Draws     9             54



SIGNIFICANT INCIDENTS

1. 6/7 – Outlets Parkway  – HazMat – Radiation Incident -  Engine 602 
Truck 601, Battalion 601, Chief 601, EMS 601. Vehicle emitting 
radiation, Units created a safe zone and evacuated businesses within the 
zone. Savannah HazMat team arrived and deployed technicians to 
investigate. Personnel found an old military compass that had a small 
amount of radiation reading from it. All units operated for almost 2 
hours.

2. 6/8 – Pooler Pkwy/Interstate 16 – Vehicle Extrication – Engine 604, 
601, 602, Rescue 601, Truck 605, Battalion 601 – responded to a 
collision with vehicle overturned and multiple patients. 1 victim 
extricated after removing the roof of an SUV. 

3. 6/17 – Pooler Pkwy/Interstate 16 – Vehicle Extrication – Engine 604, 
Rescue 601, Battalion 601 – responded to a collision with vehicle over 
the guardrail with entrapment. 1 vehicle on top of the guardrail, hanging 
over the embankment. Rescue 601 secured and stabilized car, then 
extricated the patient victim.

4. 6/18 – Oak Meadow Drive – Trash Compactor Fire – Engine 603, 
Engine 601, Truck 601, Battalion 601 responded for a fire alarm. Upon 
arrival, units found the trash compactor attached to the building on fire. 
Occupants had no way to move the compactor away from the structure. 
Units were able to use the Jaws of Life to pry and push the compactor 
away from the structure. Units were on scene for almost 2 hours.



 
         

 
 

 

 

 

 

• A total of 64 Part 1 crimes were reported in the month of June.  

• From the prior year 2023, there is a decrease of 25%. 

• A total of 37 shopliftings were reported in the month of June.  

• From the prior year 2023, this is a decrease of 25%. 

• Total Calls for service in June were 2,506. 

• From the prior year 2023, this is a decrease of 2%. 

• A total of 1,471 citations were issued in the month of June.  

• From the prior year 2023, this is a decrease of 30%. 

• A total of 124 arrests were made in the month of June.  

• From the prior year 2023, this is a decrease of 6%. 

• A total of 25 DUI arrests were made in the month of June.  

• From the prior year 2023, this is a decrease of 26%. 

 

 

 
            ACTIVITY 

TIME PERIOD 
6/1 TO 6/30/2024 

YEAR TO 
DATE 2024 

YEAR TO 
DATE 2023 

PERCENTAGE 
CHANGE 

FROM 23 - 24 

PART 1 CRIMES 64 303 406 -25% 
SHOPLIFTINGS 37 132 175 -25% 
CALLS FOR SERVICE 2,506 12,875 12,629 2% 
CITATION 1,471 5,622 7,995 -30% 
ARRESTS 124 693 735 -6% 
DUI ARRESTS 25 115 156 -26% 

  

Monday July 15, 2024 

June 2024   



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Pooler Stadium

9 Registration for fall youth sports opend. Includes flag and tackle football, soccer and 

cheerleading.

9

1

2

 

3

4

5

6

1

2

3

Pooler Parks & Recreation

Monthly Report: June 2024

Recreation Department

Registration opened for fall classes. Classes Resume in August.

All Star baseball and softball teams participated in GRPA District Tournaments, in Jesup 

Senior Center

Gymnastics, classes continued in June.  Registrations for new

sessions remained open.

and Waycross.

Summer basketball practices and games began at the gyms on Rogers Street.

Healthy Kids Running program concluded the spring session.

All regularly scheduled classes and activities continued in June.

The center's monthly party also celebrated Father's Day.

Parks

Seniors were able to attend a day trips that included trips to Jacksonville, FL and 

A new book club, and a new Tai Chi class were started in June. 

Gaelic football, the Hispanic Softball league and cricket continued thru June. 

For Juneteenth, the annual 5k staged and ran from the stadium with over 100 participants.

Parks performed routine maintenance at the parks, the community and senior

centers, and the cemetery.

Marshall's Farm in Statesboro

Registration continued for summer sports camps.

Also hosted a 'Junior Juneteenth' event for young children at Pooler Park with 

with 30 particpants - included history and story, a craft activity, and a march.

PRD hosted the annual 7v7 high school football passing tournament at 



1  

City of Pooler  
Planning & Zoning Minutes 

June 10, 2024 
 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 
 

Chair Johnson called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m.  
Commissioner Simmons led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
Attendee Name Title Status 
Nicole Johnson Chair Present 
Brad Rife Commissioner Present 
Shirlinia Daniel Commissioner Present 
Jeremy Kelly Alternate Present 
Wade Simmons Commissioner Present 
Mark Williams Commissioner Present 
Jim Ward Commissioner Present 
Pete Chaison Commissioner Present 
Marcy Benson City Planner Present 
Kimberly Dyer Zoning Administrator/Secretary Present 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
The minutes of the May 13, 2024, Pooler Planning and Zoning Commission were 
reviewed and accepted. 
 
Result: Approved 
 
1-Motion: Commissioner Simmons 

  2-Second: Commissioner Rife 
Passed without opposition. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
 

A. Zoning Map Amendment for property on Pine Barren Road from MH-1 
(Manufactured Home Dwelling) to I-2 (Heavy Industrial) 
 
This item was withdrawn by the petitioner.    
 
 

B. Zoning Map Amendment for 115 Houston Street from R-1-A (Single-family 
Residential) to C-1 (Light Commercial) 

Chair Johnson presented the request to the Commission for their review and 
recommendation. The subject site is approximately 0.52 acres and is zoned R-1-A. The site 
is located on Houston Street and is surrounded by commercial uses to the west, south and 



2  

east and single-family residential uses to the north and east. The property contains an 
unoccupied single-family residential home. The previous owner had a business license for 
a Home Occupation for a hair salon. The applicant, Mrs. Verdejo, was present and stated 
she is seeking to establish a delivery-based commercial kitchen in the building that was 
once utilized as a beauty salon. She will have a minimum of two vans for deliveries and 
the hours of operation will be from 10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. This use would classify as a 
catering business in the City’s land use code. Chair Johnson reminded the applicant that 
if the request is approved for commercial, it cannot go back to residential. 

Result:  After review of the criteria, a motion was made to recommend approval of  the zoning map amendment.  
 

1- Motion:  Commissioner Simmons  
  2- Second: Commissioner Daniel 
  Passed with Commissioner Ward in opposition.       
    
C. Zoning Map Amendment for three properties located at 328 Old Pine Barren Road 

from R-1-A (Single-family Residential  to I-1 (Light Industrial) 

Chair Johnson presented the request to the Commission for their review and 
recommendation. The subject site is referred to as 328 Old Pine Barren Road. It is 
comprised of 3 parcels totaling approximately 4.48 acres. It is zoned R-1-A (Single-family 
Residential) and is accessed from Old Pine Barren Road. The site is currently developed 
with an existing paint and auto body shop, wrecker service and a holding yard, which are 
all considered non-conforming uses as they are not permitted in the R-1-A Zoning District. 
The nearby uses are residential and not similar in use. Holly Young, representing Clem 
Burnsed stated that the applicant is seeking to maintain the same uses under the light 
industrial zone to be considered conforming. There were several residents that appeared 
before the Commission with concerns of the potential increase in truck traffic, and the 
safety of the children and long-time residents in this area.   

Result:  After review of the criteria, a motion was made to recommend denial of the zoning map amendment.  
 

1- Motion:  Commissioner Daniel 
  2- Second:  Commissioner Rife 
  Passed without opposition.  
 
 
 
    
D. Recombination Plat for Circle K at 1080 E. Hwy 80 

Chair Johnson presented the request to the Commission for their review and 
recommendation. The applicant is seeking to combine two lots into one, totaling 2.94 acres 
for an expansion project.  

Result:  After review of the criteria, a motion was made to recommend approval of the recombination plat. 
 

1- Motion:  Commissioner Rife 
  2- Second:  Commissioner Daniel 
  Passed without opposition.    
 



3  

E. Site Plan for AJ Garcia Container Stacking Yard at 6 A J Garcia Road 

Chair Johnson presented the site plan to the Commission for their review and 
recommendation. Attorney Josh Yellin, on behalf of the applicant stated that the 
intent is to convert the existing outdoor storage yard into a container stacking 
operation.  Marc Liverman with Integrated Civil Solutions stated that the containers 
will be stacked at a maximum of 30’. 

Result:  After review of the criteria, a motion was made to recommend approval of the site plan.   

 
1- Motion:  Commissioner Williams 
2- Second: Commissioner Simmons        
Passed with Commissioners Ward and Daniel in 
opposition.   

   
F. Site Plan for Town Lake Park, Bldg. 900 at 125 Southern Junction Blvd.  
 

Chair Johnson presented the site plan to the Commission for their review and    
recommendation. The applicant is proposing to develop an 11,120 square foot 
professional office building with associated parking.   

 
Result:  A motion was made to recommend approval of the site plan.  
 

1- Motion:  Commissioner Williams 
  2- Second: Commissioner Simmons 

  Passed without opposition.     
 

 
Adjournment 
 

There being no further business, Chair Johnson asked for a motion to adjourn at 
approximately 3:24 p.m. 
 

1- Motion: Commissioner Daniel 
2- Second: Commissioner Rife 

 
Adjourned without opposition. 
 
The foregoing minutes are true and correct and approved by me on this ____ day of 
_______________ 2024. 
 
 
 
__________________________________________________ 

 
Kimberly Dyer, Zoning Administrator 

 
 









City of Pooler
Single Family Detached Permits

June 2024

Date Permit # Subdivision Address Contractor Owner PIN #

Flood 
Zone/Flood 

Way
6/4/2024 24-0529 Telfair Park 152 Jepson Way, Lot 394 Mungo Homes Same 51009S04009
6/4/2024 24-0530 Telfair Park 137 Juliette Low Ln., Lot 400 Mungo Homes Same 51009S05002
6/14/2024 24-0556 Telfair Park 154 Jepson Way, Lot 395 Mungo Homes Same 51009S04010
6/14/2024 24-0557 Telfair Park 158 Jepson Way, Lot 397 Mungo Homes Same 51009S04012

Total 4



City of Pooler
Townhome Permits

June 2024

Date Permit # Subdivision Address Contractor Owner PIN #
6/10/2024 24-0531 Westbrook 644 Blue Moon Xing, Lot 888 Logan Homes SC LLC Same 51009R06014
5/10/2024 24-0532 Westbrook 642 Blue Moon Xing, Lot 889 Logan Homes SC LLC Same 51009R06015
6/14/2024 24-0560 Westbrook 646 Blue Moon Xing., Lot 887 Logan Homes SC LLC Same 51009R06013
6/14/2024 24-0561 Westbrook 648 Blue Moon Xing., Lot 886 Logan Homes SC LLC Same 51009R06012
6/14/2024 24-0562 Westbrook 638 Blue Moon Xing., Lot 891 Logan Homes SC LLC Same 51009R06017
6/14/2024 24-0563 Westbrook 640 Blue Moon Xing.,Lot 890 Logan Homes SC LLC Same 51009R06016

Total 6



City of Pooler
Multi-Family Residential

Permits June 2024

Date Permit # Subdivision Address Contractor Owner PIN # Units
6/11/2024 24-0311 HOM at Pooler 100 Commons Way Bldg 2000 Summit Contracting Group Inc CRP/IDPHV Pooler Owner, LLC 5100901089 30
6/11/2024 24-0312 HOM at Pooler 100 Commons Way Bldg 3000 Summit Contracting Group Inc CRP/IDPHV Pooler Owner, LLC 5100901089 30
6/11/2024 24-0613 HOM at Pooler 100 Commons Way Bldg 4000 Summit Contracting Group Inc CRP/IDPHV Pooler Owner, LLC 5100901089 30
6/11/2024 24-0314 HOM at Pooler 100 Commons Way Bldg 5000 Summit Contracting Group Inc CRP/IDPHV Pooler Owner, LLC 5100901089 30
6/11/2024 24-0315 HOM at Pooler 100 Commons Way Bldg 6000 Summit Contracting Group Inc CRP/IDPHV Pooler Owner, LLC 5100901089 30
6/11/2024 24-0322 HOM at Pooler 100 Commons Way Bldg 7000 Summit Contracting Group Inc CRP/IDPHV Pooler Owner, LLC 5100901089 36
6/11/2024 24-0333 HOM at Pooler 100 Commons Way Bldg 8000 Summit Contracting Group Inc CRP/IDPHV Pooler Owner, LLC 5100901089 30
6/11/2024 24-0335 HOM at Pooler 100 Commons Way Bldg 9000 Summit Contracting Group Inc CRP/IDPHV Pooler Owner, LLC 5100901089 30
6/11/2024 24-0336 HOM at Pooler 100 Commons Way Bldg 10,000 Summit Contracting Group Inc CRP/IDPHV Pooler Owner, LLC 5100901090 36

Total 9 282



City of Pooler
Commercial Permits

June 2024

Date Permit # Address Contractor Owner Type/Project PIN #
Flood 

Zone/Flood Way
6/28/2024 24-0202 110 Melody Dr. Pool Solutions Plus Inc Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Commercial Pool 5-1010F05069
5/10/2024 24-0480 5212 Old Louiisville Rd. Tim Michalchuk Mana Nutrition Racking Addition 5098701023
6/12/2024 24-0567 385 Morgan Lakes Industrial Blvd. Mahany Construction Morgan Laeks Industrial XVI LLC Warehouse 5101501102
6/20/2024 24-0585 200 Tangert Outlets Blvd Josh Hargrave Tanger Outlets EV Charging Station 50017A01099
6/24/2024 24-0589 2321 Pooler Pkwy Ste. 113 Tippins-Polk Construction Inc Mosaic Retail Properties What's For Dinner Buildout 5100901107
6/26/2024 24-0592 2321 Pooler Pkwy Ste. 110 Dewitt Tilton Group Gravity -Prime Prime IV Buildou 5100901107
6/27/2024 24-0594 220 Tanger Outlets Blvd. Units 101-108 George Hunter Yogesh Patel Retail Shell 50017A01112
6/27/2024 24-0595 10 Pavilion Ct. Year Round Pool Savannah Quarters

 y 
Commercial Pool 51011F01004

Total 8   



Misc. Permits June  2024
Date Permit # Address Contractor Owner Project Type PIN # Flood Zone

6/24/2024 24-0499 2121 Pooler Pkwy Fendig Signs Branjo LLC Wall Sign and Monument Sign
6/6/2024 24-0508 227 Lake View Dr. Thompson & Thompson David Johnson Mechanical 51009H01017
6/6/2024 24-0509 302 Oliver St. Thompson & Thompson Judy Machulas Mechanical 5000509001A

6/21/2024 24-0536 810 Towne Center Blvd. Kenneth Giles SAI Pooler Investments LLC Electrical
6/3/2024 24-0537 5158 Old Louisvilee Rd. Breland Well Drillling Mike Hayman Deep Well 5098701031

6/13/2024 24-0537 2158 Old Louisville Rd. Pete Peterson HIG Property Manangement LLC Deep Well 
6/11/2024 24-0548 115 Canal St. Ryan McCabe Canal Street Plaza  LLC Commercial Tree Removal 50017B04008
6/4/2024 24-0549 1510 E. Hwy 80 Beacon Outdoor RJKA Quick Lock LLC Sign
6/3/2024 24-0550 216 Tanzania Trl. Veterans Fence and Supply Douglas and Joshana Leavitt 6' Wood Privacy Fence 51015B09051

6/11/2024 24-0551 16 Masters Way TowerSite Services LLC Verizon Wireless Cell Tower Upgrade
6/11/2024 24-0552 140 Tanger Oultets Blvd. Comcast/SE Utilities La Parilla Excavation/Encroachment 50017A01111
6/11/2024 24-0553 500 E Hwy 80 Comcast/SE Utilities Pooler Exchange LLC Excavation/Encroachment 5000707002A
6/11/2024 24-0554 5240 Old Louisville Rd B 42 Comcast/SE Utilities Rob Cassada Excavation/Encroachment 5098701037
6/11/2024 24-0555 5 Town Center Ct. Atlanta Gas Light/SE Connections Royal Gorugp Management Excavation/Encroachment 50017C002028
6/11/2024 24-0558 100 Kita Ave. Champion Fire Protection Pittman Real Estate Holdings Fire Alarm 51011F01002A
6/4/2024 24-0559 101 Westside Blvd. Khris Allen Native Development Gorup Fire Alarm 5098707056

6/14/2024 24-0568 500 E Hwy 80 Corey Cleghorn Pooler Exchange LLC Emergency Responder Communicatoin
6/20/2024 24-0569 412 SW Hwy 80 Doug Bean Signs Peacock Trading Company Wall Sign
6/20/2024 24-0570 410 SW Hwy 80 Doug Bean Signs Peacock Trading Company Wall Sign  
6/17/2024 24-0571 208 Sangrena Dr. Jeremy Kelly Same Remodel 5001201006
6/13/2024 24-0572 109 Wilkes St. Kevin Flowers Lisa Fletcher Electrical
6/14/2024 24-0573 501 Cardinal St. Generator Supercenter Debra Jeffcoat Electrical
6/14/2024 24-0575 2 Woods Way Vinyl Industries of Savannah Patrice Elmore Aluminum Sun Room 51014B14024
6/18/2024 24-0576 121 Westwind Dr. Veterans Fence and Supply Cal Elliott 6' Wood Privacy Fence
6/21/2024 24-0578 130 Martello Rd. Thompson & Thompson Benjamin Fordham Mechanical
6/20/2024 24-0579 132 Kingfisher Cir. Thompson & Thompson Kenneth Roberson Mechanical
6/20/2024 24-0580 139 Bramswell Rd. Thompson & Thompson Gregory Bozek Mechanical
6/20/2024 24-0581 512 Everetyy Dr. Thompson & Thompson Robert Williams Mechanical
6/20/2024 24-0584 308 Pinewood Dr. Claude Roscoe Roney Andrew Waller Detached Garage 5000201001
6/21/2024 24-0588 103 River Run Dr. Freedom Forever LLC Thomas Westcoot Roof Mounted Solar Panels
6/24/2024 24-0590 10 Mill Creek Cir. Switch Electric Lloyd Milliken Electrical
6/27/2024 24-0591 15 Mill Creek Cir Place Servcies Inc Wal-Mart Refrigeration Coolers
6/25/2024 24-0593 129 E. Hwy 80 Theodore Gordon CGNR LLC Demolition 50005 01002
6/27/2024 24-0596 110 Foxfield Way Signs by James Sommers Oil Company Sign
6/27/2024 24-0597 133 Coleman Blvd Palmetto State Sign Gulfstream Aerospace Wall Sign
6/27/2024 24-0598 125 Southern Junct Blvd Bldg 900 Omega Construction Town Lake Park of Commerce LLC Construction Trailer
6/27/2024 24-0599 2300 Pooler Pkwy Thompson Thrift Development Same Construction Trailer
6/27/2024 24-0600 1000 Towne Center Blvd. Air Therm Co Inc Godley Station Professional Mechanical
6/27/2024 24-0603 100 Blue Moon Xing Ste 114 Signarama Hilton Head LPA Blue Moon LLC Wall Sign
6/27/2024 24-0604 14 Mill Creek Cir Signs of the South Sams Club Signs
6/28/2024 24-0606 1 Longleaf Cir. Galbreath Heating & Air Bille Tyler Mechanical
6/28/2024 24-0608 7 Catteshall Ln JDH Decks and Fence EJ Finck Aluminum Fence
6/28/2024 24-0609 2121 Pooler Pkwy Southeast Utilities Comcast Excavation/Encroachment
6/28/2024 24-0610 2200 Pooler Pkwy Southeast Utilities Comcast Excavation/Encroachment

Total 44



City of Pooler
Certificate of Occupancy

June 2024

Date Permit # Subdivision Address Type of Construction Contractor Owner
6/6/2024 221052 500 E Hwy 80 Drury Hotel Drury Construction Company Drury Savannah LLC

6/10/2024 231378 Towne Park 488 Governor Treulten Cir, Lot 43 Townhome Horizon Home Builders Same
6/10/2024 231379 Towne Park 490 Governor Treutlen Cir., Lot 44 Townhome Horizon Home Builders Same
6/10/2024 231381 Towne Park 492 Governor Treutlen Cir., Lot 45 Townhome Horizon Home Builders Same
6/10/2024 231382 Towne Park 494 Governor Treutlen Cir., Lot 46 Townhome Horizon Home Builders Same
6/10/2024 231815 Telfailr Park 115 Julette Low Ln., Lot 411 Single Family Detached Mungo Homes Same
6/10/2024 24-0073 Westbrook 630 Blue Moon Xing., Lot 895 Townhome Logan Homes Same
6/10/2024 24-0072 Westbrook 632 Blue Moon Xing., Lot 894 Townhome Logan Homes Same
6/10/2024  24-0052 Telfailr Park 145 Jepson Way, Lot 424 Single Family Detached Mungo Homes Same
6/12/2024 221187 Westbrook 119 Greenhill Glsoe, Lot 747 Single Family Detached Michael Rogers Construction Niraj Patel
6/14/2024 230867 2121 Pooler Pkwy Valvoline Instant Oil Change KTM Builders Branjo LLC
6/14/2024 231752 Westbrook 200 Holloway Hill, Lot 1121 Townhome DR Horton Same
6/17/2024 231818 Westbrook 718 Blue Moon Xing.,Lot 940 Single Family Detached Lennar Carollinas Same
6/17/2024 231823 Westbrook 125 Holloway Hill, Lot 1013 Single Family Detached Lennar Carollinas Same
6/18/2024 231817 Westbrook 717 Blue Moon Xing., Lot 913 Single Family Detached Lennar Carollinas Same
6/20/2024 231612 Forest Lankes 165 Champlain Dr., Lot 1019 Single Family Detached Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same
6/20/2024 231774 Forest Lankes 154 Champlain Dr., Lot 1007 Single Family Detached Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same
6/20/2024 231825 Westbrook 121 Holloway Hill, Lot 1015 Single Family Detached Lennar Carollinas Same
6/20/2024 231827 Westbrook 136 Holloway Hill, Lot 1043 Single Family Detached Lennar Carollinas Same
6/20/2024 231435 1407 Pine Barren Rd. Bldg A Mini Storage with Office BCH Construction Cathy Parlor
6/20/2024 231452 1407 Pine Barren Rd. Bldg B Mini Storage Facility BCH Construction Cathy Parlor
6/20/2024 231453 1407 Pine Barren Rd. Bldg C Mini Storage Facility BCH Construction Cathy Parlor
6/20/2024 231454 1407 Pine Barren Rd. Bldg D Mini Storage Facility BCH Construction Cathy Parlor
6/20/2024 231455 1407 Pine Barren Rd. Bldg E Mini Storage Facility BCH Construction Cathy Parlor
6/20/2024 231456 1407 Pine Barren Rd. Bldg F Mini Storage Facility BCH Construction Cathy Parlor
6/20/2024 231457 1407 Pine Barren Rd. Bldg G Mini Storage Facility BCH Construction Cathy Parlor
6/20/2024 231458 1407 Pine Barren Rd. Bldg H Mini Storage Facility BCH Construction Cathy Parlor
6/20/2024 231459 1407 Pine Barren Rd. Bldg J Mini Storage Facility BCH Construction Cathy Parlor
6/20/2024 231460 1407 Pine Barren Rd. Bldg K Mini Storage Facility BCH Construction Cathy Parlor
6/21/2024 231598 Easthaven-Savannah Quarters 239 Oldwood Dr., Lot 533 Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
6/21/2024 231599 Easthaven-Savannah Quarters 241 Oldwood Dr., Lot 534 Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
6/21/2024 231600 Easthaven-Savannah Quarters 243 Oldwood Dr., Lot 535 Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
6/21/2024 231601 Easthaven-Savannah Quarters 245 Oldwood Dr. ,Lot 536 Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
6/21/2024 231602 Easthaven-Savannah Quarters 247 Oldwood Dr., Lot 537 Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
6/21/2024 231603 Easthaven-Savannah Quarters 249 Oldwood Dr., Lot 538 Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
6/21/2024 231604 Easthaven-Savannah Quarters 251 Oldwood Dr., Lot 539 Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
6/21/2024 231605 Easthaven-Savannah Quarters 253 Oldwood Dr., Lot 540 Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
6/24/2024 231821 Westbrook 118 Binscombe Ln., Lot 1002 Single Family Detached Lennar Carollinas Same
6/24/2024 231745 Westbrook 185 Holloway Hill, Lot 1066 Townhome DR Horton Same
6/24/2024 231747 Westbrook 183 Holloway Hill, Lot 1067 Townhome DR Horton Same
6/24/2024 231754 Westbrook 204 Holloway Hill, Lot 1123 Townhome DR Horton Same
6/24/2024 231750 Westbrook 196 Holloway Hill, Lot 1119 Townhome DR Horton Same
6/25/2024 231820 Westbrook 120 Bincombe Ln., Lot 1001 Single Family Detached Lennar Carollinas Same
6/25/2024 24-0016 88 Clyde Alexander Way Renovation of Office Building Forest City Contracting Dean Forest Partnerse
6/26/2024 24-0122 Westbrook 111 Binscombe Ln., Lot 960 Single Family Detached Lennar Carollinas Same
6/26/2024 24-0123 Westbrook 116 Binscbome Ln., Lot 1003 Single Family Detached Lennar Carollinas Same
6/27/2024 231860 1503 Dean Forest Rd Interior Renovation Heritage Homes Sagar Patel
6/27/2024 231589 Easthaven-Savannah Quarters 246 Oldwood Dr., Lot 505 Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
6/27/2024 231590 Easthaven-Savannah Quarters 248 Oldwood Dr., Lot 506 Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
6/27/2024 231591 Easthaven-Savannah Quarters 250 Oldwood Dr., Lot 507 Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
6/27/2024 231592 Easthaven-Savannah Quarters 252 Oldwood Dr., Lot 508 Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
6/27/2024 231594 Easthaven-Savannah Quarters 254 Oldwood Dr., Lot 509 Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
6/27/2024 231595 Easthaven-Savannah Quarters 256 Oldwood Dr., Lot 510 Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
6/27/2024 231596 Easthaven-Savannah Quarters 258 Oldwood Dr., Lot 511 Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
6/27/2024 231597 Easthaven-Savannah Quarters 260 Oldwood Dr., Lot 512 Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
6/28/2024 24-0230 2321 Pooler Pkwy Ste 107 Medical Office Buildout Midland General Contractors Mosaic Retail Properties

Total 56



Monthly Report
June 2024

INSPECTORS
Scott MacPherson 251 Inspections (Included in Salary)
Frank Garza 316 Inspections (Included in Salary)
Josh Moody Inspections
Total Inspections: 567 Inspections



 

 
1 
 

 
   STATE OF GEORGIA } 
    ) 
   COUNTY OF CHATHAM } 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 ORDINANCE O2024-07.B 
Emergency Access Requirements for Gated Properties,  
Knox Brand Key Lock Boxes for Emergency Access, and  

For Certain Structures as Designated by the Fire Chief or Their Designee. 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF POOLER CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 
46 – FIRE PREVENTION AND PROTECTION.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Pooler that 
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pooler, Georgia are hereby amended as follows: 

Sec. 46-7. Emergency access requirements for gated communities properties. 

Sec. 46-7.4. Standards. 
Operation of gates or restricted access. Where access to an area is restricted because of 
secured openings and where immediate access is necessary for emergency (lifesaving, 
firefighting purposes or law enforcement purposes) the following is required.:  

 
(1) All vehicle access gates or barriers shall be electrically operated for entry and 
  exit by an approved method by the City of Pooler; and furthermore, they will 
  be equipped with the required following access control system:  
 

  a. Radio operated controller. All blocking barriers shall be equipped with 
     a range-able radio receiver capable of receiving access commands 
     from public safety radio transceivers. Such emergency access control 
    device will be able to operate with the radio systems typically used by 
    public safety agencies operating within Chatham County and the State 
     of Georgia. Exceptions: Radio controlled exit/activation LED device 
    may be waived by installation of a "free exit" loop.  
 
          (2) Gates requiring radio-controlled exit/LED activation shall be provided 
  with an approved two-inch by two-inch blue, reflective marker visible to the 
   exiting vehicle. It shall be located in the center of the exit gate.  
 

(3) Wiring of electrical gates shall be provided by AC (Alternate Current) current 
   with underground installation.  
 

          (4) Electrically operated gates shall fail to the open position when the power is off. 
    They shall remain open until power is restored.  
 
          (5)  Residential gated properties (single-family, multi-family, townhomes, 
   and condominiums) shall require a Click2Enter brand radio-operated 



  

2 

  control system for all vehicular accesses. 
 
            (6)   Commercial and industrial gated properties shall require Knox brand 
   gate and key switches for all automatic powered gates and Knox brand 
   exterior padlocks for all non-powered gates.  
 

Sec. 46-7.5. Submittal. 

The following information shall be submitted to the City of Pooler Fire Department and the 
City of Pooler Inspections Department:  

(1) Method of operation of equipment  

(2) If applicable UL (Underwriters Laboratory) listing numbers of equipment used  

(3) Manufacturers specification sheets for electrical gate controller; and  

(4) A site plan of the property and a site plan detail of each gate location drawn 
to scale (1"—10', 1"—20', or 1"—40') indicating or showing:  

a. Contractors company name, address, phone number, and  
  contact person;  

b. Exact locations of the entry to the property;  

c. Assessor's parcel number;  

d. Property lines;  

e. Proposed fence, pedestrian gates, and vehicle gates; and  

f. Proposed location of key box and radio operated controller  

g. Site plan requirements are for apply to remodels, rebuilds, and 
   new construction only.  

Sec. 46-8 - Knox Box brand key lock boxes for emergency access. 

Sec. 46-8.1. For commercial, residential, and other locations with restricted access 
through locked gates. 

(a) The following structures shall be equipped with a key lock box at or near the main 
entrance or such other location required by the fire chief or their designee: 

(1) Commercial or industrial gated structures that are secured in a manner that 
restricts access during an emergency;  

(2) Multi-family residential structures that have restricted access through locked 
gates; and  

(3) Governmental structures and nursing care facilities with gated entrances.  

(b) All newly constructed structures, communities, or complexes subject to this section 
shall have the key lock box installed and operational prior to the issuance of an 
occupancy permit. All structures, communities, or complexes in existence on the 
effective date of the ordinance from which this section is derived and subject to this 
section shall have one year from the effective date of the ordinance from which this 
section is derived to have a key lock box installed and operational.  

(c) The fire chief shall designate the type of key lock box system to be 
implemented within the city and shall have the authority to require all 
structures to use the designated system. The owner or operator of a structure, 
community, or complex required to have a key lock box shall, at all times, 



  

3 

keep a key inside the key lock box and maintain operation of the key lock box 
at all times. All property owners, structure owners, and managers shall notify 
the fire department immediately of any changes to keys and/or locks, fobs, 
reader cards, etc. for access to allow for the placement of new keys in the key 
lock box. 

(d) The owner or operator of a structure, community, or complex required to have 
a key lock box shall, at all times, keep a key in the lock box, or maintain the 
operation of the box at all times. Any person, entity, corporation, association, 
etc. who owns, operates, or maintains a structure, community, or complex 
subject to this section and in violation hereof shall be subject to the general 
penalty provisions found in Section 1-12 of this Code. Further, during a 
response to an emergency wherein emergency response vehicles are unable 
to enter a gated/controlled access, the City of Pooler shall be held harmless 
from any damage to a gated/controlled access. Where access is not provided, 
the property owner may be billed by the City of Pooler for the time, material, 
and equipment used during the emergency response. 

(e) The fire chief shall be authorized to implement rules and regulations for the 
use of the lock box system. The fire chief or their designee shall designate the 
type and brand of key lock box system to be implemented within the City and 
shall have the authority to require all structures to use the designated system. 
The approved key lock box brand is the Knox Rapid Access System AKA 
Knoxbox. 

(f) Any person, entity, corporation, association, etc. who owns, operates, or 
maintains a structure, community, or complex subject to this section and in 
violation hereof shall be subject to the general penalty provisions found in 
section 1-12 of this Code. All requests for a designated key lock box system 
shall be coordinated through the fire chief or their designee to obtain approval 
for the location of the key lock box on each site. 

(g) All requests for the designated key lock box system shall be coordinated 
through the fire marshal and get approval for the location of the box on each 
site. The fire chief or their designee shall be authorized to implement rules 
and regulations for the use of the designated key lock box system. 

(h) This article shall take effect immediately upon its passage.  

Sec. 46-9. For certain buildings structures as designated by the fire chief or their 
designee. 

(a) The following structures shall be equipped with a key lock box at or near the main 
entrance for such other location required by the fire chief or their designee:  

(1) Commercial or industrial structures protected by an automatic alarm system or 
automatic suppression system, or such structures that are secured in a manner 
that restricts access during an emergency;  

(2) Multi-family residential structures that have restricted access through locked doors 
and have a common corridor for access to the living units; and  

(3) Governmental structures and nursing care facilities.  

(b) All newly constructed structures subject to this section shall have the key lock box 
installed and operational prior to the issuance of an occupancy permit. All structures in 
existence on the effective date of the ordinance from which this section is derived and 
subject to this section shall have one year from the effective date of the ordinance from 
which this section is derived to have a key lock box installed and operational.  



  

4 

(1) The fire marshal shall designate the type of key lock box system to be 
implemented within the city and shall have the authority to require all 
structures to use the designated system.  

(2) The owner or operator of a structure required to have a key lock box shall, 
at all times, keep a key in the lock box that will allow for access to the 
structure.  

(3) The fire marshal shall be authorized to implement rules and regulations 
for the use of the lock box system.  

(4) Any person, entity, corporation, association, etc. who owns, operates, or 
maintains a structure, community, or complex subject to this section and 
in violation hereof shall be subject to the general penalty provisions found 
in section 1-12 of this Code. Further, during a response to an emergency, 
where access by emergency response vehicles are unable to enter a 
gated/controlled access, the city shall be held harmless from any damage 
to a gated/controlled access. Where access is not provided, the property 
owner may be billed by the City of Pooler for the time, material, and 
equipment use for emergency response.  

(5) All requests for the designated key lock box system shall be coordinated 
through the fire marshal and get approval for the location of the box on 
each site.  

(c) The owner or operator of a structure required to have a key lock box shall, at 
all times, keep a key inside the key lock box and maintain operation of the key 
lock box at all times. 

(d) Any person, entity, corporation, association, etc. who owns, operates, or 
maintains a structure, community, or complex subject to this section and in 
violation hereof shall be subject to the general penalty provisions found in 
section 1-12 of this Code. Further, during a response to an emergency, 
wherein access by emergency response vehicles are unable to enter a 
gated/controlled access, the City of Pooler shall be held harmless from any 
damage to a gated/controlled access. Where access is not provided, the 
property owner may be billed by the City of Pooler for the time, material, and 
equipment use for emergency response. 

(e) The fire chief or their designee shall designate the type and brand of key lock 
box system to be implemented within the City and shall have the authority to 
require all structures to use the designated system. The approved key lock 
box brand is the Knox Rapid Access System AKA Knoxbox. 

(f) All requests for a designated key lock box system shall be coordinated 
through the fire chief or their designee to obtain approval for the location of 
the key lock box on each site. 

(g) The fire chief or their designee shall be authorized to implement rules and 
regulations for the use of the designated key lock box system. 

(h) This article shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 
 

This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its adoption by the Mayor and City 
Council of Pooler, Georgia. 
 
FIRST READING:  _______ day of _____________________, __________ 
 



  

5 

SECOND READING: _______ day of _____________________, __________ 
 
ADOPTED:   _______ day of _____________________, __________ 
 

 
 

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Karen L. Williams, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 

__________________________________ 
Kiley Fusco, Clerk of Council 

 
 
 
 



 

PROCLAMATION

Karen L. Williams, Mayor

Kiley Fusco, Clerk of  Council

ATTEST:

International Friendship Day
WHEREAS, 

 
 
 WHEREAS, 

 WHEREAS,

WHEREAS, 
 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

International Friendship Day, observed on July 30 annually, is a celebration 
that promotes the values of friendship, solidarity, and mutual respect among 
individuals and communities worldwide; and

this day serves as a reminder of the importance of fostering friendships that 
transcend cultural, linguistic, and geographical boundaries, promoting peace 
and understanding among diverse peoples; and

friendships play a vital role in promoting social harmony, cooperation, and 
empathy, contributing to a more inclusive and compassionate society;

in recognition of the spirit of camaraderie and cooperation that defines this 
occasion, we acknowledge the efforts of local organizations such as S2S Facts 
Inc., which exemplify the values of friendship and through initiatives like their 
annual 5k Friendship Fun Run;

the Mayor and Council of the City of Pooler, Georgia hereby proclaim July 30  
International Friendship Day, acknowledging the profound impact of friendships 
on our lives and communities.

We encourage people of all ages and backgrounds to reach out to one another, 
forge new friendships, and strengthen existing bonds. Let us cherish and 
nurture these relationships, recognizing their power to bridge differences and 
promote mutual respect. May International Friendship Day inspire us to build 
a more interconnected world where friendships flourish, and where kindness, 
understanding, and empathy prevail.

I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the City of Pooler, Georgia 
to be affixed this day of July 15, 2024.



Native Development Group - Westside Commerce Center

On March 21, 2022, a rezoning request was approved by the City of Pooler Council for four (4) 
adjoining parcels within Westside Business Park to I-1, Industrial, light district.  A condition was 
placed on the rezoning that the applicant (Native Development Group) be required to obtain a 
permit from an outside agency (GDOT) to install a traffic signal on US Hwy 80 (SR26) at Westside 
Boulevard.  The condition stated that a Certificate of Occupancy would not be issued for the 
proposed building until said signal was installed and operational.

A warrant study was submitted to GDOT District 5 in July 2021.  Through multiple iterations, the 
warrant study was passed on to the Traffic Office in Atlanta for approval in February 2022.  Again, 
through multiple iterations and assistance from the City of Pooler, the warrant was approved by 
GDOT on March 21, 2022.  At this point design of the signal improvements commenced.

On February 27, 2023, design plans for the signal were submitted to District 5.  After multiple 
iterations of review and revisions, District 5 approval was obtained. The District 5 GDOT 
representatives then forwarded the plans to the Atlanta Transportation Management Center (TMC) 
on September 15, 2023 for their review and approval.  The TMC provided no response on these 
plans for weeks/months, and finally responding by questioning in mid-December, 2023 the already 
approved warrant assessment.  Most recently, we have been notified in January, 2024 that the 
Department does intend to issue the permit for the signal.  However, as of this date, February 12, 
2024 no notification has been received as to the formal acceptance of the signal which has delayed 
response to final GDOT comments, final design, bidding and awarding of the signal cost and 
infrastructure.

The developer has diligently pursued the permits from GDOT.  At this time, even if the permit 
was issued today, the signal could not be installed in time for the final inspection and CO issuance 
for the building which is tracking for May 31, 2024.   The developer instead offers to place a bond 
in the amount of $900,000 (current project cost estimate-support available upon request) with the 
City of Pooler for up to two years as support for its commitment to complete the signal and required 
infrastructure (road work etc.).  In the meantime, traffic from the project will be able to use the 
access provided by Columbia Drive and its new signal improvements as well as the existing right 
in right out (for autos only) on Highway 80 until such signal is installed.





 

 
1 
 

  
PLANNING & ZONING STAFF REPORT 

Map Amendment for 1405 Quacco Road from R-A to R-2A and R-4 
 

 

Project:  #A24-0081 

P&Z Meeting Date:  July 8, 2024 

Public Hearing Date:  July 15, 2024 

Applicant and Authorized Agent:  Earl Kenneth Davis/Steven Baker 

Parcel (PIN):  51009 02060 

Existing Zoning:  R-A (Residential – Agricultural) 

   

Zoning Action:  Map Amendment 

Request:  Request to amend the zoning map from R-A (Residential 
Agricultural) to R-2A (Two-Family Residential) and R- 4 
(Townhouses and Condominiums) 

   

Application Filed:  May 17, 2024 

Legal Notice Published:  June 30, 2024 

Sign Posted:  June 21, 2024 

Letters Mailed:  June 21, 2024 

   

Staff Recommendation:  Approval 

Planning & Zoning Commission:  After review of the criteria, P&Z recommends approval of the 
request. 

Recommended Motion:  “After review of the criteria, move for approval of the request.” 

   



  

2 

Background:  The subject site is referred to as 1405 Quacco Road. It is comprised 
of 1 parcel totaling approximately 125.6 acres in size.  It is zoned 
R-A (Residential - Agricultural). The existing use is a bore pit. 

The applicant is seeking to change the zoning from R-A (Residential 
– Agricultural) to R-2A (Two-Family Residential Dwelling District) 
and R-4 (Residential Townhouses and Condominums District). The 
other nearby properties are zoned  C-1(Light Commercial District), 
C-2 (Heavy Commercial) and R-A (Residential-Agricultural).The 
property is surrounded by a self-storage facility and undeveloped 
land. 

The Pooler 2040 Comprehensive Plan identifies this area within the 
Residential Homestead character area. The FLUM designates this 
site as Residential. 

Relevant Ordinances:  App. A, Art. IV, Sec. 5. R-2A Two-Family Residential Dwelling District 
and Sec.13.1. R-4 Townhouses and Condominums District 

   

Zoning Action Standards:  1. Is this request a logical extension of a zoning boundary which 
would improve the pattern of uses in the general area? 

• Yes, the request is a logical extension of the R-2A and 
R-4 zoning districts as it is consistent with the nearby 
residential uses. 

2. Is this spot zoning and generally unrelated to either existing 
zoning or the pattern of development of the area?  

• No, while there are no properties directly adjacent to 
the subject site zoned R-2A or R-4, the site is large 
enough that it would not be considered spot zoning if 
rezoned and it does generally coincide with the pattern 
of residential development in the area.  

3. Could traffic created by the proposed use or other uses 
permissible under the zoning sought traverse established 
single-family neighborhoods on minor streets, leading to 
congestion, noise, and traffic hazards? 

• No, the proposed use is located with access on Quacco 
Road. The proposed use may have interior roads that 
could be created with future residential development. 
The improvements to Quacco Road may help ensure 
any potential congestion, noise, and traffic hazards are 
mitigated. Any potential traffic impacts would have to 
be considered prior to final approval of any site or 
construction plans, if rezoned. 



  

3 

4. Will this request place irreversible limitations on the area as it 
is or on future plans for it? 

• No, the request would be consistent with adopted 
plans and policies for the area. The comprehensive 
plan and the future land use map identify the property 
as residential and the proposed rezoning would 
maintain a residential zoning district. 

5. Is there an imminent need for the rezoning and is the property 
likely to be used for the use requested? 

• The property is likely to be utilized as requested. The 
adjacent uses are residential and commercial. The City 
has experienced growth and further growth is 
anticipated in future years.   

6. Will the proposed use substantially conflict with existing 
density patterns in the zone or neighborhood? 

• No, the proposed rezoning would be consistent with 
that of the general area being used for residential 
development. 

7. Would the proposed use precipitate similar requests which 
would generate or accelerate adverse land use changes in the 
zone or neighborhood? 

• It is possible additional requests could be made to 
rezone other parcels in the vicinity to this zoning 
district as a lot of the surrounding area is undeveloped 
and there is nearby residential development. 

8. Will the action adversely impact adjacent or nearby properties 
in terms of: 

o Environmental quality or livability resulting from the 
introduction of uses or activities which would create traffic, 
noise, odor or visual hazards or the reduction of light and 
air that is incompatible with the established development 
pattern? 

• No, the request may not adversely impact the nearby 
properties as it relates to environmental quality, 
livability, or cause incompatible development. The 
current use of the site is a bore pit and if rezoned to 
permit residential uses, the impacts of the bore site 
use will be mitigated.    

o Property values, by rendering such properties less suitable 
and therefore less marketable for the type of development 
to which they are committed or restricted in order to 
promote the public welfare and protect the established 
development pattern? 



  

4 

• No, the request would not adversely impact the nearby 
properties as it relates to property values or make 
them less marketable because the proposed residential 
uses are compatible with the existing residential uses 
in the area. 

o Will the action create development opportunities of such 
increased intensity that stormwater runoff from the site 
cannot be controlled within previous limits, with [which] 
results in adverse impacts upon existing down-stream 
drainage problems or potential problems? 

• No, the request would not adversely impact the nearby 
properties as it relates to stormwater runoff. Any 
future site development proposed in the City will need 
to go through site plan review and approval to ensure 
items such as stormwater runoff are addressed on site 
so that down-stream drainage or off-site impacts do 
not occur.   

9. Will the action result in public service requirements such as 
provision of utilities or safety services which, because of the 
location or scale of the development, cannot be provided on 
an economic basis and therefore would create an actual 
burden to the public? 

• No, the proposed rezoning would not result in public 
service requirements that could create a burden on the 
public.  Any potential infrastructure improvements 
related to this rezoning would be the responsibility of 
the property owner and would not place a burden on 
the City. 

   

Conclusion:  Staff finds the request does comply with the required criteria for a 
zoning map amendment.  As such, staff recommends Approval of 
the request. 

   

Attachments:  A. Vicinity Map 

B. Zoning Map 

C. Application and Submittal Documentation 

 

   
 



This map was created using Latapult | www.latapult.com | Bigger Data Faster Maps Stronger Decisions

Vicinity Map -
1405 Quacco

Road
06/28/2024

 Parcels

Attachment A



This map was created using Latapult | www.latapult.com | Bigger Data Faster Maps Stronger Decisions

Zoning Map -
1405 Quacco

Road
06/27/2024

 Parcels

 Business/Commercial

 Industrial

 PUD

 Residential

Attachment B



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



© 2023 Microsoft Corporation © 2023 Maxar ©CNES (2023) Distribution Airbus DS

PHASE 3PHASE 3

PHASE 2PHASE 2 PHASE 1PHASE 1

PHASE 3PHASE 3

PHASE 1PHASE 1

PHASE 1PHASE 1

PHASE 1PHASE 1

 E
:\2

60
 M

is
c\

E
hr

ha
rd

t\2
02

3-
12

-0
6 

K
H

O
V

 D
av

is
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

14
05

 Q
ua

cc
o\

20
24

-0
7-

08
 Q

ua
cc

o 
R

d 
La

yo
ut

_w
et

la
nd

s 
fil

le
d 

- P
O

O
LE

R
.d

w
g

329 COMMERCIAL  D RIVE /S AVANNAH , GA  31406/T:912.354.4626

Established 1958

HUSSEY GAY  BELL

D
ec

em
be

r 
11

, 2
02

3 
- 5

:4
4 

P
M

   
  P

rin
te

d 
B

y:
 r

eh
rh

ar
dt

D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 M

A
Y

 N
O

T 
B

E
 R

E
P

R
O

D
U

C
E

D
 IN

 A
N

Y
 F

O
R

M
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
W

R
IT

TE
N

 P
E

R
M

IS
S

IO
N

20
24

A
LL

 R
IG

H
TS

 R
E

S
E

R
V

E
D

C
C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T

1405 QUACCO ROAD
DAVIS PROPERTY

LAYOUT EXHIBIT (WETLANDS FILLED)
DATE: JULY 9, 2024 SCALE: 1" = 150'

UPDATED FILE | RECEIVED 2024-07-11

AutoCAD SHX Text
POND

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
POND

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
LIFT STATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
DRAFT PROPERTY BOUNDARY TO SUBDIVIDE TOWNHOMES FROM DETACHED FOR REZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
DRAFT PROPERTY BOUNDARY TO SUBDIVIDE TOWNHOMES FROM DETACHED FOR REZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
QUACCO RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
QUACCO RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
POND

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
POND

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
POND

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
DRAFT PROPERTY BOUNDARY TO SUBDIVIDE TOWNHOMES FROM DETACHED FOR REZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
DRAFT PROPERTY BOUNDARY TO SUBDIVIDE TOWNHOMES FROM DETACHED FOR REZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
G R A P H I C   S C A L E

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
750'

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
375'

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
225'

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
300'

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
150'

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
75'

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
1" = 150'

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
20' TH PRODUCT

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
30' SF PRODUCT

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
40' SF PRODUCT

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
PRODUCT

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
MIX %

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
41%

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
23%

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
279

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
PHASE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
PHASE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
PHASE 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
36%

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
47



From: Neil McKenzie  
Sent: Wednesday, July 10, 2024 5:57 PM 
To: Kimberly Dyer <KDyer@pooler-ga.gov>; Nicole Johnson <njohnson@pooler-ga.gov> 
Cc: Steve Hall <shall@landmark24homes.com>; Bryan Wardlaw <bwardlaw@landmark24.com>; 
cchenowith@landmark24.com 
Subject: Jabot Amd 16 Continuance 
 
Hi all – please accept this request to “table” or continue this agenda item and public 
hearing until the 7/29/24 City Council meeting. 
 
Thank you! 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL: This electronic message and any attachments are the confidential property of 
Coleman Company. The information is intended only for the use of the person to whom it is addressed. Any other 
interception, copying, accessing, or disclosure of this message is prohibited. If you have received this message in error, 
please immediately notify Coleman Company and purge the message received. Do not forward this message without 
permission.  
 
 

  
  

        

NEIL MCKENZIE, PE 
Residential Group Leader 
  
O: 912-200-3041  
E: NMcKenzie@CCI-sav.com  
  
1480 Chatham Parkway Ste. 100  
Savannah, GA 31405  
 
www.CCI-sav.com  

mailto:KDyer@pooler-ga.gov
mailto:njohnson@pooler-ga.gov
mailto:shall@landmark24homes.com
mailto:bwardlaw@landmark24.com
mailto:cchenowith@landmark24.com
mailto:NMcKenzie@CCI-sav.com
http://www.cci-sav.com/
https://www.facebook.com/colemancompanysav
https://www.instagram.com/colemancompanyinc/
https://www.linkedin.com/company/coleman-company-inc/


 

 
1 
 

PLANNING & ZONING STAFF REPORT 
PUD Amendment for Jabot PUD 

 
 

Project:  #A24-0089 

P&Z Meeting Date:  June 24, 2024 

Public Hearing Date:  July 15, 2024 

Applicant and Authorized Agent:  Harmony Partners, LLC/Neil McKenzie 

Location (Address):  Harmony Subdivision, Memorial Drive, Pine Barren Road 

Parcel (PIN): 
 51023 01025 (Baker), 51010 01001A (Cross Creek), 51010 01068 

(Reclaimed Sprayfield/Amenity and 51010 01046 (Harmony 
Amenity) 

Existing Zoning:  R-1-A (Baker, Cross Creek and Reclaimed Sprayfield Amenity 
parcels) 

PUD (Harmony Amenity) 

   

Zoning Action:  PUD Amendment – Jabot PUD, Proposed Amendment #16  

Request:  Request to amend the Jabot PUD by adding the Baker Tract (Parcel 
1) to the PUD and assign single family residential use; and adding 
the remaining Cross Creek parcel to the PUD and assign single family 
residential use; and relocate Harmony Amenity from Parcel “D” to 
newly acquired Reclaimed Sprayfield Parcel and add parcel to PUD; 
and update the Jabot PUD masterplan to show previously approved 
townhome use on Harmony Parcel “W” and relocate “Optional 
Secondary Road” to correct location, from the Harmony Subdivision. 

   

Application Filed:  May 29, 2024 

Legal Notice Published:  June 9, 2024, will be revised and re-published on June 30,2024 

Sign Posted:  June 17, 2024, revised on June 18, 2024 

Letters Mailed:  June 11, 2024, will be revised and re-mailed June 21, 2024 

   

Staff Recommendation:  Approval 



  

2 

Planning & Zoning Commission:  After review of the criteria, P & Z recommends approval of the 
request. 

Recommended Motion:  “After review of the criteria, move for approval of the request.” 

   

Background:  The subject sites are approximately 133.34 acres in total. The Baker 
Tract (Parcel 1) is approximately 16.04 acres adjacent to Somersby 
and accessed from Pine Barren Road.  The Cross Creek Tract is 
approximately 89.88 acres. The newly acquired Reclaimed 
Sprayfield site is approximately 27.42 acres and will be the new 
Harmony Amenity site. The masterplan will be updated to reflect the 
previously approved residential townhome land use on Harmony 
Parcel “W” and re-label “Optional Secondary Access Road” at the 
correct location. 

The applicant is requesting the amendment to add property to the 
overall PUD and update the Harmony residential portion of the Jabot 
Tract Masterplan.  The proposed amendment includes: 

1. Add the parcel known as the Baker Tract Parcel 1 to the Jabot 
PUD and assign single family detached residential land use.  
This parcel is approximately 16 gross acres which would 
allow 64 maximum dwelling units (4 DU/gross acre). The 
planned density is 35 dwelling units. 

2. Add the parcel known as Cross Creek Remaining to the Jabot 
PUD and assign single family detached residential land use. 
The parcel is approximately 89.88 gross acres which would 
allow 360 maximum dwelling units (4 DU/gross acre). The 
planned density is 105 single family units. Harmony 
Subdivision maximum density is adjusted to 2,130 dwelling 
units and the total proposed adjusted to 1,215 dwelling units. 

3. Update Jabot Tract PUD Masterplan to relocate Harmony 
Amenity site from Tract “D” to new acquired location 
(Reclaimed Sprayfield) and add this parcel to the Jabot PUD.  
The addition of this parcel is excluded from density 
calculations. 

4. Update Jabot Tract PUD Masterplan to reflect previously 
approved residential townhome land use on Harmony Parcel 
“W” and re-label “Optional Secondary Access Road” at 
correct location. 

The Pooler 2040 Comprehensive Plan identifies this area within the 
PUD Mixed-Use character area.  The FLUM designates this site as 
Residential and Planned Development. 



  

3 

Relevant Ordinances:  Jabot PUD 

App. A, Art. IV, Table 4.1: Allowed Uses by Zoning District 

   

Zoning Action Standards:  1. Is this request a logical extension of a zoning boundary which 
would improve the pattern of uses in the general area? 

• Yes, the requested zoning would be a logical extension 
of a zoning boundary.  The request seeks to extend the 
Jabot PUD to include approximately 133 acres within 
the PUD itself.  The proposed designation would be 
generally compatible with the surrounding areas, 
where there is existing residential zoning located along 
Pine Barren Rd and adjacent to the existing Cross 
Creek subdivision. The addition of the Reclaimed 
Sprayfield to relocate the Harmony Amenity site is a 
logical extension of the PUD boundary. 

2. Is this spot zoning and generally unrelated to either existing 
zoning or the pattern of development of the area?  

• No, the request is not considered spot zoning.  The 
request would extend the Jabot PUD to property that 
is directly adjacent to PUD zoning and the nearby 
zonings include residential districts. 

3. Could traffic created by the proposed use or other uses 
permissible under the zoning sought traverse established 
single-family neighborhoods on minor streets, leading to 
congestion, noise, and traffic hazards? 

• It is possible that any proposed developments could 
create traffic; however, any new development would 
require meeting the traffic impact provisions related to 
a site plan to mitigate any impacts.  The Baker Tract 
Parcel 1 property only has access from Pine Barren Rd.   
As part of the Pine Barren Road Traffic Study 
performed by Kimley Horn all new development in this 
area should consider the recommendations listed in 
the study. An excerpt of the study has been provided 
by the applicant in Attachment D, page 50.  
Recommendations listed include extending the 
eastbound left-turn lane storage to a minimum of 150 
feet with a 100-foot taper.  The Baker Tract 
development access point should align with Parkside 
Lane, construct an exclusive eastbound right-turn 
lane, and construct an exclusive westbound left-turn 
lane. Construct a Restricted Crossing U-turn (RCUT) to 
prohibit left turns from the northbound and 
southbound approaches where the southbound left-
turns would U-turn at Somersby Boulevard and the 
northbound left-turns would U-turn at Pooler Parkway 



  

4 

or a future intermediate intersection. The Remaining 
Cross Creek parcel will have access via the existing 
subdivision and a possible road connection via the 
Harmony subdivision.  Additional congestion, noise, 
and traffic could rise to an unacceptable level if not 
mitigated appropriately and in a timely manner.  

4. Will this request place irreversible limitations on the area as it 
is or on future plans for it? 

• No, the properties are presently undeveloped and 
zoned residential. The planned development for 
residential and amenity uses would be appropriate at 
these locations.   

5. Is there an imminent need for the rezoning and is the property 
likely to be used for the use requested? 

• Yes, the properties are likely to be utilized as 
requested.  They are currently vacant, and the intent 
is to provide single family residential and amenity 
uses. 

6. Will the proposed use substantially conflict with existing 
density patterns in the zone or neighborhood? 

• No, the proposed development would not conflict with 
the existing density patterns in the vicinity and would 
be consistent with that of the general area related to 
land uses.   

7. Would the proposed use precipitate similar requests which 
would generate or accelerate adverse land use changes in the 
zone or neighborhood? 

• It is possible that similar requests could be made but 
these would be consistent with the recommended type 
of development for this area and would not generate 
adverse impacts. 

8. Will the action adversely impact adjacent or nearby properties 
in terms of: 

A. Environmental quality or livability resulting from the 
introduction of uses or activities which would create traffic, 
noise, odor or visual hazards or the reduction of light and 
air that is incompatible with the established development 
pattern? 

• No, the request should not adversely impact the 
nearby properties as it relates to livability or cause 
incompatibility with the established development 
pattern.   



  

5 

B. Property values, by rendering such properties less suitable 
and therefore less marketable for the type of development 
to which they are committed or restricted in order to 
promote the public welfare and protect the established 
development pattern? 

• No, the request would not adversely impact the nearby 
properties as it relates to property values or make 
them less marketable. 

C. Will the action create development opportunities of such 
increased intensity that stormwater runoff from the site 
cannot be controlled within previous limits, with [which] 
results in adverse impacts upon existing down-stream 
drainage problems or potential problems? 

• No, the request would not adversely impact the nearby 
properties as it relates to stormwater runoff. Any large 
site development proposed in the City will need to go 
through site plan review and approval to ensure items 
such as stormwater runoff are addressed on site so 
that down-stream drainage or off-site impacts do not 
occur.   

D. Will the action result in public service requirements such 
as provision of utilities or safety services which, because 
of the location or scale of the development, cannot be 
provided on an economic basis and therefore would create 
an actual burden to the public? 

• No, the proposed rezoning would not result in public 
service requirements that could create a burden on the 
public.  Any potential infrastructure improvements 
related to this development would be the sole 
responsibility of the developer and would not place a 
burden on the City. 

   

Conclusion:  Staff finds the request does comply with the required criteria for a 
zoning map amendment.  As such, staff recommends Approval of 
the request. 

   

Attachments:  A. Vicinity Map 

B. Zoning Map 

C. Proposed PUD Master Plan Map 

D. Application and Submittal Documentation 



  

6 

E. Letter of Opposition 

   
 



SAGIS Map Viewer

SAGIS

Local Roads

Major Roads

Parkways

Interstate

Local Roads

Major Roads

Parkways

Interstate

Property Boundaries (Parcels)

Parcels Outline

6/17/2024, 10:27:25 AM

0 0.35 0.70.17 mi

0 0.6 1.20.3 km

1:18,056

SAGIS
SAGIS |

ATTACHMENT A

njohnson
Highlight

njohnson_1
Highlight

njohnson_2
Highlight

njohnson_3
Highlight

njohnson_4
Highlight



ATTACHMENT B



POND
(TYP.)

POND
(TYP.)

E-1D

E-1C

E-1-B

E-1-A

6

E-2-B

C

B

A

GALLOWAY DR.

MEMORIAL BLVD.

D

A

C-1

DRAINAGE
CANAL

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

3

3

3

HARMONY

SOMERSBY

HARMONY
PARCEL W

HARMONY
PARCEL 3

PARCEL
C

HARMONY
TRACT D

TOWNHOMES

LOWES

HARMONY
TRACT B

TOWNHOMES

ARMSTRONG
 TRACT

(PARCEL 2A)

PARCEL
F

PARCEL
H

PARCEL
J

PARCEL
A

PARCEL
A-A

PARCEL
Y

PARCEL
Z

PARCEL
G

PARCEL
I

HARMONY
TRACT A

HEALTH CARE
CAMPUS

HARMONY
TRACT C

TOWNHOMES

PARCEL
X

PARCEL
B

PARCEL
E

BAKER TRACT
(PARCEL 2)

PARCEL
D

OPTIONAL
SECONDARY

ACCESS(C)

PARCEL D-D
SIGNAGE

ONLY

CROSS
CREEK

BAKER TRACT
(PARCEL 1)

HARMONY
AMENITY

JABOT TRACT
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD)

MASTER PLAN

PUD BOUNDARY INSET
AREA IN RED DE-ANNEXED FROM POOLER.
NOW PART OF UNINCORPORATED CHATHAM
COUNTY AS OF JAN 1, 2016

This  map  illustrates  a general  plan  of  the  development  which  is  for  discussion  purposes  only,
does  not  limit  or  bind  the  owner/developer,  and  is  subject  to  change  and  revision  without
prior  written  notice  to  the  holder.   Dimensions,  boundaries  and  position  locations  are  for
illustrative purposes only and are subject to an accurate survey and property description.

COPYRIGHT ©      THOMAS & HUTTON

50 Park of Commerce Way
 Savannah, GA  31405  •  912.234.5300

www.thomasandhutton.com

2024

0

GRAPHIC SCALE:  1 INCH =          FEET

300' 600'600' 1,200' 2,400'

600

WETLAND AREASNET UPLAND AREASGROSS AREAS

B-B
A-A

145.6 AC.

30.45 AC

112.4 AC

11.81 AC 18.64 AC

33.2 AC

13.88 AC17.21 AC 0.00 AC

BAKER TRACT 2
(Mid-Rise MF)
ARMSTRONG

TRACT
(PARCEL 2A)

13.72 AC. 8.21 AC. 5.51 AC.

28.09 AC. 21.70 AC. 6.39 AC.

C-C N/A±51.5 AC N /A

SOMERSBY

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

230

330

AMENDMENT NO. 16 | LAST REVISED: MAY 29, 2024

REVISION NOTES:
 9TH AMENDMENT REVISIONS  |  09/12/2019

1. ARMSTRONG TRACT 2A REVISED TO MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (MFR)
2. PARCEL A-A REVISED TO HEAVY COMMERCIAL (HC)

10TH AMENDMENT REVISIONS  |  05/21/2020
1. PARCEL G TRANSFERRED 4.66 COMMERCIAL ACRES TO THE ARMSTRONG TRACT

AND RECEIVED 0.19 MULTIFAMILY ACRES FROM THE ARMSTRONG TRACT. THE 0.19
MULTI-FAMILY ACRES WAS CONVERTED TO COMMERCIAL LAND USE. (GROSS
SWAP OF 4.47 ACRES)

11TH AMENDMENT REVISIONS  |  07/06/2020
1. PARCEL Y CONVERTED TO I-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL.
2. REMOVED THE 660 MULTIFAMILY UNITS PERMITTED FOR PARCEL Y FROM THE

JABOT PUD MASTER PLAN.

12TH AMENDMENT REVISIONS  |  DENIED BY CITY COUNCIL ON 11/16/2020

13TH AMENDMENT REVISIONS  |  DENIED BY CITY COUNCIL ON 12/21/2020

14TH AMENDMENT REVISIONS  |  IN PROGRESS BY PHILLIP MCCORKLE

15TH AMENDMENT REVISIONS  |  05/24/2021
1. PROVIDE OPTIONAL 2ND ACCESS TO TRACT “W”:
2. REVISE TOWNHOME DISTRIBUTION - UNIT COUNT TO REMAIN THE SAME
3. RELOCATE AMENITY AREA
4. IDENTIFIED PARCEL D-D, SIGNAGE ONLY

16TH AMENDMENT REVISIONS  |  03/12/2024
1. ADD BAKER TRACT PARCEL 1

GROSS AREA: 16.04 ACRES
NET UPLAND AREA: 9.7 ACRES
WETLAND AREA: 6.3 ACRES
LAND USE: SINGLE FAMILY DETACHED RESIDENTIAL

2. ADD CROSS CREEK REMAINING PARCEL
GROSS AREA: 89.88 ACRES
NET UPLAND AREA: 39.76 ACRES
WETLAND AREA: 50.12 ACRES
LAND USE: SINGLE FAMILY DETACHED RESIDENTIAL

3. RELOCATE HARMONY AMENITY SITE TO RECLAIMED
SPRAYFIELD PARCEL SHOWN AND ADD PARCEL TO PUD
GROSS AREA: 27.42 ACRES
NET UPLAND AREA: 27.42 ACRES
WETLAND AREA: N/A
LAND USE: AMENITY/OPEN SPACE

4. UPDATE PUD MAP TO REFLECT PREVIOUS REVISION
APPROVAL. PARCEL "W" IS SCHEDULED FOR
TOWNHOMES AND THE OPTIONAL SECONDARY ACCESS
ROAD IS FROM HARMONY SUBDIVISION.

5.63 AC11.53 AC17.16 ACB (COMMERCIAL)

F
E
D
C 22.19 AC

5.86 AC

3.64 AC

3.59 AC

0.00 AC

3.98 AC

2.12 AC

2.88 AC

22.19 AC

1.88 AC

1.52 AC

0.71 AC

PARCEL / TRACT WETLAND AREASNET UPLAND AREAS

31.05 AC

GROSS AREAS

11.58 AC 19.47 AC

DWELLING UNITSA

324A (Mid-Rise MF)

B (Mid-Rise MF)
N/A

964.34 AC 0.91 AC3.43 AC

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

J
I

20.68 AC

15.86 AC

9.18 AC

3.91 AC

11.5 AC

11.95 AC

WETLAND AREASNET UPLAND AREASGROSS AREAS

N/A

N/A

10.34 AC17.23 AC27.54 ACW

HARMONY
(INCLUDES PARCELS 3 & W)

385.3 AC 301.7 AC 83.6 AC

N/A

N/A

X 14.16 AC N/A N/A N/A

G 13.17 AC 13.17 AC 0.00 AC N/A

Y 54.85 AC 42.16 AC 11.69 AC N/A

H 8.56 AC 3.79 AC 4.77 AC N/A

Z 8.23 AC37.29 AC 29.06 AC N/A

PREPARED FOR:

DWELLING UNITSA DWELLING UNITSA

PARCEL SUMMARY NOTES:
A: Mid-Rise MF 28 DU/AC or Other @ 18 DU/AC (Max 1380 DU in PUD)
B: ACREAGE SHOWN IS NET DEVELOPMENT ACREAGE AND DOES NOT INCLUDE WETLANDS, WETLAND BUFFERS,

LAKES, RIGHT OF WAY, ETC...
C: OPTIONAL SECONDARY ACCESS POINT CONTINGENT UPON ENVIRONMENTAL PERMITTING - LOCATION SHOWN

ON MAP MAY VARY PENDING THIS OUTCOME.

LAND USE LEGEND
SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (SFR)

RESIDENTIAL - TOWNHOMES

MULTI FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (MFR)

HEAVY COMMERCIAL (HC)

HEAVY COMMERCIAL/COMMERCIAL
PROFESSIONAL/ HEAVY INDUSTRIAL
(HC/CP/HI)
COMMERCIAL PROFESSIONAL /
DISTRIBUTION (CP/D)

MEDICAL CAMPUS

JURISDICTIONAL
WETLAND

ZONING PARCEL NAME
(THIS IS SPECIFIC TO THE ZONING TRACT / PARCEL)

PARCEL C PLATTED BOUNDARY NAME
(REPRESENTS THE RECORDED BOUNDARY / SUBDIVISION PLAT)

E-1-A

LINE TYPE: LINE TYPE:

I-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL
DISTRICT

NOTE:
AMENDMENT 15 & 16 PUD MAP
PREPARED BY THOMAS & HUTTON ON
BEHALF OF COLEMAN COMPANY &
LANDMARK 24

SIGNAGE PARCELAMENITY SITE

D-D N/A±1.4 AC N /A N/A

PARCEL / TRACT PARCEL / TRACT

16.04 AC. 9.7 AC 6.3 ACBAKER TRACT 1 64 MAX

89.88 AC. 39.76 AC 50.12 ACCROSS CREEK 360 MAX

27.42 AC. 27.42 AC 0.00 AC N/AHARMONY AMENITY

ATTACHMENT C

http://www.thomasandhutton.com


POND
(TYP.)

POND
(TYP.)

E-1D

E-1C

E-1-B

E-1-A

6

E-2-B

C

B

A

GALLOWAY DR.

MEMORIAL BLVD.

D

A

C-1

DRAINAGE
CANAL

HARMONY

SOMERSBY

HARMONY
PARCEL W

HARMONY
PARCEL 3

PARCEL
C

HARMONY
TRACT D

TOWNHOMES

LOWES

HARMONY
TRACT B

TOWNHOMES

ARMSTRONG
 TRACT

(PARCEL 2A)

PARCEL
F

PARCEL
H

PARCEL
J

PARCEL
A

PARCEL
A-A

PARCEL
Y

PARCEL
Z

PARCEL
G

PARCEL
I

HARMONY
TRACT A

HEALTH CARE
CAMPUS

HARMONY
TRACT C

TOWNHOMES

PARCEL
X

PARCEL
B

PARCEL
E

BAKER TRACT
(PARCEL 2)

PARCEL
D

HARMONY
AMENITY

OPTIONAL
SECONDARY

ACCESS(C)

JABOT TRACT
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD)

MASTER PLAN

PUD BOUNDARY INSET
AREA IN RED DE-ANNEXED FROM POOLER.
NOW PART OF UNINCORPORATED CHATHAM
COUNTY AS OF JAN 1, 2016

This  map  illustrates  a general  plan  of  the  development  which  is  for  discussion  purposes  only,
does  not  limit  or  bind  the  owner/developer,  and  is  subject  to  change  and  revision  without
prior  written  notice  to  the  holder.   Dimensions,  boundaries  and  position  locations  are  for
illustrative purposes only and are subject to an accurate survey and property description.

COPYRIGHT ©      THOMAS & HUTTON

50 Park of Commerce Way
 Savannah, GA  31405  •  912.234.5300

www.thomasandhutton.com

2020

0

GRAPHIC SCALE:  1 INCH =          FEET

300' 600'600' 1,200' 2,400'

600
NORTH

PARCEL WETLAND AREASNET UPLAND AREASGROSS AREAS

B-B
A-A

145.6 AC.

30.45 AC

112.4 AC

11.81 AC 18.64 AC

33.2 AC

13.88 AC17.21 AC 0.00 AC

BAKER TRACT 2
(Mid-Rise MF)
ARMSTRONG

TRACT
(PARCEL 2A)

13.72 AC. 8.21 AC. 5.51 AC.

28.09 AC. 21.70 AC. 6.39 AC.

C-C N/A±51.5 AC N /A

SOMERSBY

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

230

330

AMENDMENT NO. 15 | LAST REVISED: MAY 24, 2021

REVISION NOTES:
 9TH AMENDMENT REVISIONS  |  09/12/2019

1. ARMSTRONG TRACT 2A REVISED TO MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (MFR)
2. PARCEL A-A REVISED TO HEAVY COMMERCIAL (HC)

10TH AMENDMENT REVISIONS  |  05/21/2020
1. PARCEL G TRANSFERRED 4.66 COMMERCIAL ACRES TO THE ARMSTRONG TRACT

AND RECEIVED 0.19 MULTIFAMILY ACRES FROM THE ARMSTRONG TRACT. THE 0.19
MULTI-FAMILY ACRES WAS CONVERTED TO COMMERCIAL LAND USE. (GROSS
SWAP OF 4.47 ACRES)

11TH AMENDMENT REVISIONS  |  07/06/2020
1. PARCEL Y CONVERTED TO I-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL.
2. REMOVED THE 660 MULTIFAMILY UNITS PERMITTED FOR PARCEL Y FROM THE

JABOT PUD MASTER PLAN.

12TH AMENDMENT REVISIONS  |  DENIED BY CITY COUNCIL ON 11/16/2020

13TH AMENDMENT REVISIONS  |  DENIED BY CITY COUNCIL ON 12/21/2020

14TH AMENDMENT REVISIONS  |  IN PROGRESS BY PHILLIP MCCORKLE

15TH AMENDMENT REVISIONS  |  05/24/2021
1. PROVIDE OPTIONAL 2ND ACCESS TO TRACT “W”:
2. REVISE TOWNHOME DISTRIBUTION - UNIT COUNT TO REMAIN THE SAME

3. RELOCATE AMENITY AREA

5.63 AC11.53 AC17.16 ACB (COMMERCIAL)

F
E
D
C 22.19 AC

5.86 AC

3.64 AC

3.59 AC

0.00 AC

3.98 AC

2.12 AC

2.88 AC

22.19 AC

1.88 AC

1.52 AC

0.71 AC

PARCEL WETLAND AREASNET UPLAND AREAS

31.05 AC

GROSS AREAS

11.58 AC 19.47 AC

DWELLING UNITSA

324A (Mid-Rise MF)

B (Mid-Rise MF)
N/A

964.34 AC 0.91 AC3.43 AC

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

J
I

20.68 AC

15.86 AC

9.18 AC

3.91 AC

11.5 AC

11.95 AC

PARCEL WETLAND AREASNET UPLAND AREASGROSS AREAS

N/A

N/A

10.34 AC17.23 AC27.54 ACW

HARMONY
(INCLUDES PARCELS 3 & W)

385.3 AC 301.7 AC 83.6 AC

N/A

N/A

X 14.16 AC N/A N/A N/A

G 13.17 AC 13.17 AC 0.00 AC N/A

Y 54.85 AC 42.16 AC 11.69 AC N/A

H 8.56 AC 3.79 AC 4.77 AC N/A

Z 8.23 AC37.29 AC 29.06 AC N/A

PREPARED FOR:

DWELLING UNITSA DWELLING UNITSA

PARCEL SUMMARY NOTES:
A: Mid-Rise MF 28 DU/AC or Other @ 18 DU/AC (Max 1380 DU in PUD)
B: ACREAGE SHOWN IS NET DEVELOPMENT ACREAGE AND DOES NOT INCLUDE WETLANDS, WETLAND BUFFERS,

LAKES, RIGHT OF WAY, ETC...
C: OPTIONAL SECONDARY ACCESS POINT CONTINGENT UPON ENVIRONMENTAL PERMITTING - LOCATION SHOWN

ON MAP MAY VARY PENDING THIS OUTCOME.

LAND USE LEGEND
SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (SFR)

RESIDENTIAL - TOWNHOMES

MULTI FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (MFR)

HEAVY COMMERCIAL (HC)

HEAVY COMMERCIAL/COMMERCIAL
PROFESSIONAL/ HEAVY INDUSTRIAL
(HC/CP/HI)
COMMERCIAL PROFESSIONAL /
DISTRIBUTION (CP/D)

MEDICAL CAMPUS

JURISDICTIONAL
WETLAND

ZONING PARCEL NAME
(THIS IS SPECIFIC TO THE ZONING TRACT / PARCEL)

PARCEL C PLATTED BOUNDARY NAME
(REPRESENTS THE RECORDED BOUNDARY / SUBDIVISION PLAT)

E-1-A

LINE TYPE: LINE TYPE:

I-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL
DISTRICT

NOTE:
AMENDMENT 15 PUD MAP PREPARED
BY THOMAS & HUTTON ON BEHALF
OF COLEMAN COMPANY &
LANDMARK 24

http://www.thomasandhutton.com
nmckenzie
Cloud+

nmckenzie_1
Cloud+
AMENDMENT 16 (1)ADD BAKER TRACT PARCEL 1 TO PUD

nmckenzie_2
Cloud+

nmckenzie_3
Cloud+
AMENDMENT 16 (2) ADD CROSS CREEK REMAINING PARCEL TO PUD

nmckenzie_4
Cloud+

nmckenzie_5
Cloud+
AMENDMENT 16 (3)RELOCATE HARMONY AMENITY FROM PARCEL D AND ADD PARCEL TO PUD

nmckenzie_6
Cloud+

nmckenzie_7
Cloud+
AMENDMENT 16 (4) SHOW PARCEL "W" AS TOWNHOMES AND RE-LABEL OPTIONAL ACCESS ROAD

nmckenzie_8
Text Box
16TH AMENDMENT REVISIONS |  3/12/2024    1.       ADD BAKER TRACT PARCEL 1              GROSS AREA: 16.04 ACRES               NET UPLAND AREA: 9.7 ACRES              WETLAND AREA:  6.3 ACRES                      LAND USE: SINGLE FAMILY DETACHED RESIDENTIAL    2.     ADD CROSS CREEK REMAINING PARCEL            GROSS AREA: 89.88 ACRES            NET UPLAND AREA: 39.76 ACRES            WETLAND AREA: 50.12 ACRES            LAND USE: SINGLE FAMILY DETACHED RESIDENTIAL    3.    RELOCATE HARMONY AMENITY SITE TO RECLAIMED            SPRAYFIELD PARCEL SHOWN AND ADD PARCEL TO PUD.           GROSS AREA: 27.42 ACRES           NET UPLAND AREA: 27.42 ACRES            WETLAND AREA: N/A           LAND USE: AMENITY/OPEN SPACE    4.    UPDATE PUD MAP TO REFLECT PREVIOUS REVISION             APPROVAL.  PARCEL "W" IS SCHEDULED FOR              TOWNHOMES AND THE OPTIONAL SECONDARY ACCESS            ROAD IS FROM HARMONY SUBDIVISION.

nmckenzie_9
Callout
OPTIONAL SECONDARY ACCESS ROAD LOCATION

nmckenzie_10
Cloud+

nmckenzie_11
Cloud+
AMENDMENT NO. 16  |  LAST REVISED MAY 29, 2024

nmckenzie_12
Cloud+

nmckenzie_13
Cloud+
AMENITY RELOCATED FROM PARCEL D



ATTACHMENT D



ATTACHMENT D



ATTACHMENT D



ATTACHMENT D



ATTACHMENT D



ATTACHMENT D



BAKER TRACT 

1. PIN 5-1023B-01-003
Tien-dat Trinh
105 Pine View Xing
Pooler, GA 31322

2. PIN 5-1023B-01-004
Wardlaw Investments, LLP
2702 Whatley Ave. Suite B1
Savannah, GA 31405

3. PIN 5-1023B-01-005
Daniel Luong
109 Pine View Xing
Pooler, GA 31322

4. PIN 5-1023B-01-006
Angelo G. Sojico
111 Pine View Xing
Pooler, GA 31322

5. PIN 5-1023B-01-007
Absalon A. Gomez
113 Pine View Xing
Pooler, GA 31322

6. PIN 5-1023B-01-008
Jamie J Smith Frazier
115 Pine View Xing
Pooler, GA 31322

7. PIN 5-1023B-01-009
Nguyen & Tran Phuoc & Phuong
117 Pine View Xing
Pooler, GA 31322

8. PIN 5-1023B-01-010
119 PINE VIEW PROPERTY, LLC
120 TAHOE DRIVE
POOLER, GA, 31322

9. PIN 5-1023B-01-011
Konev & Shapovalova Maxim & Ma
121 Pine View Xing
Pooler, GA 31322

10. PIN 5-1023B-01-012
Ricky Colon
123 Pine View Xing
Pooler, GA 31322
PIN 5-1023B-01-013
Joshua Ryan & Monica Willison

ATTACHMENT D



125 Pine View Xing 
Pooler, GA 31322 

11. PIN 5-1023B-01-014 
John D. Isbell 
127 Pine View Xing 
Pooler, GA 31322 

12. PIN 5-1023B-01-015 
JOELLA J. CONOVER, AS TRUSTEE 
127 SWIFT STREET 
SANTA CRUZ, CA, 95060 

13. PIN 5-1023B-01-051 
131 PINE VIEW, LLC 
2025 SW 20TH STREET BAY 101 
FORT LAUDERDALE, FL, 33315 

14. PIN 5-1023B-01-052 
Adam T. Crozier 
133 Pine View Xing 
Pooler, GA 31322 

15. PIN 5-1023B-01-053 
Patrick T. & Teresa L Lynch 
135 Pine View Xing 
Pooler, GA 31322 

16. PIN 5-1023B-01-016 
Michael Wilson & Kristin Wyn 
137 Pine View Xing 
Pooler, GA 31322 

17. PIN 5-1023B-01-017 
Vance L. & Regina Fuller 
139 Pine View Xing 
Pooler, GA 31322 

18. PIN 5-1023B-01-018 
Raymond C. Jr. & Barbara Rennert 
141 Pine View Xing 
Pooler, GA 31322 

19. PIN 5-1023B-01-019 
KICKLIGHTER ZACHARY KICKLIGHTER COURTNEY 
143 PINE VIEW XING 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

20. PIN 5-1023B-01-020 
Kiley Jo Michels 
145 Pine View Xing 
Pooler, GA 31322 

21. PIN 5-1023B-01-021 
SMITH, III MANNIE BENJAMIN 

ATTACHMENT D



147 Pine View Xing 
Pooler, GA 31322 

22. PIN 5-1023B-01-022 
Mahesh B & Ila M. Patel 
149 Pine View Xing 
Pooler, GA 31322 

23. PIN 5-1023B-01-023 
THOMPSON, SR. TRUIT WILLIAMS VIVI LASHAWN 
151 Pine View Xing 
Pooler, GA 31322 

24. PIN 5-1023B-01-024 
Knofcynski & Skyberg-Kbofczyns 
153 Pine View Xing 
Pooler, GA 31322 

25. PIN 5-1023B-01-025 
GONZALEZ & JESSOP ELMARIS & GARETH T* 
155 PINE VIEW XING 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

26. PIN 5-1023B-01-026 
Monica R. Battle 
157 Pine View Xing 
Pooler, GA 31322 

27. PIN 5-1023B-04-019 
Jeffery S. & Cheryl B. Hillis 
158 Hawthorne Trl. 
West End, NC 27576 

28. PIN 5-1023B-04-020 
NIEVES-SIFRE & CHAPARRO-FIGUREROA  
GERMAN L & CARMEN E* 
146 PINE VIEW XING 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

29. PIN 5-1023B-04-021 
AH4R PROPERTIES TWO, LLC,  
A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 
23975 PARK SORRENTO SUITE 300 
CALABASAS, CA, 91302 

30. PIN 5-1023B-04-022 
Asok Patel 
142 Pine View Xing 
Pooler, GA 31322 

31. PIN 5-1023B-04-023 
HALEY CHRISTL KAY 
140 PINE VIEW CROSSING 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

ATTACHMENT D



32. PIN 5-1023B-04-024 
Hung P & Ivy M Nguyen 
138 Pine View Xing 
Pooler, GA 31322 

33. PIN 5-1023B-04-025 
L.M.F. 1 RENTAL LLC 
45-05 50TH AVENUE, APT.A2 
FLUSHING, NY, 11377 

34. PIN 5-1023B-04-026 
Gwendolyn Walker-Brack 
134 Pine View Xing 
Pooler, GA 31322 

35. PIN 5-1023B-04-027 
AH4R Properties LLC 
23975 PARKER SORRENTO SUITE 300  
CALABASAS, CA 91302 

36. PIN 5-1023B-04-028 
A & S HOSPITALITY OF GA, INC. 
3 BREVARD COURT 
SAVANNAH, GA, 31410 

37. PIN 5-1023B-04-029 
Sandra D & Ronald Hamilton Sr. 
128 Pine View Xing 
Pooler, GA 31322 

38. PIN 5-1023B-04-030 
Jason R. Burns & Zaedra Shantri 
126 Pine View Xing 
Pooler, GA 31322 

39. PIN 5-1023B-04-031 
Howard L. & Louise H. Pipkin 
124 Pine View Xing 
Pooler, GA 31322 

40. PIN 5-1023B-04-032 
GARCIA JUAN GARCIA SOFIA 
122 Pine View Xing 
Pooler, GA 31322 

41. PIN 5-1023B-04-033 
Kenneth Wayne Jr. and Kr Saunders 
120 Pine View Xing 
Pooler, GA 31322 

42. PIN 5-1023B-04-034 
Givens & Moss-Givens Roosevelt 
118 Pine View Xing 
Pooler, GA 31322 

ATTACHMENT D



43. PIN 5-1023B-04-035 
Irvin M. Moore 
P.O. Box 553 
Pooler, GA 31322 

44. PIN 5-1023B-04-036 
Wardlaw Investments, LLP 
2702 Whatley Ave. Suite B1 
Savannah, GA 31405 

45. PIN 5-1011E-02-026 
Carriage Square Homes at Morgan Pines HOA 
22 Commerce Place 
Savannah, GA 31406 

46. PIN 5-1023-01-001 
MAYS, JR. WAYNE BARNARD MAYS SANDRA 
101 PINE VIEW CROSSING 
POOLER, GA, 31322 
 
AMENITY 
 

1. PIN 5-1010F-05-021 
GARVIN DOMINIQUE CAMPBELL LAMIKHAEL 
42 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

2. PIN 5-1010F-05-022 
HOAGLAND BRADLEY JAMES & LINDA 
44 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA 31322 

3. PIN 5-1010F-05-023 
RIOS, JR. ALBERTO 
46 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

4. PIN 5-1010F-05-024 
ELBERT KATRINE E & ROBERT E JR. 
100 STONE CHASE WAY 
SPRING LAKE, NC, 28390 

5. PIN 5-1010F-05-027 
STEVENSON BRIAN KEVIN 
50 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

6. PIN 5-1010F-05-028 
MANNING JERARD & CANDACE 
52 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 
 

ATTACHMENT D



7. PIN 5-1010F-05-029 
PAMPERIN RODNIE A & SHELLEY M 
56 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

8. PIN 5-1010F-05-030 
ROBERTS JAMES K & RHONDA C 
58 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

9. PIN 5-1010F-05-031 
HOLY SPIRIT COVENANT CHURCH INTERNATIONAL, INC. 
P.O. BOX 22006 
SAVANNAH, GA 31403 

10. PIN 5-1010F-05-032 
BALABAN ANTHONY J ETAL 
62 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA, 31312 

11. PIN 5-1010F-05-033 
MCMILLAN JOYCE A 
64 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

12. PIN 5-1010F-05-034 
SOO JHY-CHARM CHEN WEICHIH 
66 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

13. PIN 5-1010F-05-035 
NIXON YASMEEN C 
68 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

14. PIN 5-1010F-05-037 
BURROUGHS OMAR S & CHRIS 
72 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

15. PIN 5-1010F-05-038 
WILLIAMS & HASELDEN MICHAEL D & MONICA M 
74 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

16. PIN 5-1010F-05-039 
MCKOY WAYMAN MCKOY KATE 
76 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

17. PIN 5-1010F-05-040 
CASANOVA & GIERBOLINI JORGE GUSTAVO OTER O & C 
78 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

ATTACHMENT D



18. PIN 5-1010F-05-041 
MODICUE ALEX P & FABYOLLA 
2 SYMPHONY CT 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

19. PIN 5-1010F-05-042 
ORR JAPETH C SR & JESSICA M 
4 SYMPHONY CT 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

20. PIN 5-1010F-05-043 
TURK ASHLEY 
6 SYMPHONY CT 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

21. PIN 5-1010F-05-044 
EDRISHA THIVANKA & NERANDIKA LAYANVI 
8 SYMPHONY CT 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

22. PIN 5-1010F-05-045 
SCHRODER DANIEL MICHAEL SCHROEDER SHANNON 
13 SYMPHONY CT 
POOLER, GA 31322 

23. PIN 5-1010F-05-046 
HARMON JOSIE NICOLE 
11 SYMPHONY CT 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

24. PIN 5-1010F-05-047 
PARKER ESHA 
9 SYMPHONY CT 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

25. PIN 5-1010F-05-048 
ALACAN NICOLAS ALACAN COURTNEY 
7 SYMPHONY CT 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

26. PIN 5-1010F-05-049 
NGUYEN & TRAN MY THI & LUC 
5 SYMPHONY CT 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

27. PIN 5-1010F-05-050 
RIVERS DARIN M & CASSANDRA M 
3 SYMPHONY CT 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

28. PIN 5-1010F-05-051 
THOMAS W. BURKART AND KAREN D. BURKART, AS TRUSTEES 
155 HAMPSHIRE RD 
SAVANNAH, GA, 31410 

ATTACHMENT D



29. PIN 5-1010F-05-052 
JACKSON JOHNITA 
80 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA 31322 

30. PIN 5-1010F-05-054 
PATEL NILESH & PATEL ALPABEN 
82 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA 31322 

31. PIN 5-1010F-05-055 
PHAM ELIZABETH 
84 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA 31322 

32. PIN 5-1010F-05-056 
SULLIVAN LAWANDA MARIEANN 
86 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA 31322 

33. PIN 5-1010F-05-057 
CERNA LUIS & CERNA FRANCES PEREZ 
88 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA 31322 

34. PIN 5-1010F-05-058 
FIELDS JOSEPH 
90 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA 31322 

35. PIN 5-1010F-05-059 
NGUYEN ANH NGUYEN DAO T 
92 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA 31322 

36. PIN 5-1010F-05-060 
STRINGER JODFREY H & STRINGER CYNTHIA E 
94 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA 31322 

37. PIN 5-1010F-05-061 
CAMPBELL TYLER 
96 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA 31322 

38. PIN 5-1010F-05-062 
BUTLER MICHAEL A & BUTLER WANDA J 
98 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA 31322 

39. PIN 5-1010F-05-063 
DURAN MANUEL P. 
100 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

ATTACHMENT D



40. PIN 5-1010F-05-064 
MAI TRUNG NGUYEN THI LE HA 
102 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA 31322 

41. PIN 5-1010F-05-065 
FOOTE JODI-KAYE ALECIA 
104 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA. 31322 

42. PIN 5-1010F-05-066 
GROOVER, IV JAMES DANIEL 
106 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

43. PIN 5-1010F-05-067 
LE THI H & TRAN SOAN V 
108 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA 31322 

44. PIN 5-1010F-05-069 
HARMONY PARTNERS, LLC 
2702 WHATLEY AVENUE 
SAVANNAH, GA, 31404 

45. PIN 5-1010F-05-070 
HEARN MARK ANTHONY 
112 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA 31322 

46. PIN 5-1010F-05-071 
DELSOL PETER DELSOL SHARON 
114 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA 31322 

47. PIN 5-1010F-05-073 
MOORE LORENZO 
116 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

48. PIN 5-1010F-05-074 
WANG YING 
118 MELODY DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 
 
CROSS CREEK 
 

1. PIN 5-1010C-01-073 
SEBASTIAN-HOOKS LAURA JEAN 
158 SILVERTON RD 
POOLER, GA 31322 

2. PIN 5-1010C-01-074 

ATTACHMENT D



REESE JOEL SCOTT REESE ANNA MARIE 
491 LUNA BELLA LANE 
NEW SMYRNA BEACH, FL, 32168 

3. PIN 5-1010C-01-075 
ROBINSON YANCY 
154 SILVERTON RD 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

4. PIN 5-1010C-01-076 
PINERO HAYDEE G 
152 SILVERTON RD 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

5. PIN 5-1010C-01-077 
FORD TOMMYL JR 
150 SILVERTON RD 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

6. PIN 5-1010D-01-012 
CONNER MARVA J & JAMES C 
263 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

7. PIN 5-1010D-01-011 
CARACOL ALAN 
261 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

8. PIN 5-1010D-01-010 
CHAMBLEE WILLIAM B 
259 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

9. PIN 5-1010D-01-009 
HENDRIX JOHNNY S 
257 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

10. PIN 5-1010D-01-008 
WASHINGTON VICTOR 
33 NEPHEW ST 
SAVANNAH, GA, 31405 

11. PIN 5-1010D-01-007 
AMH 2014-2 BORROWER LP 
23975 PARKER SORRENTO SUITE 300 
CALABASSAS, CA, 91302 

12. PIN 5-1010D-01-006 
HULETT SHONNA M 
251 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

13. PIN 5-1010D-01-005 

ATTACHMENT D



AMH 2014-2 BORROWER LP 
23975 PARKER SORRENTO SUITE 300 
CALABASSAS, CA, 91302 

14. PIN 5-1010D-01-004 
BECKUM CASSANDRA B. LEVERETT KEVIN K. 
247 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

15. PIN 5-1010D-01-003 
KEOUGH MARK SCHULDT SAMANTHA 
245 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

16. PIN 5-1010D-01-002 
JOHNSON DARRYL L & MARSHA G 
243 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

17. PIN 5-1010D-01-001 
HIGGINS JOSEPH & RENEE D 
241 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

18. PIN 5-1010A-05-043 
GARCIA PERRY 
239 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

19. PIN 5-1010A-05-042 
TRABUE RENEE 
237 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

20. PIN 5-1010A-05-041 
MOON KEVIN 
235 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

21. PIN 5-1010A-05-040 
JONES VERONICA 
233 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

22. PIN 5-1010A-05-039 
BURRAGE ROBERT EDWARD 
231 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

23. PIN 5-1010A-05-038 
BRANTLEY JOHN C 
229 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 
 

ATTACHMENT D



24. PIN 5-1010A-05-037 
JAMES JIM A 
227 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

25. PIN 5-1010A-05-036 
AH4R PROPERTIES LLC 
23975 PARK SORRENTO, SUITE 300 
CALABASSAS, CA, 91302 

26. PIN 5-1010A-05-035 
AH4R PROPERTIES LLC 
23975 PARK SORRENTO, SUITE 300 
CALABASSAS, CA, 91302 

27. PIN 5-1010A-05-034 
HUMBLE JOHN & JAN E 
221 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

28. PIN 5-1010A-05-033 
CHIPP WALTER 
219 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

29. PIN 5-1010A-05-032 
HARRIS ERNEST ROBERT & VIVIAN 
217 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

30. PIN 5-1010A-05-031 
HUDGINS BRYCE ALLEN & SARAH LOUISE 
215 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

31. PIN 5-1010A-05-030 
KAVIRANTA PADMA D & HEMAMALI D 
213 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

32. PIN 5-1010A-05-029 
NELSON JERAD 
211 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

33. PIN 5-1010A-05-028 
TURNER KRISTEN S 
209 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

34. PIN 5-1010A-05-011 
DOCTOR BERNARD AND YOLANDA O 
1622 PICKFORD ST 
FLORENCE, SC, 29501 

ATTACHMENT D



35. PIN 5-1010A-05-010 
JONES MARK D 
205 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

36. PIN 5-1010A-05-009 
ELKINS, JR JEFFERY LEE 
203 LONGLEAF CT 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

37. PIN 5-1010A-05-001 
HARRIS DWAYNE M & LISA A 
1 BROWNING DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

38. PIN 5-1010A-05-002 
WALKER CARRIE E 
3 BROWNING DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

39. PIN 5-1010A-05-003 
REITER CAMILLE DONALDSON 
5 BROWNING DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

40. PIN 5-1010A-05-004 
LINK TAMMY E 
7 BROWNING DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

41. PIN 5-1010A-05-005 
BROWN MICHAEL BERNARD SR 
9 BROWNING DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

42. PIN 5-1010A-05-006 
JACKSON KIMBERLY 
11 BROWNING DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

43. PIN 5-1010A-05-007 
WALKER THIRKIELD & LESA 
13 BROWNING DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

44. PIN 5-1010A-05-008 
TRAN HONGNHUNG T. CHI CAO TRAN & VY CAO TRAN 
112 REDFIELD DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

45. PIN 5-1010A-05-012 
MARSHALL FELTON L & WILLA H 
114 REDFIELD DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

ATTACHMENT D



46. PIN 5-1010A-05-013 
BIRDTAIL GEORGE BIRDTAIL CARLA JUNE 
116 REDFIELD DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

47. PIN 5-1010A-05-015 
SHELEY DWIGHT B & DEBORAH W 
117 REDFIELD DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

48. PIN 5-1010A-05-016 
COX COURTNEY 
115 REDFIELD DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

49. PIN 5-1010A-05-017 
GILLIAM AMY L 
11 REDFIELD DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

50. PIN 5-1010A-05-018 
BUTLER JAMES W JR & GISELA 
111 REDFIELD DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

51. PIN 5-1010A-05-019 
NELSON AVA S & BRUCE J 
109 REDFIELD AVE 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

52. PIN 5-1010A-05-021 
SINGLETON HENRY LEE 
105 REDFIELD DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

53. PIN 5-1010A-05-022 
BROWN KREG M SR 
103 REDFIELD DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

54. PIN 5-1010A-05-023 
STEVENS LINDA P 
101 REDFIELD DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

55. PIN 5-1010A-05-024 
FIELDS DEMLA 
23 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

56. PIN 5-1010A-05-025 
PHILIP MCCRAY AS TRUSTEE OF THE PHILIP MCCRAY REVOCABLE FAMILY TRUST DATED MAY 9 
109 CROSS CREEK DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

ATTACHMENT D



57. PIN 5-1010A-05-026 
PATEL JAIMINI R 
111 CROSS CREEK DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

58. PIN 5-1010A-05-027 
PATEL ALKESH & BHAVNA 
201 CROSS CREEK LN 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

59. PIN 5-1010A-06-001 
WRIGHT LEONARD A 
110 MANOR ROW 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

60. PIN 5-1010A-06-002 
CRAIG ZACHARY R. 
119 CROSS CREEK RD 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

61. PIN 5-1010A-06-003 
CRAFT FRANKLIN BRADDY & PEGGY 
121 CROSS CREEK DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

62. PIN 5-1010A-06-004 
FRAZIER PERCY LEE & SABRINA 
123 CROSS CREEK DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

63. PIN 5-1010A-06-019 
THOMPSON JANICE OLIVIA LEE 
125 CROSS CREEK DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

64. PIN 5-1010A-06-006 
SPIVEY QUINCY 
127 CROSS CREEK DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

65. PIN 5-1010A-06-007 
GRESHAM-SIMMONS PAPRICE 
129 CROSS CREEK DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

66. PIN 5-1010A-06-008 
GOMEZ ABSALON ARNOLDO 
201 SPANTON CRESCENT 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

67. PIN 5-1010A-06-009 
GARDINER LUKE 
133 CROSS CREEK DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

ATTACHMENT D



68. PIN 5-1010A-06-010 
GRIFFIN ADRIAN D 
135 CROSS CREEK DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

69. PIN 5-1010A-06-011 
ELLISON COURY & SHIKEARA 
137 CROSS CREEK DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

70. PIN 5-1010A-06-012 
THOMAS DRYEL & ROSA H 
139 CROSS CREEK DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

71. PIN 5-1010A-06-013 
WALLACE & WILLIAMS MARIA T & ALEXANDER JR 
5 CROSS CREEK CT 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

72. PIN 5-1010A-06-014 
BADR OMARSAMIR MOHAMMED 
7 CROSS CREEK CT 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

73. PIN 5-1010A-06-015 
CARTER DELORES 
9 CROSS CREEK 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

74. PIN 5-1010A-06-016 
POOL TRAVIS A. VITOLS BRENNAN A 
6 CROSS CREEK CT 
POOLER. GA, 31322 

75. PIN 5-1010A-06-017 
BAGNOLL ANTHONY A 
4 CROSS CREEK CT 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

76. PIN 5-1010A-06-018 
AH4R PROPERTIES LLC 
23975 SORRENTO SUITE 300 
CALABASSAS, CA, 91302 

77. PIN 5-1010A-07-021 
LEE OK HUI 
142 CROSS CREEK RD 
POOLER, GA 31322 

78. PIN 5-1010A-07-020 
HARDEN STEWART D & PAULA 
140 CROSS CREEK DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

ATTACHMENT D



79. PIN 5-1010A-07-019 
JONES DAVID E & WON KYOUNG 
138 CROSS CREEK DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

80. PIN 5-1010A-07-018 
FORREST CHARLES W & CAROL W 
136 CROSS CREEK DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

81. PIN 5-1010A-07-017 
SWAIN DANIEL 
134 CROSS CREEK DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

82. PIN 5-1010A-07-016 
BROOKSIE BEAR INVESTMENTS, LLC 
3 PINEBROOK CT 
SAVANNAH, GA, 31405 

83. PIN 5-1010A-07-015 
COCHRAN KELLYE ELIZABETH 
156 WOODYARD RD 
BROOKLET, GA, 30415 

84. PIN 5-1010A-07-014 
ROACH MATTHEW STEPHEN 
9 ALTHEA PKWY 
SAVANNAH, GA, 31405 

85. PIN 5-1010A-07-013 
RAMIREZ JOSE R 
126 CROSS CREEK DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

86. PIN 5-1010A-07-012 
BITTER CHARLES S 
124 CROSS CREEK DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

87. PIN 5-1010A-07-011 
COASTAL EXECUTIVE REAL ESTATE GROUP, LLC 
920 MORGAN’S CORNER SUITE E 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

88. PIN 5-1010A-07-010 
FONTANEZ & SAMPSON BRIAN A & SHERRIDAN K 
120 CROSS CREEK RD 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

89. PIN 5-1010A-07-009 
JOHNSON MAMIE H 
118 CROSS CREEK DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

ATTACHMENT D



90. PIN 5-1010A-07-008 
FENNELL TRAVIS 
116 CROSS CREEK DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

91. PIN 5-1010A-07-007 
DEMBY LOUISE B 
114 CROSS CREEK DR 
POOLER, GA 31322 

92. PIN 5-1010A-07-006 
HATFIELD JESSICA LYNN DODGE STEVEN RYAN 
112 CROSS CREEK DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

93. PIN 5-1010A-07-005 
DYER JOSEPH F & CATHY L 
110 CROSS CREEK DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

94. PIN 5-1010A-07-004 
HAGEN PATRICIA W HAGAN EARNEST 
108 CROSS CREEK DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

95. PIN 5-1010A-03-040 
AIKEN CEDRIK 
106 REDFIELD DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

96. PIN 5-1010A-03-053 
SHEPPARD, JR. LARRY GENE & WHITEHEAD LAURENCE RAIMOND 
108 REDFIELD DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

97. PIN 5-1010A-03-042 
POLOTE KIM MICHAEL 
110 REDFIELD DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

98. PIN 5-1010A-03-043 
THORNBURG JEFFREY R & KAREN L 
16 BROWNING DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

99. PIN 5-1010A-03-044 
SCOTT ANTHONY R 
14 BROWNING DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

100. PIN 5-1010A-03-045 
LEBLANC ARTHUR J & MARIE A 
12 BROWNING DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

ATTACHMENT D



101. PIN 5-1010A-03-046 
BURNSED MICHAEL D SR & VELINDA D 
10 BROWNING DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

102. PIN 5-1010A-03-047 
PAYTOE GEE T. 
8 BROWNING DR 
POOLER, GA 31322 

103. PIN 5-1010A-03-048 
PARKER ELIJAH JR 
6 BROWNING DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

104. PIN 5-1010A-03-049 
MYERS RICHARD LOUIS 
4 BROWNING DR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

105. PIN 5-1010A-03-050 
WALKER PATRICK C & SHERRY C 
123 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

106. PIN 5-1010A-03-023 
HOLDEN SHENANDOAH MICHELLE 
202 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

107. PIN 5-1010A-03-024 
BENNETT XUAN LE BENNETT LARRY MARTIN 
204 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

108. PIN 5-1010A-03-025 
ILLINGWORTH DAVID A. & MARY 
206 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

109. PIN 5-1010A-03-026 
WEBSTER KENNETH 
208 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

110. PIN 5-1010A-03-027 
ARTIS CICELY M & JOSHUA 
210 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

111. PIN 5-1010A-03-028 
BOYD ROBERT 
212 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

ATTACHMENT D



112. PIN 5-1010A-03-029 
GOERING KENT L. 
411 MAGNOLIA AVE 
ST SIMONS ISLAND, GA, 31522 

113. PIN 5-1010A-03-030 
LEWIS SANDRA 
PO BOX 1436 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

114. PIN 5-1010A-03-031 
EASON BRENDA & EASON MICHAEL A 
218 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

115. PIN 5-1010A-03-032 
SHUFORD TOKYA BUTLER 
220 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

116. PIN 5-1010A-03-033 
FIELDS RICKY 
2051 36TH ST APT 135 
GRAND FORKS, ND, 58201 

117. PIN 5-1010A-03-034 
DANIEL REUDAL A & VERONICA SMALLS 
228 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

118. PIN 5-1010A-03-035 
NIENKE SCOTT & NIENKE SYBIL 
230 LONG LEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

119. PIN 5-1010D-02-001 
SWAN CAROLINE M & MARVIN 
232 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

120. PIN 5-1010D-02-002 
STECKROTH CHRISTOPHER 
234 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

121. PIN 5-1010D-02-009 
DUBOIS MICHELLE EDENFIELD 
15326 GEORGIA HWY 169 
CLAXTON, GA, 30417 

122. PIN 5-1010D-02-010 
ANDINO RENE S & IRIS M 
248 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

ATTACHMENT D



123. PIN 5-1010D-02-011 
MORALES BASILO J 
250 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

124. PIN 5-1010D-02-012 
DOVE SCOTTY G & WENDY L 
252 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

125. PIN 5-1010D-02-013 
KING SHANNON R 
254 LONGLEAF CIR 
POOLER, GA, 31322 

ATTACHMENT D



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Jabot Tract PUD 

Amendment No. 16 
Pooler, Georgia 

 

Prepared for:  Harmony Partners, LLC 

c/o Foram Group 

 

Prepared by:  Thomas & Hutton and Coleman 

Company 

 
J-25014 

 
May 29, 2024 

 
 

 

 

ATTACHMENT D



 

- 1 - 

 
I. Jabot PUD  
 

The Jabot Tract is master planned as a Planned Unit Development ("PUD") in accord 

with the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pooler, Georgia.  As part of its submission the 

site developer, Foram Group, Inc., submitted Development Standards establishing zoning 

districts within the planned community.  On September 5, 2000 those Development 

Standards and corresponding PUD map were adopted by the City of Pooler.  

 

The Jabot PUD has been amended as summarized below; 

 

1. Amendment No. 1 to the PUD, approved by the City of Pooler on March 4, 2002 

defined previously undefined land uses of property incorporated into the PUD.  

Included in this amendment was the designation of the Harmony Tract as R-1A 

(Single Family Residential). 

 

2. Amendment No. 2 to the PUD, approved by the City of Pooler on July 6, 2004 re-

zoned and incorporated portions of the Hugh Armstrong Tract (Somersby) 

changing its zoning from multi-family to single-family residential in order to 

develop Somersby  

 (formerly known as Barren Pointe).   

 

3. Amendment No. 3 to the PUD, approved by the City of Pooler on November 1, 

2004, incorporated The Harmony Tract master plan, established Development 

Standards for the Harmony Tract, and the change in zoning of Parcel J from 

single-family residential to heavy commercial.   

 

4 Amendment No. 04 to the PUD, approved by the City of Pooler on July 5, 2005 

updated land use locations and development standards for the Harmony Tract. 

Parcel C-C (48 ac.) of adjacent property was added to the PUD under the 

Harmony designation as single family homes. Harmony Tract A land use was 

changed from single family town-homes to a Health Care / Medical Campus use. 

Health Care Campus development standards were defined. Harmony Tract B, C, 

and D were designated as town-home land uses. The development standards for 

town-homes were incorporated. Parcel W of the original Jabot PUD was 

incorporated into the Harmony designation. A small, one (1) acre upland adjacent 

to I-95 labeled Parcel D-D was designated as heavy commercial restricted for 

signage use only.  

 

5 Amendment No. 5 to the PUD, approved by the City of Pooler on December 15, 

2008 included further updates to the Harmony master plan by showing a single-

family lot layout of Parcel 3 and Parcel W. The original PUD master plan showed 

all the Harmony project area as a single-family land use with an allowable 

development density of 4 units per acre allowing the 358 acre Harmony project an 

allowable density of 1432 dwelling units. The updated Harmony master plan 

ATTACHMENT D



 

- 2 - 

indicates approximately 1070 units providing a gross development density at 3 

dwelling units per acre. The Harmony project will have access from Quacco road 

and Memorial Boulevard to Pooler Parkway. The Harmony project includes 

approximately 570 single family lots and 500 town-home units. A seven (7) acre 

amenity site is proposed for all home owners within the Harmony project to 

access. The amenity site may include a fishing pond, pavilion, pool, tennis courts, 

and playground area. 

 

6.  Amendment No. 06 to the PUD, approved by the City of Pooler on October 5, 

2015 included; 1.) incorporating the 24.89 acre (8.96 net acres) Parcel 2 Baker 

Tract into the PUD, designating the land use as Multi-Family Residential, 2.) 

incorporating the 21.73 acre (17.17 net acres) Parcel 2A of the Armstrong Tract 

into the PUD, keeping the land use designation as Heavy Commercial, 3.) 

revising the land use designation of Parcel “B” to allow the net acreage adjacent 

to Pooler Parkway and a portion adjacent to the existing pond as Heavy 

Commercial, and 4.) added development standards for Mid-Rise Multi-Family 

residential development for up to 4 stories and designate the Baker Tract Parcel 2, 

Parcel A and portions of Parcel B as designations for the mid-rise multi-family 

land use.  The Jabot PUD allows a maximum of 7,230 residential dwelling units 

of which 1,380 dwelling units may be multi-family.  This amendment maintained 

the original cap, although additional property was added to the PUD. 

 

7. Amendment No. 07 to the PUD, approved by City Council on October 7, 2019, 

deleted Section III. E(2) and added that signs and entry standards are to be 

governed by the City of Pooler sign ordinance. 

 

8. Amendment No. 08 to the PUD, approved by City Council on December 02, 

2019, updated the Harmony Portion of the Jabot Tract PUD Master Plan to revise 

the Master Plan to include townhouse lots within Parcel W.  The original PUD 

master plan showed all of the Harmony project area as a single family land use 

with an allowable development density of 4 units per acre.  Amendment No. 04 

converted approximately 32 acres to a Health Care Campus (HCC).  The total 

acreage of the Harmony project is approximately 385 acres.  Excluding the 32 

acre Health Care Campus, the remaining 353 acres of the Harmony project would 

have an allowable density of 1,412 dwelling units.  This amendment resulted in 

the Harmony PUD containing approximately 1,101 units.  The gross development 

density is 3.2 dwelling units per acre.  Following is a table for clarification. 

 

Harmony Master Plan Density Calculations 

  Acreage Summary: 

  Total Harmony Acreage   385.3 Acres 

  Tract A – Health Care Campus  32.3  Acres 

  Remaining Harmony Acreage   353.0 Acres 

 

  Allowable Density Summary: 

  Remaining Harmony Acreage   353.0 Acres 

ATTACHMENT D



 

- 3 - 

Harmony Master Plan Density Calculations 

  Allowable Gross Development Density 4.0  Units/Acre 

  Allowable Approved Units   1,412  Units 

 

  Proposed Density Summary: 

  Remaining Harmony Acreage   353.0 Acres 

  Proposed Single Family Units  504 Units 

  Proposed Townhomes    597 Units 

  Total Proposed Units    1,101 Units 

  Total Proposed Density   3.2 Units/Acre 

 

9. Amendment No. 09 to the PUD, approved by City Council on January 21, 2020, 

consisted of the of the following modifications: 

 

1. Revise the Jabot PUD Master Plan to change the use of the Armstrong Tract (Parcel 

2A) from Heavy Commercial (HC) to Multi Family Residential (MFR) and allocate 

330 dwelling units to this tract.  As part of this revision, the boundaries of this tract 

and the adjacent Tract G will be adjusted also.  The result is an increase in size of the 

Armstrong Tract (Parcel 2A) by 1.89 acres (Gross), and a corresponding decrease to 

Tract G.  117 Units were removed from Parcel Y, while 213 Units were removed 

from Parcel A-A to account for this re-allocation to the Armstrong Tract (Parcel 2A) 

[117 + 213 = 330].  The total maximum Multi Family Residential (MFR) density will 

remain at 1,380 DUs. 

 

2. Revise EX02, Sign Location Exhibit, to depict the proposed Directory Sign location 

at the intersection of Pooler Parkway/Memorial Drive from the East side of Pooler 

Parkway to the West side.  

 

10. Amendment No. 10 to the PUD, approved by City Council on July 6, 2020, consisted of 

the of the following modifications: 

 

1. Revise the Jabot PUD Master Plan to amend the boundary of the Armstrong Tract 

(Parcel 2A) to reflect a larger acreage for this parcel, and a correspondingly smaller 

acreage for the adjacent parcel G.  This boundary revision to the Armstrong Tract 

(Parcel 2A) is being increased to accommodate a proposed site plan for this parcel.   

The result is an increase in size of the Armstrong Tract (Parcel 2A) by 4.47 acres 

(Gross), and corresponding decrease to Tract G.  There is no increase in density.  It 

shall remain at 330 Multi Family Residential (MFR) DUs. 

 

2. Revise item III.C of the Jabot PUD to incorporate a reduction of the City of Pooler’s 

minimum off-street parking requirements for Multifamily Residential (MFR) use 

only.  This reduction is being requested based upon previous project experience and 

to allow for a reduction in asphalt to accommodate increased green space and 

pedestrian connectivity strategies. 

 

 

ATTACHMENT D



 

- 4 - 

 

11. Amendment No. 11 to the PUD, approved by City Council on July 6, 2020, consisted of 

the of the following modifications: 

 

1. Add item III.I to incorporate an I-1 Light Industrial Zoning District into the Jabot 

PUD along with the allowed uses within that district.  Development standards within 

the I-1 District shall comply with the applicable City of Pooler Code of Ordinances 

requirements. 

 

2. Revise the Jabot PUD Master Plan to change the land use of Parcel Y from 

Multifamily Residential (MFR) to I-1 Light Industrial District. 

 

3. Remove the 660 multifamily units permitted for Parcel Y from the Jabot PUD Master 

Plan. 

 

12. Amendment No. 12 to the PUD, denied by City Council on November 16, 2020 

 

13. Amendment No. 13 to the PUD, denied by City Council on December 21, 2020 

 

14.  Amendment No. 14 to the PUD, submitted by Phillip McCorkle is waiting traffic study 

results and status of amendment is pending.  

 

15.  Amendment No. 15 to the Jabot Tract PUD is proposed to update the Harmony portion of 

the Jabot Tract Master Plan. This proposed amendment includes the following: 

 

1. Provide optional 2nd access to Tract “W”:  This development has been limited to a 

single access since it began.  Contingent upon environmental permitting, the Owner is 

considering an access road to connect Harmony proper to Tract “W”.  This access 

will provide residents and emergency responders another access point.  The 

environmental contingency is in place due to wetland permitting constraints. 

 

2. Revise townhome distribution: It is proposed to move 63 townhome DUs from 

Tract “D” to the Harmony Greene Townhome Pod.  This re-allocation makes 

possible a larger future amenity site on Tract “D”. The 63 re-allocated townhomes 

will be “FOR SALE”, and not associated with the existing Harmony Greene 

townhome development.  

 

3. Relocate amenity area: the proposed new amenity area will be larger than the existing 

amenity and offer more features.  This larger amenity will be constructed to serve the 

buildout of Harmony.  The old amenity area playground will be converted to make 

the space available for the 63 additional townhomes from Tract “D”.  The existing 

playground will remain in operation until the new amenity is constructed. 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT D



 

- 5 - 

 

 

16. Amendment No. 16 to the Jabot Tract PUD is proposed to add property to the overall 

PUD and update the Harmony “Residential” portion of the Jabot Tract Masterplan.  This 

proposed amendment includes the following: 

 

1. Add parcel known as the Baker Tract Parcel 1 to the Jabot PUD and assign land use 

of single family detached residential.  The parcel is 16.0 gross acres (9.7 ac upland 

and 6.3 ac wetland) equating to 64 maximum allowable dwelling units (4 DU/gross 

acre). The planned density is 35 dwelling units. 

 

2. Add parcel known as Cross Creek Remaining (SW Bragg) to the Jabot PUD and 

assign land use of single family detached residential.  The parcel is 89.88 gross acres 

(39.76 ac upland and 50.12 ac wetland) equating to 360 maximum allowable dwelling 

units (4 DU/gross acre). The planned density is 105 single family units.  Harmony 

Subdivision max density is adjusted to 2,130 dwelling units and the total proposed 

adjusted to 1,215 dwelling units. 

 

3. Update Jabot Tract PUD Masterplan to relocate Harmony Amenity Site from Tract 

“D” to new permitted location.  Add parcel to the Jabot PUD.  The addition of this  

parcel is excluded from the density calculations. 

 

4. Update Jabot Tract PUD Masterplan to reflect previously approved residential 

townhome land use on Harmony Parcel “W” and re-label “Optional Secondary 

Access Road” at correct location. 

 

Harmony Master Plan Density Calculations 

 Allowable Gross Development Density   4.0  Units/Acre 

 Allowable Approved Units (through AMD 15)  1,412  Units 

 

  Proposed Density Summary (with AMD 16 updates): 

  Total Harmony Acreage   442.0 Acres 

  Total Single Family Units   644 Units 

  Total Townhomes    565 Units 

  Total Proposed Units    1,209 Units 

  Total Proposed Density   2.7 Units/Acre 

 

 

II. Definitions 
 

Anything not defined below shall be as defined in Article II of Appendix A, Zoning, of 

the Code of Ordinances, City of Pooler, Georgia. 

 

a. Master Plan shall mean the latest Approved Amendment to the PUD Master 

Plan for the Jabot Tract. 

 

ATTACHMENT D



 

- 6 - 

b. Jabot Tract shall mean all property shown on the Master Plan and 

incorporated into the Jabot PUD. 

 

c. Harmony Tract shall mean that portion of the Jabot Tract as shown as Parcel 

2A on the "Harmony Plat", as defined below. 

 

d. Harmony Plat shall mean that plat entitled "Parcel 2A, Being a Portion of 

Parcel 2 of the Lands of 929 Properties, LLC, 7th and 8th G.M.D., City of 

Pooler, Chatham County, Georgia", dated October 12, 2004, and recorded in 

Book 30P, page 22, Chatham County Records, said Plat being incorporated 

herein and made part hereof by reference.  

 

e. PUD shall mean the zoning ordinance for the Jabot Tract Planned Unit 

Development (PUD) Master Plan and referred to as the Jabot PUD. 

 

f. Amenity / Recreation Areas shall mean any commonly owned area within the 

development that is intended to be used for public gatherings, passive 

recreation and/or active recreation. (Examples:  pools, walking trails, public 

picnic areas, etc.)  

 

g. Detached Single Family Residence shall mean a dwelling, which does not 

share party or lot line walls with any adjacent building. 

 

h. Jurisdictional Wetland shall mean an area that meets the definitional 

requirements for wetlands as defined by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. 

 

i. Net Acreage shall mean the total area of high ground, excluding jurisdictional 

wetlands. 

 

j. Sales Center / Model Home shall mean any and all area used for the purposes 

of display and sales.  Sales center may be a temporary structure.  Sales center 

parking may be temporary in nature and is not required to be asphalt or 

cement.  

 

k. Parcel 2 Baker Tract shall mean that plat entitled "Parcel 1 & 2, Being a 

40.903 Acre Portion of the Former Baker Tract, 8th G.M.D., City of Pooler, 

Chatham County, Georgia", dated December 13, 2010, and recorded in Plat 

Book 42S, page 53, Chatham County Records, said Plat being incorporated 

herein and made part hereof by reference.  

 

l. Parcel 2A shall mean that plat entitled "Parcel 2A Being a 21.731 Acre 

Portion of the Armstrong Tract, 8th G.M.D., City of Pooler, Chatham County, 

Georgia", dated December 13, 2010, and recorded in Plat Book 32-P, page 4, 

Chatham County Records, said Plat being incorporated herein and made part 

hereof by reference. 

 

ATTACHMENT D



 

- 7 - 

m.  Parcel 1 Baker Tract shall mean that plat titled, “Parcel 1 & 2 Being 40.903 

acre Portion of the Former Baker Tract”, Plat Book 42-S Page 53 (1). 

 

n. Reclaimed Spray Field Parcel shall mean plat titled, “A Recombination and 

Minor Subdivision Plat of Parcel B-2 of a Division of the Adeline Wessels 

Tract, Portion of Parcel 3 and a Portion of the Levy Thompson Tract”, Plat 

Book 50 Page 425. 

 

o. Cross Creek Remaining Parcel shall mean land transferred via Quitclaim Deed 

Book 281F, Page 9. 

 

 

 

III. Development and Land Use Standards  
 

The following and land use standards shall be incorporated into the Jabot PUD. 

 

A. Residential– Single Family Lots 

 

Somersby (formerly Barren Pointe); Including Baker Tract Parcel 1 

 

Land-Use 

Minimum 

Lot Area 

(in sq. ft.) 

*Minimum 

Lot 

Width 

Maximum 

Impervious 

Area 

**Minimum 

Setbacks 

Maximum 

Building 

Height 

Required 

Sidewalk 

Width 

Front Rear Side   

Single 

Family 
6,000 55’ 60 % 25’ 15’ 

3’/ 

7’ 
35’ 4’ 

 

* Flag lots shall be allowed provided that the minimum lot area and setbacks are met. 

 

 

Harmony  
  

Land-Use 

Minimum 

Lot Area 

(sq. ft.) 

*Minimum 

Lot 

Width 

Maximum 

Impervious 

Area 

Minimum 

Setbacks 

Maximum 

Building 

Height 

Required 

Sidewalk 

Width 

Front Rear Side   

Single 

Family 
7,000 55’ 60 % 25’ 20’ 5’ 35’ 4’ 

* Flag lots shall be allowed provided that the minimum lot area and setbacks are met. 

 
• Permitted uses within single family developments shall include 

i. Detached Single Family Residences 

ATTACHMENT D



 

- 8 - 

ii. Amenity / Recreation Areas 

iii. Public Utilities 

iv. Buffers 

v. Accessory Buildings 

vi. Sales Center / Model Homes 

 

B. Residential– Harmony Townhomes  

 
a. Density shall not exceed 10 units per net acre 

b. Buildings shall have maximum of six (6) dwelling units per building 

c. Minimum unit width shall be 20 feet 

d. Maximum impervious surface shall be 60% for the project 

e. Minimum setback distance for each residential building shall be 25 feet for the 

front yard (from edge of nearest travel lane), 20 feet rear setback (from property 

line), 20 feet between buildings, other improvements, or property line 

f. A mail kiosk may be located within 5 feet of any building 

g. Maximum height of building shall be 45 feet. 

h. Permitted uses in a townhome project shall include a sales center or model unit, 

amenity, recreation area, buffers, public utilities, and accessory buildings 

 

 

 

C. Residential– Multi-Family 

 
Multi-Family development within the Jabot PUD shall be in accordance with the R-3 

(A-C) Zoning District, Appendix A – Zoning, Article III General Provisions – Section 

6 Schedule of Development regulations of the City of Pooler Code of Ordinances 

except as noted below; 

 

 

Mid-Rise Multi-family (Maximum 4 Stories) 

 

All mid-rise Multi-Family residential buildings may include elevator access to each 

floor that complies with the latest International Building Code. Parking requirements 

will be meet by surface parking outside the building or may be incorporated inside the 

building structure. 

 

Minimum parking requirements within the Multifamily Residential District (MFR) 

shall be as follows: 

Land-

Use 

Maximum 

Density 

(DU/AC) 

Minimum 

Lot 

Width 

Maximum 

Impervious 

Area 

Minimum 

Setbacks 

Maximum 

Building 

Height 

Front Rear Side  

Multi-

Family 
28 DU/AC None 75 % 20’ 20’ 20’ N/A 

ATTACHMENT D



 

- 9 - 

 

• 1.2 parking spaces per 1 bedroom unit 

• 1.5 parking spaces per 2 bedroom unit 

• 2.0 parking spaces per 3 bedroom unit 

• 1 parking space per employee for any on-site amenities, leasing office, and/or 

clubhouse 

 

D. Harmony Tract A “Health Care Campus” 
 

Harmony Tract A will be designated as a Health Care Campus (HCC) district.  The 

purpose of this district is as follows: 

 

"This district is defined as an area designated for the development of health care 

related facilities and ancillary services in a manner which will meet the needs of the 

community without adversely affecting nearby residential uses. This district is 

composed of lands and structures used primarily for the provision of health care 

services.  Regulations within this district are intended to permit and encourage full 

development of the necessary uses while at the same time protecting nearby 

residential properties from possible adverse effects of the development activities."  

 

Permitted uses in a HCC district:  Land may be used and buildings or structures may 

be erected or used for the land uses listed below. 

1. Medical or physician’s office and treatment facilities; 

2. Imaging and other diagnostic service centers; 

3. Surgical facilities; 

4. Out-patient care facilities; 

5. In-patient care facilities; 

6. Laboratories; 

7. Health and fitness centers; 

8. Health education facilities; 

9. Urgent care treatment facilities; 

10. Surgery centers; 

11. Rehabilitation facilities; and 

12. Ancillary medical services, including, but not limited to, drug stores and 

optometry centers; 

13.  Any other inpatient or outpatient facilities providing products or services 

related to medical treatment or healthcare; and 

14. All uses allowed under the PUD-CP designation as defined in this 

Amendment.   

All other uses not listed as permitted or conditional uses shall require the approval of 

the aldermanic board through the ordinance text amendment process.  

 

The Schedule for Minimum Yard requirements applicable to the C-P zoning district, 

as defined by the City of Pooler Zoning Ordinance, shall apply to the HCC 

ATTACHMENT D



 

- 10 - 

designation, except as to building height requirements.  

 

 

 

 

E. Sign and Entry Standards: 

 

The public and the developers of the Jabot Tract have a legitimate interest and 

concern in the construction, maintenance, and regulation of outdoor signs within the 

PUD and it is, therefore, necessary to regulate the size, number, length, height, 

clearance, setback, maintenance, illumination, safe construction, and aesthetics of 

signs and entry markers located in the PUD. 

 

Chapter 66, Sections 66-1 through 66-14 of the current Pooler City Ordinance ("Sign 

Regulations") are adopted in their entirety for all signs located in the PUD other those 

specifically listed hereinbelow.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following signs 

and entry markers to be located in the PUD and are exempt from the provisions of the 

Sign Ordinance: 

 

1. A Directory Sign consistent with the design shown on Attachment A (dated 

5/19/05) shall be permitted at the general locations shown on Exhibit 02 

attached. 

 

2. A Monument Sign located in the road right of way consistent with the design 

shown on Attachment C shall be permitted at the general locations shown on 

Exhibit 02 attached. 

 

 

F. PUD-C1 Commercial Light District An area designated within the Jabot 

PUD where permitted uses in a PUD-C1 district are allowed. This district is an area 

designated for the development of light commercial properties with land uses less 

than two acres. All site plans for development in the PUD-C1 district must be 

submitted to the building official for review by the Planning Commission and the 

Aldermanic Board for approval.  

 

Land may be used and buildings or structures may be erected or used for the land uses 

listed below.  

 

i. Professional Offices 

ii. Banks 

iii. Laundry and dry-cleaning establishments 

iv. Grocery stores 

v. Barber shops and beauty shops 

vi. Dry goods stores 

vii. Churches and fraternal organizations 

viii. Gift shops 

ATTACHMENT D



 

- 11 - 

ix. Eating establishments with no live entertainment 

x. Theaters 

xi. Arcades and game rooms 

xii. Heating and air conditioning sales and service 

xiii. Television sales and service 

xiv. Childcare facilities 

xv. Household furniture 

xvi. Hardware stores 

xvii. Retail sales 

xviii. Neighborhood shopping center 10,000 square feet or less 

xix. Drugstores 

 

Conditional Uses for PUD-C1 Commercial Light District 

 

i. Garages, automobile repair and service 

ii. Teen clubs 

iii. Residential Construction that is part of smart growth principals in 

commercial areas 

iv. Eating establishments with live entertainment 

v. Funeral Homes 

vi. Service Stations 

vii. Mini-Warehouses 

viii. New or Used Auto Sales and Service 

ix. Skating Rinks 

x. Miniature Golf Courses 

xi. Pawn Shops 

 

G. PUD C2 Commercial Heavy District – An area designated within the Jabot 

PUD where permitted uses in a Commercial Heavy District are allowed. This district 

is an area designated for the development of heavy commercial properties with land 

uses of more than two acres. A height limit of 75 feet has been established for this 

district. All site plans for development in the PUD-C2 district must be submitted to 

the building official for review by the Planning Commission and the Aldermanic 

Board for approval.  

 

Land may be used and buildings or structures may be erected or used for the 

land uses listed below.  

 

i. All approved uses in the PUD-C1 Commercial Light District and 

PUD CP Commercial Professional District 

ii. Hotels and motels having 50 or more units may have restaurants, 

nightclubs, dining rooms or bars located in the main building 

iii. Hotels and motels having 100 or more guest rooms may have retail 

stores, personal service shops, offices and similar uses for the 

convenience of their guests 

iv. Shopping centers with total floor space exceeding 10,000 square feet 

ATTACHMENT D



 

- 12 - 

v. Any sales facility exceeding 10,000 square feet 

vi. Open air market or flea market (when developed as a planned      

development which allows for adequate parking for covered spaces 

rented out on a daily basis 

vii. Liquor, beer and wine package shops 

viii. Restaurant with or without alcohol sales 

ix. Service stations 

x. Mini-Warehouses 

xi. New or used auto sales and service 

xii. Skating rinks 

xiii. Miniature golf courses 

 

Conditional Uses for PUD-C2 District 

i. Truck Service Centers 

ii. Mobile home sales 

iii. Bars or night clubs 

iv. Family entertainment centers, including go-cart rides, batting cages, 

arcade games, food courts, and other similar forms of family 

amusement, provided however that no such activity shall exceed the 

following noise limits at any point along the boundary of the 

property on which the family entertainment center is located: 55 

dB(A)(sound pressure level) between 10:00pm and 7:00am, or 

60dB(A)(sound pressure level) between 7:00am and 10:00pm. 

 

 

 

 

H. PUD-CP Commercial Professional District – An area within the Jabot PUD 

where permitted uses in a PUD-CP Commercial Professional District are allowed. 

Land may be used, and buildings or structures may be erected or used for the land 

uses listed below.  

 

i. Professional offices,  

ii. Banks,  

iii. Professional office plazas,  

iv. Gift shops,  

v. Drug stores,  

vi. Barber Shops,  

vii. Dry Goods Stores,  

viii. Churches and fraternal organizations,  

ix. Eating establishments with no live entertainment and no drive 

through,  

x. Household furniture stores,  

xi. Specialty shops, 

xii. Retail sales, and 

ATTACHMENT D



 

- 13 - 

xiii. Neighborhood shopping centers 10,000 square feet or less of 

building area. 

 

Conditional uses PUD CP District  

i. Motels  

ii. Hotels and motels having 50 or more units may have restaurants, 

dining rooms or bars, which are located in the main building; and,  

iii. Hotels and motels having 100 or more guest rooms may have retail 

stores, personal service shops, offices, and similar uses for the 

convenience of their guests,  

iv. Restaurant with or without alcohol sales. 

All other uses not listed as permitted or conditional uses shall require the approval 

of the aldermanic board through the ordinance text amendment process.  

The Schedule for Minimum Yard requirements applicable to the CP zoning 

district, as defined by the City of Pooler Zoning Ordinance, shall apply to the 

PUD-CP designation, except that the maximum height on the district shall be 35 

feet.  For a building height in excess of 35 feet, in no event shall a building permit 

be granted without the following restrictions:  

1. Structure beyond 35 feet in height shall have safeguards consisting 

of fire escapes, sprinkler systems, smoke detectors and non-combustible 

materials and any other fire protection equipment deemed necessary at the 

time by the aldermanic board.  

2. Before a permit can be granted on said request, an affidavit of the 

builder and owner must be executed agreeing to same to be completed 

within an agreed upon reasonable time.  

3. Federal Aeronautics [Aviation] Administration (FAA) approval 

must be granted in certain areas of the city prior to requesting permission 

to construct structures above 35 feet.  

 

I. I-1 Light Industrial District – An area within the Jabot PUD where permitted 

uses in a I-1 Light Industrial District are allowed, provided that such uses are 

conducted in such a manner that noxious odors, fumes, dust and similar particles, or 

noise are not emitted or detectable beyond the property lines of the lots on which the 

uses are located. Land may be used, and buildings or structures may be erected or 

used for the land uses listed below 

Permitted uses in I-1 District 

i. Manufacturing, processing, fabrication, repair, and servicing of 

any commodity or product, and sale, retail or wholesale of any 

product or commodity, which does not produce noise, odors, 

dust, fumes, fire hazard or other nuisance beyond the property 

ATTACHMENT D



 

- 14 - 

lines, 

ii. Warehousing, storage and distributing of any product or 

commodity, 

iii. Offices, including medical and dental, 

iv. Repair garages provided that all business is conducted inside 

an enclosed building and/or inside an aesthetically pleasing 

barrier which will shield the business activity from view of 

passing motorists and surrounding property owners, 

v. Truck terminals, provided the use of trucks entering or leaving 

the road will not constitute a traffic hazard or impede highway 

traffic, 

vi. Animal hospitals, kennels and/or boarding facilities (see article 

III, section 22 for specific regulations), 

vii. Outdoor drive-in theaters (see article III, section 23, for 

specific regulations), 

viii. Building material sales yards and lumber yards, including the 

sales of rock, sand, gravel, and the like, 

ix. Public utilities, including buildings, necessary structures, 

storage yards, and other related uses, but specifically excluding 

waste processing, handling, or storage, 

x. Research or experimental stations and laboratories, 

xi. Radio and/or television station transmission or reception 

towers (see article III, section 16 for specific regulations), 

xii. Horticultural nurseries, 

xiii. Office buildings for business, governmental, professional, or 

other general purposes; and, 

xiv. Accessory buildings, structures, and uses customarily 

incidental to permitted uses, 

xv. Truck service centers, 

xvi. Manufactured home sales, and service 

xvii. Bars or nightclubs. 

 

IV. Conditional uses in I-1 District 

i. Retail businesses or services provided such businesses or 

services are incidental to a permitted light-industrial use and 

located on the same premises; and, 

ii. Watchman or caretaker's one- or two-family dwelling provided 

that such dwelling is located on the premises of the permitted 

light- industrial use and a member of the household is 

employed by the industry as a watchman or caretaker, 

iii. Hotels and motels having 100 or more guest rooms may have 

retail stores, personal service shops, offices, and similar uses 

for the convenience of their guests, 

iv. Consumer fireworks retail sales facility, store or temporary 

structure. 
 

ATTACHMENT D



- 15 -

All other uses not listed as permitted or conditional uses shall require the approval of the 

aldermanic board through the ordinance text amendment process. 

ATTACHMENT D



BAKER TRACT

ATTACHMENT D



PIN
E B

AR
RE

N 
RO

AD
    

 10
0' 

R/
W

VIEW CROSSING ROAD     6
0' R/W

VIEW CROSSING ROAD     6
0' R/W

PINE BARREN ROAD     100' R/W1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1

0

1

1

1

2

1

3

1

4

1

5

1

6

1

7

1

8

1

9

2

0

2

1

2

2

2

3

2

4

2

5

2

6

2

7

2

8

2

9

3

0

3

1

3

2

3

3

3

4

3

5

SHEET

Fr
i, 1

8 
De

c 2
02

0 
- 8

:49
am

  m
jen

kin
s

DR
AW

IN
G 

PA
TH

: \
\1

92
.16

8.
0.

24
2\

20
14\

14-
31

5\
DW

G\
14-

31
5 

Pr
eli

m 
8 

- 1
0.

29
.20

19
.dw

g DATE:
SCALE:
JOB #:
DRAWN BY:
CHECKED BY:

REVISION

17 
PA

RK
 O

F C
OM

ME
RC

E |
 S

UI
TE

 20
1

SA
VA

NN
AH

, G
A 

31
40

5
(O

) 9
12

.20
0.

30
41 

| (
F)

 9
12

.20
0.

30
56

C
O

LE
M

A
N

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
,I

N
C

.

E

N
G

I

N

E

E

R

S

 S

U

R

V

E

Y

O

R
S

        NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

        RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION

DATE: ______________   BY: __________

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

SU
BD

IV
IS

IO
N 

LA
YO

UT
LA

W
RE

NC
E 

DU
NN

 T
RA

CT
LO

CA
TE

D 
IN

: P
OO

LE
R,

 G
A

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
OR

: L
AN

DM
AR

K2
4

P1

10/07/2014
1"=50'
14-315

JLV
TGB

PRELIMINARY
SITE PLAN

ATTACHMENT D

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
OHPL

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
OHPL

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
SSMH TOP:21.14' IE(W):7.06' IE(N):7.15'

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
SSMH TOP:19.43' IE(S):7.83' IE(N):7.90'

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
SSMH TOP:19.89' IE(S):9.00' IE(N):9.00' IE(E):9.19' IE(E):14.29' (IE EAST IS A VERTICAL PIPE WITH TWO OPENINGS)

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
SSMH TOP:19.87' IE(S):10.15' IE(N):10.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
8"PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
8"PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
8"PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
8"PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
8"PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
10"PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
2046.59'

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
S68°16'13"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
201.16'

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
S01°34'36"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
WETLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
WETLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
WETLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
WETLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
N/F: SOMERSBY HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
PORTION OF FORMER BAKER TRACT PRB 3P, PG 123 N/F: DRAYTON CORPORATION PIN: 5-1023-01-001A

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
JURISDICTIONAL FRESHWATER WETLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
LOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
LOT 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
LOT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
LOT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
LOT 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
25' BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
LOT 13

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
LOT 14

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
LOT 15

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
LOT 170

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
LOT 171

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
LOT 172

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
LOT 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
LOT 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
LOT 18

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
LOT 19

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
LOT 20

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
LOT 21

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
LOT 22

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
LOT 23

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
LOT 24

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
LOT 25

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
LOT 26

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
GRID NORTH - DATUM NAD83

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
PROPOSED DETENTION POND 42,725 SF 0.98 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
PROPOSED DETENTION POND 17,912 SF 0.41 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
TOTAL WETLAND IMPACT: 0.50 AC TOTAL NUMBER OF LOTS: 35

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
PROPOSED UPLAND AREA  465,050 SF  10.68 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
9,426 S.F. 0.22 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
6,766 S.F. 0.16 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
6,722 S.F. 0.15 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
6,091 S.F. 0.14 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
6,050 S.F. 0.14 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
6,050 S.F. 0.14 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
6,050 S.F. 0.14 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
6,050 S.F. 0.14 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
6,050 S.F. 0.14 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
6,050 S.F. 0.14 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
6,089 S.F. 0.14 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
6,555 S.F. 0.15 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
6,678 S.F. 0.15 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
7,128 S.F. 0.16 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
7,640 S.F. 0.18 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
8,152 S.F. 0.18 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
8,664 S.F. 0.20 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
9,176 S.F. 0.21 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
11,903 S.F. 0.27 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
8,364 S.F. 0.19 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
7,942 S.F. 0.18 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
7,942 S.F. 0.18 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
7,942 S.F. 0.18 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
7,942 S.F. 0.18 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
7,942 S.F. 0.18 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
7,720 S.F. 0.18 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
7,219 S.F. 0.17 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
8,031 S.F. 0.18 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
6,635 S.F. 0.15 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
6,123 S.F. 0.14 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
WETLAND IMPACT = 0.35 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
WETLAND IMPACT = 0.01 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
WETLAND IMPACT = 0.14 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
7,219 S.F. 0.17 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
7,219 S.F. 0.17 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
7,219 S.F. 0.17 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
7,219 S.F. 0.17 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
7,219 S.F. 0.17 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
%%UREFERENCE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
1. SUBDIVISION MAP BOOK 42S, PAGE 53 SUBDIVISION MAP BOOK 42S, PAGE 53 2. PLAT RECORD BOOK 3P, PAGE 123 PLAT RECORD BOOK 3P, PAGE 123 3. SUBDIVISION MAP BOOK 34S, PAGE 88 SUBDIVISION MAP BOOK 34S, PAGE 88 4. SUBDIVISION MAP BOOK 42S, PAGE 105SUBDIVISION MAP BOOK 42S, PAGE 105

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
I-16

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
POOLER PKWY

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
PINE BARREN RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
MEMORIAL BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
S H MORGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
PKWY

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
QUACCO RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
%%UNOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
1. PROPERTY ADDRESS: PINE BARREN ROAD PROPERTY ADDRESS: PINE BARREN ROAD PINE BARREN ROAD POOLER, GEORGIA 2. PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: 5-1023 -01-025 PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: 5-1023 -01-025 3. THIS PROPERTY IS CURRENTLY ZONED R-1-A. THIS PROPERTY IS CURRENTLY ZONED R-1-A. 4. THE HORIZONTAL DATUM OF THIS PLAT IS BASED THE HORIZONTAL DATUM OF THIS PLAT IS BASED ON GEORGIA STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE, NAD83. 5. BASED ON MY OBSERVATION THIS PROPERTY IS BASED ON MY OBSERVATION THIS PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN ZONE X, NOT A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA AS DETERMINED BY FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA) FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP NUMBER 13051C0107G, EFFECTIVE DATE: AUGUST 5, 2013. 6. ALL BUILDING SETBACKS ARE TO CONFORM TO ALL BUILDING SETBACKS ARE TO CONFORM TO LOCAL ZONING ORDINANCES.  7. THIS PROPERTY IS SUBJECT TO ANY AND ALL THIS PROPERTY IS SUBJECT TO ANY AND ALL EASEMENTS, COVENANTS, OR RESTRICTIONS EITHER RECORDED OR UNRECORDED.

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
PROPERTY CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
%%ULEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
PLAT RECORD BOOK

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
PRB

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
SUBDIVISION MAP BOOK

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
SMB

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
PIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
BUILDING SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
SCALE: 1"=

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
100



ATTACHMENT D



ATTACHMENT D



ATTACHMENT D



S

S

PINE BARREN ROAD

(100’ R/W)

P
O

O
L
E

R
 
P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

(
2
2
9
.6
’ 

R
/

W
)

S

W
V

W
V

WV

WV

W
V

H

YD

D 
O 
  

N 
O 

T 
  

E 
N 

T 
E 

R

S  T  O  P
S  T  O  P

S  T  O  P

A T M

W
V

W
V

W
V

W

PI
NE 

BARREN 
ROAD

PINE BARREN ROAD

M
IL

L
E

R
 P
IN

E
 R

O
A

D

S
O

M
E

R
S

B
Y
 B

O
U

L
E

V
A

R
D

P
A

R
K

S
ID

E
 L

A
N

E

D
A

M
 R

O
A

D
W
IL

D
C

A
T

P
O

O
L
E

R
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

EXIST. R/W

EXI
ST. 

R/
W

EXI
ST. 

R/
W

CIT
Y O

F B
LOOMIN

GDALE

CIT
Y O

F P
OOLER

CIT
Y O

F P
OOLER

CIT
Y O

F B
LOOMIN

GDALE

LEGEND

PROPOSED PERMANENT PAVING

PROPOSED GRASSED MEDIAN

PROPOSED CONCRETE MEDIAN

EXISTING TRANSMISSION POLE (APPROX. LOCATION)

MUNICIPAL BOUNDARY

EXISTING R.O.W. / PROPERTY

PINE BARREN ROAD CORRIDOR TRAFFIC STUDY

M
A

T
C

H
L
IN

E
 -
 S

H
E

E
T
 2

SCALE IN FEET

0 100 200 400

ATTACHMENT D

nmckenzie_14
Text Box
BAKER TRACT



 

Pine Barren Road Corridor Traffic Study 

    

                       40 

With the implementation of these improvements, the intersection is expected to operate at LOS A 

during the AM peak hour and LOS D during the PM peak hour for 2030 Build-out conditions. These 

results are identified in Table 7.2 as 2030 Build-out IMP.  

7.3 Pine Barren Road at Parkside Lane/Baker Tract  

Table 7.3 below summarizes the LOS, control delay, and 95th percentile queue length at the 

intersection of Pine Barren Road at Parkside Lane/Baker Tract each analysis scenario. 

Table 7.3 – Pine Barren Road at Parkside Lane  

Results 

As shown in Table 7.3, minimal delays on the Parkside Lane (southbound) approach are exhibited 

in the 2020 Existing conditions scenario. The 2030 Background traffic scenario also exhibits 

minimal delays, but the addition of potential development traffic along Pine Barren Road results in 

lengthy side street delays. These longer delays are a result of a lack of available gaps in the Pine 

Barren Road traffic flow with the projected 2030 Build-out volumes. 

Recommendations 

The following improvements are recommended to accommodate the 2030 Build-out volumes. 

These recommendations are based on capacity analyses that include proposed improvements at 

adjacent intersections. 

 Extend the eastbound left-turn lane storage to a minimum of 150 feet with a 100-foot taper 

 Proposed Baker Tract Development 

o Access point should align with Parkside Lane 

o Construct an exclusive eastbound right-turn lane 

o Construct an exclusive westbound left-turn lane 

 Construct a Restricted Crossing U-turn (RCUT) to prohibit left turns from the northbound 

and southbound approaches  

o The southbound left-turns would U-turn at Somersby Boulevard  

o The northbound left-turns would U-turn at Pooler Parkway or a future intermediate 

intersection 

Table 7.3 - Pine Barren Road at Parkside Lane/Baker Tract 

Condition Measure 
EB WB NB SB 

EBL EBT EBR WBL WBR WBTR NBL NBTR SBL SBTR 

AM Peak Hour  

2020 Existing HCM 6th LOS (Delay) A (2.2) A (0.0) N/A B (13.7) 

2030 Background HCM 6th LOS (Delay) A (2.0) A (0.0) N/A B (14.0) 

2030 Build-out HCM 6th LOS (Delay) A (0.1) A (0.0) F ($) F ($) 

2030 Build-out IMP HCM 6th LOS (Delay) A (0.1) A (0.0) C (15.7) C (16.7) 

PM Peak Hour 

2020 Existing HCM 6th LOS (Delay) A (0.3) A (0.0) N/A B (14.9) 

2030 Background HCM 6th LOS (Delay) A (0.1) A (0.0) N/A B (14.2) 

2030 Build-out HCM 6th LOS (Delay) A (0.3) A (0.1) F ($) F ($) 

2030 Build-out IMP HCM 6th LOS (Delay) A (0.3) A (0.1) C (18.4) D (30.1) 

$ Delay exceeds 300s       N/A Not Applicable  

ATTACHMENT D



Build 2030 Total Peak Hour 

Traffic Volumes
Figure 5.4

1

Pine Barren Rd

W
ild

c
a

t 

D
a

m
 R

d

3

P
a

rk
s
id

e
 L

n

31 (57)

1168 (1455)

150 (211)

1040 (1580)

4
3
 (

4
2
)

1
0
8
 (

1
2
7
)

Pine Barren Rd

8
 (

5
)

0
 (

0
)

1
1
 (

8
)

40 (101)

1119 (1761)

4 (13)

2
4
 (

2
5
)

0
 (

0
)

8
4
 (

7
2
)

15 (27)

1258 (1537)

3 (8)

12

Pine 

Barren Rd

11

H
a

rm
o

n
 

R
d

Pine Barren Rd

6
0
 (

2
6
2
)

3
2
 (

1
0
2
)

480 (919)

87 (38)

868 (668)

137 (65)

1
8
3
 (

3
8
5
)

6
2
7
 (

1
0
9
1
)

4
2
 (

2
5
)

51 (207)

37 (82)

20 (45)

3
5
1
 (

4
9
0
)

1
2
6
2
 (

7
2
5
)

1
5
8
 (

4
1
)

437 (466)

74 (41)

389 (267)

4

P
o

o
le

r 
P

k
w

y

Pine 

Barren Rd

5

Pine Barren Rd

B
ro

o
k
ly

n

W
a

y

6

Q
u

a
c
c
o

R
o

a
d

7

S
 R

o
g

e
rs

 

S
t 8

S
ilv

e
rt

o
n

 

R
d

9

L
o

n
g

le
a

f 

C
ir

3
7
2
 (

5
9
8
)

9
8
8
 (

1
1
9
6
)

5
2
5
 (

5
3
9
)

286 (482)

514 (884)

410 (646)

2
8
6
 (

5
3
4
)

6
1
9
 (

1
2
7
6
)

2
9
5
 (

4
6
2
)

378 (443)

682 (746)

453 (494)

5
1
 (

5
9
)

1
3
 (

1
8
)

1082 (1856)

5 (28)

1415 (1576)

39 (67)

8
9
 (

1
7
4
)

1
0
0
 (

5
3
)

998 (1710)

20 (128)

1312 (1438)

116 (156)

Pine Barren Rd

Pine Barren Rd356 (477)

1056 (1014)

68 (172)

739 (1358)

2
7
9
 (

4
8
0
)

1
0
3
 (

1
1
1
)

Pine Barren Rd Pine Barren Rd

2
6
 (

4
7
)

3
1
 (

1
0
)

714 (1396)

11 (21)

1082 (978)

30 (52)

4
5
 (

6
2
)

2
9
 (

8
)

680 (1355)

14 (20)

1085 (932)

28 (56)

LEGEND

Study Intersection

Stop-Controlled 

Intersection

Traffic Signal

Turning Movement

XX (XX) AM Peak (PM Peak)

2

S
o

m
e

rs
b

y

B
lv

d

Pine Barren Rd

7
7
 (

1
3
0
)

1
1
6
 (

7
6
)

1113 (1661)

38 (130)

1160 (1496)

116 (86)

10

C
ro

s
s
 C

re
e

k

D
r

Pine Barren Rd

1
7
 (

1
1
)

2
6
 (

1
9
)

677 (1364)

9 (39)

1110 (920)

4 (20)

1. Pine Barren Road at Wild Cat Dam Road

2. Pine Barren Road at Somersby Boulevard

3. Pine Barren Road at Parkside Lane

4. Pine Barren Road at Pooler Parkway

5. Pine Barren Road at Brooklyn Way

6. Pine Barren Road at Quacco Road

7. Pine Barren Road at South Rogers Street

8. Pine Barren Road at Silverton Road

9. Pine Barren Road at Longleaf Circle

10. Pine Barren Road at Cross Creek Drive

11. Pine Barren Road at Harmon Road

12. Pine Barren Road at US 80/Louisville Road

Pine Barren Road Corridor 

Traffic Study

NOT TO 

SCALE

U
S

 8
0

/ 

L
o

u
is

v
ill

e
 

R
o

a
d

ATTACHMENT D



ATTACHMENT D

Chris.Marsengill
Text Box
This is an application to amend the JABOT PUD. The intent is to develop the site as townhomes. I don’t know if this will pass time but I think it will eventually. P.Claxton 20201208I previously mentioned that this project was forthcoming. At the Monday Council meeting action on the project was delayed. The developer intends to wait until the results of the Pine Barren Road study is completed. The estimated potential development on this site is about 75 townhomes. I just wanted to follow up.P.Claxton 20201223

Dillon.Turner
Line

Dillon.Turner_1
Line

Dillon.Turner_2
Line

Dillon.Turner_3
Line

Dillon.Turner_4
Pencil

Dillon.Turner_5
Pencil

Dillon.Turner_6
Pencil

Dillon.Turner_7
Pencil

Dillon.Turner_8
Pencil

Dillon.Turner_9
Pencil

Dillon.Turner_10
Pencil

Dillon.Turner_11
Pencil

Dillon.Turner_12
Pencil

Dillon.Turner_13
Pencil

Dillon.Turner_14
Pencil

Dillon.Turner_15
Pencil

Dillon.Turner_16
Pencil

Dillon.Turner_17
Pencil

Dillon.Turner_18
Pencil

Dillon.Turner_19
Pencil

Dillon.Turner_20
Pencil

Dillon.Turner_21
Pencil

Dillon.Turner_22
Pencil

Dillon.Turner_23
Pencil

Dillon.Turner_24
Pencil

Dillon.Turner_25
Pencil

Dillon.Turner_26
Pencil

Dillon.Turner_27
Pencil

Dillon.Turner_28
Pencil

Dillon.Turner_29
Pencil

Dillon.Turner_30
Pencil



Address Pin Zoning Acreage Estimated Developable Area Developable Acreage Notes Developed units Units Assumption Landuse 

1565 Pooler Parkway 51010 01048 C-2 16.32 50% 8.16 67092 SF Heavy Commerical 

0 Pooler Parkway 51010 01050 C-2 1.54 90% 1.39 11396 SF Heavy Commerical 

Pine Barren Road 51010 01056 C-2 24.4 50% 12.20 100308 SF Heavy Commerical 

0 Pine Barren Road 51010 01070 C-2 1.58 90% 1.42 11692 SF Heavy Commerical 

101 St Josephs 51010 01072 C-2 18.3 50% 9.15 75231 SF Heavy Commerical 

Merlot Lane 51010 01075 C-2 1.27 90% 1.14 9398 SF Heavy Commerical 

0 Pooler Parkway 51010 01077 C-2 1.27 90% 1.14 9398 SF Heavy Commerical 

0 Pine Barren Road 51010 01508 C-2 4.64 50% 2.32 19075 SF Heavy Commerical 

Pine Barren Road 51010 01509 C-2 1.6 90% 1.44 11840 SF Heavy Commerical 

Pooler Parkway 51011 01027 PUD 14.77 90% 13.29 226021 SF This is part of the development along Pine Barren, known Mixed-Use 

Pine Barren Road 51011 01028 PUD 15.25 90% 13.73 233367 SF This is part of the development along Pine Barren, known Mixed-Use 

Pine Barren Road 51011 01029 PUD 17.2 90% 15.48 263207 SF This is part of the development along Pine Barren, known Mixed-Use 

Pine Barren Road 51023 01001A R-1-A 110.63 70% 77.44 310 SF Units This is part of the development along Pine Barren, known Mixed-Use 

716 Pine Barren Road 51011 02005 M-H-1 1 90% 0.90 41 MF Units Multifamily 

Baker Tract 51023 01025 M-H-1 16.01 61% 9.77 75 MF Units Townhome direction from the town Multifamily 

708 Pine Barren Road 51011 02006 M-H-1 1 90% 0.90 41 MF Units Multifamily 

704 Pine Barren Road 51011 02007 M-H-1 1 90% 0.90 41 MF Units Multifamily 

694 Pine Barren Road 51011 02040A M-H-1 1 90% 0.90 41 MF Units Multifamily 

690 Pine Barren Road 51011 02044 M-H-1 0.98 90% 0.88 40 MF Units Multifamily 

516 Pine Barren Road 51011 02052 M-H-1 16.23 90% 14.61 59 SF Units Multifamily 

1407 Pine Barren Road 51023 01012 M-H-1 2.92 90% 2.63 119 MF Units Multifamily 

1403 Pine Barren Road 51023 01012A M-H-1 0.47 90% 0.42 20 MF Units Multifamily 

1411 Pine Barren Road 51023 01012B M-H-1 0.46 90% 0.41 19 MF Units Multifamily 

1485 Pine Barren Road 51023 01013 M-H-1 77.43 25% 19.36 80 MF Units Multifamily 

Pine Barren Road 51023 01013A M-H-1 20.07 50% 10.04 452 MF Units Multifamily 

1425 Pine Barren Road 51023 01013B M-H-1 1.02 90% 0.92 42 MF Units Multifamily 

1415 Pine Barren Road 51023 01013C M-H-1 1.2 90% 1.08 49 MF Units Multifamily 

1419 Pine Barren Road 51023 01013D M-H-1 2.77 90% 2.49 113 MF Units Multifamily 

523 Pine Barren Road 51010 01001B M-H-2-B 0.58 90% 0.52 24 MF Units Multifamily 

519 Pine Barren Road 51010 01001C M-H-2-B 0.5 90% 0.45 21 MF Units Multifamily 

515 Pine Barren Road 51010 01001D M-H-2-B 0.5 90% 0.45 21 MF Units Multifamily 

511 Pine Barren Road 51010 01001E M-H-2-B 0.5 90% 0.45 21 MF Units Multifamily 

507 Pine Barren Road 51010 01001F M-H-2-B 0.56 90% 0.50 23 MF Units Multifamily 

503 Pine Barren Road 51010 01001G M-H-2-B 0.54 90% 0.49 22 MF Units Multifamily 

475 Pine Barren Road 51010 01001H M-H-2-B 0.52 90% 0.47 22 MF Units Multifamily 

471 Pine Barren Road 51010 01001I M-H-2-B 0.51 90% 0.46 21 MF Units Multifamily 

467 Pine Barren Road 51010 01001J M-H-2-B 0.5 90% 0.45 21 MF Units Multifamily 

463 Pine Barren Road 51010 01001K M-H-2-B 0.33 90% 0.30 14 MF Units Multifamily 

459 Pine Barren Road 51010 01001L M-H-2-B 0.43 90% 0.39 18 MF Units Multifamily 

455 Pine Barren Road 51010 01001M M-H-2-B 0.4 90% 0.36 17 MF Units Multifamily 

Pine Barren Road 51010 01008 M-H-2-B 5.88 90% 5.29 239 MF Units Multifamily 

130 Jones Road 51023 01003 M-H-2-B 1.37 90% 1.23 56 MF Units Multifamily 

134 Jones Road 51023 01004 M-H-2-B 0.75 90% 0.68 31 MF Units Multifamily 

133 Jones Road 51023 01005 M-H-2-B 1.59 90% 1.43 65 MF Units Multifamily 

137 Jone Road 51023 01006 M-H-2-B 3.23 90% 2.91 131 MF Units Multifamily 

1305 Pine Barren Road 51023 01006A M-H-2-B 1.08 90% 0.97 44 MF Units Multifamily 

1317 Pine Barren Road 51023 01006C M-H-2-B 1.14 90% 1.03 47 MF Units Multifamily 

1311 Pine Barren Road 51023 01006D M-H-2-B 1.39 90% 1.25 57 MF Units Multifamily 

1325 Pine Barren Road 51023 01007 M-H-2-B 4.07 90% 3.66 165 MF Units Multifamily 

1355 Pine Barren Road 51023 01007A M-H-2-B 7.97 90% 7.17 323 MF Units Multifamily 

1345 Pine Barren Road 51023 01008 M-H-2-B 5.6 90% 5.04 227 MF Units Multifamily 

1281 Pine Barren Road 51023 01016 M-H-2-B 10.4 90% 9.36 422 MF Units Multifamily 

Pine Barren Road 51023 01017 M-H-2-B 4.6 90% 4.14 187 MF Units Multifamily 

120 Jones Road 51023 01028 M-H-2-B 5.14 90% 4.63 209 MF Units Multifamily 

Memorial Blvd 51010 01062 PUD 44.57 50% 22.29 Novare MF site, connects through walmart 316 MF Units Multifamily 

Pooler Parkway 51011 01014 PUD 59.98 50% 29.99 509920 SF Industrial PUD 

Wildcat Dam Road 51011 01017 PUD 0.31 90% 0.28 4744 SF Industrial PUD 

Pine Barren Road 80006 01026 PUD 99.14 60% 59.48 1011407 SF Industrial PUD 

Pooler Parkway 51011 01046 PUD 309.86 50% 154.93 2634275 SF Industrial PUD 

Pooler Parkway 51011 01065 PUD 31.26 90% 28.13 Could be developed Development known PUD 

Interstate 16 51023 01018 PUD 106.65 50% 53.33 Industrial Tract, Jabot PUD had as multifamily 906685 SF Industrial PUD 

100 Galloway Drive 51023 01019 PUD 80.38 0% 0.00 Developeable area is developed Development known PUD 

Pine Barren Road 8006 01026 PUD/PID 99.14 70% 69.40 1179975 SF Industrial PUD 

1405 Pine Barren Road 51023 01012C M-H-1 1.15 90% 1.04 47 SF Units Single Family 

527 Pine Barren Road 51010 01001 M-H-2-B 66.42 80% 53.14 213 SF Units Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 50123 01025 R-1-A 16.04 70% 11.23 Clear wetland, about 30% 45 SF Units Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 5101 02015 R-1-A 29.9 50% 14.95 60 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 51010 01001A R-1-A 89.72 50% 44.86 4 DU per Acre, Harmony Jabot Amendment 180 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 51010 01005 R-1-A 85.15 80% 68.12 little wetalnds 96 SF Units 1.4 units per acre? Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 51010 01005C R-1-A 2 50% 1.00 4 Single Family 

Silverton Road 51010 01044 R-1-A 8.93 50% 4.47 18 Single Family 

0 Ryans Way 51011 02065Z R-1-A 5.24 50% 2.62 11 Single Family 

Silverton Road 51010C01153 R-1-A 10.38 50% 5.19 21 Single Family 

1366 S Rogers Street 51011 02001 R-1-A 12.15 60% 7.29 30 Single Family 

730 Pine Barren Road 51011 02004A R-1-A 1.38 90% 1.24 5 Single Family 

720 Pine Barren Road 51011 02004B R-1-A 1.4 90% 1.26 6 Single Family 

734 Pine Barren Road 51011 02004C R-1-A 1.73 90% 1.56 7 Single Family 

736 Pine Barren Road 51011 02004D R-1-A 1.74 90% 1.57 7 Single Family 

740 Pine Barren Road 51011 02004E R-1-A 2.07 90% 1.86 8 Single Family 

480 Pine Barren Road 51011 02009 R-1-A 0.25 90% 0.23 1 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 51011 02010 R-1-A 0.51 90% 0.46 2 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 51011 02011 R-1-A 5.22 50% 2.61 11 Single Family 

195 Skinner Road 51011 02012D R-1-A 1.99 90% 1.79 8 Single Family 

51011 02013 51011 02013 R-1-A 2.12 90% 1.91 8 Single Family 

201 Skinner Road 51011 02014 R-1-A 2.25 50% 1.13 5 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 51011 02015A R-1-A 24.39 50% 12.20 49 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 51011 02016 R-1-A 3.15 50% 1.58 7 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 51011 02017 R-1-A 4.66 50% 2.33 10 Single Family 

302 Skinner Road 51011 02018 R-1-A 5.59 90% 5.03 21 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 51011 02019 R-1-A 1.18 90% 1.06 5 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 51011 02022 R-1-A 20.43 50% 10.22 41 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 51011 02023 R-1-A 18.56 50% 9.28 38 Single Family 

328 Old Pine Barren Road 51011 02025 R-1-A 2.02 90% 1.82 8 Single Family 

320 Old Pine Barren Road 51011 02027 R-1-A 0.85 90% 0.77 4 Single Family 

310 Old Pine Barren Road 51011 02029 R-1-A 1.5 90% 1.35 6 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 51011 02030 R-1-A 6.45 50% 3.23 13 Single Family 

306 Old Pine Barren Road 51011 02031 R-1-A 2.41 50% 1.21 5 Single Family 

302 Old Pine Barren Road 51011 02032 R-1-A 2.33 50% 1.17 5 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 51011 02033 R-1-A 8.4 60% 5.04 21 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 51011 02034 R-1-A 7.16 50% 3.58 15 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 51011 02015 R-1-A 29.9 50% 14.95 60 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 51011 02035 R-1-A 7.54 50% 3.77 16 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 51011 02036 R-1-A 8.48 50% 4.24 17 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 51011 02038 R-1-A 20.21 50% 10.11 41 Single Family 

500 Pine Barren Road 51011 02041 R-1-A 4.04 90% 3.64 15 Single Family 

103 Skinner Road 51011 02042 R-1-A 2.93 90% 2.64 11 Single Family 

Old Pine Barren Road 51011 02047 R-1-A 1.77 90% 1.59 7 Single Family 

324 Old Pine Barren Road 51011 02048 R-1-A 1.93 90% 1.74 7 Single Family 

750 Pine Barren Road 51011 02053 R-1-A 5.19 90% 4.67 19 Single Family 

460 Pine Barren Road 51011 02054 R-1-A 2.04 90% 1.84 8 Single Family 

336 Pine Barren Road 51011 02055 R-1-A 3.13 90% 2.82 12 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 51011 02059 R-1-A 0.34 90% 0.31 2 Single Family 

740 Pine Barren Road 51011 02060 R-1-A 13.24 90% 11.92 48 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 51011 02063 R-1-A 1.13 90% 1.02 5 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 51011 02064 R-1-A 8.02 50% 4.01 17 Single Family 

1300 Ryans Way 51011 02065Y R-1-A 4.48 90% 4.03 17 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 51011 02066 R-1-A 1.13 90% 1.02 5 Single Family 

Rogers Street 51011 02067 R-1-A 26.01 50% 13.01 53 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 51011 02069 R-1-A 0.22 50% 0.11 1 Single Family 

1360 S Rogers Street 51011 02070 R-1-A 25.78 50% 12.89 52 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 51012 02035 R-1-A 7.54 50% 3.77 16 Single Family 

890 Pine Barren Road 51011 01002 R-1-B 0.29 90% 0.26 2 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 51011 01003 R-1-B 2.52 90% 2.27 10 Single Family 

S Roges Street 51011 01507 R-1-C 7.15 80% 5.72 23 Single Family 

0 Pooler Parkway 51010 01071 R-3-B 21.24 90% 19.12 77 Single Family 

Pooler Parkway 51010 01076 R-3-B 9.36 50% 4.68 19 Single Family 

680 Pine Barren Road 51011 02045 R-4 1.02 90% 0.92 4 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 51011 02051 R-4 37.42 50% 18.71 75 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 50987 05002A R-A 4.21 90% 3.79 16 Single Family 

I-95 50987 05003A R-A 0.82 90% 0.74 3 Single Family 

100 Tripplet Park Dr 50987 06003 R-A 178 50% 89.00 356 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 50987 06008 R-A 64.55 50% 32.28 wetlands 130 Single Family 

Barrow Drive 51010 03002 R-A 1 90% 0.90 4 Single Family 

Barrow Drive 51010 03005 R-A 0.63 0% 0.00 0 Single Family 

Barrow Drive 51010 03006 R-A 14.68 50% 7.34 30 Single Family 

0 Barrow Drive 51010 03007 R-A 9.22 90% 8.30 34 Single Family 

0 Barrow Drive 51010 03016 R-A 4.85 50% 2.43 10 Single Family 

0 Bloomingdale Road 80004 02027 R-A-1 25.15 90% 22.64 91 Single Family 

0 Bloomingdale Road 80004 02028 R-A-1 48.06 80% 38.45 154 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 80006 01003 R-A-1 259.57 50% 129.79 Most of land mass is a wetland, assumed 50% 520 Single Family 

Interstate 16 80006 01004 R-A-1 181.03 50% 90.52 363 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 80004 02007 R-A-1 16 90% 14.40 58 Single Family 

804 Bloomingdale Road 80004 02008 R-A-1 5.087 90% 4.58 19 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 80006 01001A R-A-1 45.34 60% 27.20 109 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 80006 01011 R-A-1 75.9 80% 60.72 243 Single Family 

0 Pine Barren Road 80006 01019Z R-A-1 38.11 80% 30.49 122 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 80006 01028 R-A-1 20.61 90% 18.55 75 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 80006 01029 R-A-1 18.72 90% 16.85 68 Single Family 

Wildcat Dam Road 80006 01040 R-A-1 107.31 50% 53.66 215 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 80006 01041 R-A-1 5.56 90% 5.00 21 Single Family 

Pine Barren Road 80006 01043 R-A-1 21.32 50% 10.66 43 Single Family 

0 Pine Barren Road 8006 010057 R-A-1 1.21 90% 1.09 5 Single Family 

Interstate 16 11010 03004 - 1346 50% 673.00 Annexed from Pooler 11443019 SF Warehouse Warehouse

186 Pine Barren Road 50022 01025 I-1 14.26 50% 7.13 121231 SF Warehouse Warehouse

Sharon Ct 50022 01031 I-1 4.36 50% 2.18 37067 SF Warehouse

Pine Barren Road 50987 06009 I-1 8.25 50% 4.13 70137 SF Warehouse

0 Barrow Drive 51010 03013 I-1 15.65 80% 12.52 212878 SF Warehouse

US Highway 80 50020 02001 I-2 21.17 50% 10.59 179977 SF Warehouse

Pine Barren Road 50987 03008 I-2 2.33 90% 2.10 35655 SF Warehouse

AJ Garcia Road 50987 03018 I-2 5.58 50% 2.79 47438 SF Warehouse

AJ Garcia Road 50987 03019 I-2 13.62 50% 6.81 115790 SF Warehouse

Pine Barren Road 50987 04002 I-2 0.63 90% 0.57 9641 SF Warehouse

Pine Barren Road 50987 04003 I-2 1.09 50% 0.55 9267 SF Warehouse

0 Pooler Cross Road 51011 01008 R-1-C 174.65 60% 104.79 looks like it is goin to be developed, there is a master plan for this 1781744 SF Warehouse

ATTACHMENT D

nmckenzie_15
Rectangle



CROSS CREEK 

ATTACHMENT D



LONGLEAF CIRCLE
60' R/W

LONGLEAF CIRCLE

60' R/W

BROWNING DRIVE60' R/W

REDFIELD DRIVE
60' R/W

CROSS CREEK DRIVE
60' R/W

CROSS CREEK COURT

60' R/W

S
a
v
a
n
n
a
h
, 
G

e
o
rg

ia
 |
 (

9
1
2
) 

2
0
0
-3

0
4
1
 |
 C

C
I-

S
A

V
.C

O
M

SHEET:

REVISIONS:

©
 2

01
8 

CO
LE

M
AN

 C
O

M
PA

N
Y,

 IN
C.

   
   

   
 D

AT
E 

PL
O

TT
ED

: 3
/1

3/
20

24
 1

1:
26

 A
M

   
BY

: D
ill

on
 P

ow
el

l  
  D

RA
W

IN
G 

PA
TH

: Q
:\

20
23

\2
3-

65
2.

00
0\

DW
G\

Ci
vi

l\S
up

po
rt

\2
3-

65
2 

CR
O

SS
 C

RE
EK

 M
AS

TE
RP

LA
N

_1
.1

3.
24

.d
w

g

SCALE:
CHECKED BY:
DRAWN BY:
DATE:
JOB NUMBER:

AS NOTED
NPM
DCP

3/13/24
23-652.000

M
A

ST
ER

 P
HA

SI
N

G
 P

LA
N

 F
O

R

CR
O

SS
 C

RE
EK

 SU
BD

IVI
SIO

N
LO

C
A

TE
D

 IN
 P

O
O

LE
R,

 G
EO

RG
IA

PR
EP

A
RE

D
 F

O
R 

HA
RM

O
N

Y 
PA

RT
N

ER
S,

 L
LC

MASTERPLAN

MP

PHASE 2

PHASE 2: 22 LOTS
PHASE 3A: 30 LOTS
PHASE 3B: 39 LOTS
TOTAL: 91 LOTS

PHASE 3A

PHASE 3B

ATTACHMENT D

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
200'

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
SCALE: 1"=100'

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
0'



CROSS CREEK COURT

CR
OS

S C
RE

EK
 D

RIV
E

60
' R

/W

C
R

O
S

S
 C

R
E

E
K

 D
R

   60' R
/W

Curve Table

CHIME CREEK DR 60' R/W

CHIME CREEK DR   6
0' R/W

A
N

TH
E

M
 M

ILL D
R

.

FUTURE PHASE
CROSS CREEK

2-19

2-18

2-21

2-22

2-17

2-14

2-5

2-2

2-3

2-4

2-15

LINE TABLE LINE TABLE LINE TABLE

LINE TABLE
2-16

2-20

2-1

2-6

2-7

2-8

2-9

2-13

2-10

2-12

2-11

S
a

v
a

n
n

a
h

, 
G

e
o

rg
ia

 |
 (

9
1

2
) 

2
0

0
-3

0
4

1
 |
 C

C
I-

S
A

V
.C

O
M

SHEET:

SCALE:
CHECKED BY:
DRAWN BY:
DATE:
JOB NUMBER:

AS NOTED
NPM
MLF

03/22/2022
19-651.000

REVISIONS:

©
 2

01
8 

CO
LE

M
AN

 C
O

M
PA

N
Y,

 IN
C.

   
   

   
 D

AT
E 

PL
O

TT
ED

: 2
/2

8/
20

23
 8

:1
8 

AM
   

BY
: N

ei
l M

cK
en

zie
   

 D
RA

W
IN

G 
PA

TH
: P

:\
19

-6
51

.0
00

\D
W

G\
Ci

vi
l\R

EV
IS

IO
N

S\
19

-6
51

_C
RO

SS
 C

RE
EK

 S
D 

PH
2_

60
' L

O
TS

_0
3.

15
.2

02
1.

dw
g

C
IV

IL
 C

O
N

ST
RU

C
TIO

N
 P

LA
N

S 
FO

R

CR
O

SS
 C

RE
EK

 SU
BD

IVI
SIO

N 
PH

AS
E 2

LO
C

A
TE

D
 IN

 P
O

O
LE

R,
 G

EO
RG

IA
PR

EP
A

RE
D

 F
O

R 
HA

RM
O

N
Y 

PA
RT

N
ER

S,
 L

LC

03/22/2022: REVISION #1

C3.0

STAKING PLAN

·

·

·

·

·
·

·
·
·
·
·

·
··
··
··
··
··
··

·
··

ATTACHMENT D

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
ONE STORY

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
FRAME BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
FFE:18.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
ONE STORY

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
FRAME BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
FFE:17.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
LOT 136 CROSS CREEK PHASE 1B SMB 17S,P G 12 N/F: KELLY KERNER PIN: 51010A06016

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
LOT 135 CROSS CREEK PHASE 1B SMB 17S,P G 12 N/F: ANTHONY BAGNOLL PIN: 51010A06017

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
LOT 134 CROSS CREEK PHASE 1B SMB 17S,P G 12 N/F: AH4R PROPERTIES LLC PIN: 51010A06018

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
LOT 133 CROSS CREEK PHASE 1B SMB 17S,P G 12 N/F:OK LEE PIN: 51010A07021

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
BM

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
NAVD 88

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
ELEVATION: 14.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
MAG NAIL IN ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
%%UBENCH MARK%%U:

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
EAST: 941,504.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
NORTH: 759,974.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
REMAINING PORTION OF PARCEL 3 N/F: FOREST LAKES DEVELOPERS, LLC PIN: 51010 01007

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
LOT 1 CUFFIE SMITH TRACT N/F: TONY WILLIAMS PIN: 51010 01002A

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
BRAGG TRACT N/F: JOHNSON SQUARE GROUP, LLC PIN: 5-1010-01-001A

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
15' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
15' UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
NAVD 88

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
ELEVATION: 15.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
MAG NAIL IN ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
%%UBENCH MARK%%U:

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
EAST: 941570.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
NORTH: 759664.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
9' WIDE PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
MATCH EXISTING PAVEMENT ELEVATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
20' REAR B.S.L. (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
20' REAR B.S.L. (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
20' REAR B.S.L. (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
15' UTILITY EASEMENT (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
15' UTILITY EASEMENT (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
15' UTILITY EASEMENT (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
15' UTILITY EASEMENT (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
TEMPORARY ACCESS EASEMENT (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
STOP SIGN (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
STOP SIGN (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
STOP BAR (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
STOP BAR (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
TEMPORARY ACCESS EASEMENT (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
25' ACCESS & DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
CROSSWALK (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
HANDICAP RAMP (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
UNDISTURBED HOA BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
UNDISTURBED HOA BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
UNDISTURBED AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
ARV

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
W11-2 PEDESTRIAN CROSSING SIGN W/ W16-7P

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
4"X4" RWCM,  TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
4"X4" RWCM, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
(PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
(PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
(PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
(PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
STANDARD DUTY PAVEMENT: CHIME CREEK DRIVE REFER TO DETAIL P-10 ON C8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
30' FRONT B.S.L. (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
20' REAR B.S.L. (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
30' FRONT B.S.L. (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
30' FRONT B.S.L. (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
20' REAR B.S.L. (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
30' FRONT B.S.L. (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
15' UTILITY EASEMENT (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
15' UTILITY EASEMENT (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
20' REAR B.S.L. (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
25' SIGHT DISTANCE TRIANGLE, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
30' FRONT B.S.L. (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
20' REAR B.S.L. (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
25' DRAINAGE & ACCESS EASEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
30' FRONT B.S.L. (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
30' FRONT B.S.L. (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
10' SIDE B.S.L. (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
25' DRAINAGE EASEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
STOP BAR AND STOP SIGN (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
2+85.37 3+68.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
15' UTILITY EASEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
W11-2 PEDESTRIAN CROSSING SIGN W/ W16-7P

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
SIGN: END CROSS CREEK DRIVE BEGIN ANTHEM MILL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
UNDISTURBED HOA BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
UNDISTURBED HOA BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
80'

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
SCALE: 1"=40'

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
NOTES: IN CASE OF CONFLICT BETWEEN THESE PLANS AND THE CITY OF POOLER'S ORDINANCE, STANDARDS, SPECIFICATIONS OR DETAILS, THE CITY OF POOLER STANDARDS ARE TO TAKE PRECEDENCE. WHEN NEW PUBLIC STREETS ARE BEING CONSTRUCTED; LABORATORY COMPACTION, STABILITY, AND DENSITY TESTS ARE REQUIRED FOR THE PAVEMENT WITH COMPRESSION TESTS FOR THE CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER. (CHAPTER 74, ARTICLE V, SECTION 74-133G) WHEN NEW PUBLIC STREETS ARE BEING CONSTRUCTED; CONSTRUCTION WILL BE PERFORMED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF A REGISTERED ENGINEER. (CHAPTER 74, ARTICLE V, SECTION 74-133J) ALL ROAD SIGNAGE AND PAVEMENT MARKINGS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH MUTCD SPECIFICATIONS. (MUTCD INTRODUCTION, PAGE I-1, PARAGRAPH 03) THERMOPLASTIC PAVEMENT MARKINGS ARE REQUIRED WITHIN RIGHT OF WAY (STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS 02500.2.06) PETROMAT, SUPEX OR OTHER SUITABLE MATERIAL IS REQUIRED WITHIN 50 FEET OF INTERSECTIONS. (APPENDIX B, ARTICLE VI, SECTION 601.02) SELECT FILL SHALL BE USED ON ALL ROAD SUBGRADE TO BE DEDICATED TO THE CITY. ROAD FILL FOR SUBGRADE SHALL BE COMPACTED TO 100% STANDARD PROCTOR (ASTM D 698) TRAFFIC SIGNS INSTALLED INSIDE THE PUBLIC R/W MUST HAVE HIGH INTENSITY OR DIAMOND GRADE SHEETING. STREET NAME SIGNS SHALL BE PROVIDED BY THE DEVELOPER. (CHAPTER 74, ARTICLE V, SECTION 74-135) ALL ROADS SHALL HAVE 60' R/W: CROSS CREEK DR., ANTHEM MILL DR. AND CHIME CREEK DR. ARE ALL PUBLIC ROADS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
LAYOUT NOTES: R-1A DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS: FRONT B.S.L.: 30 FEET REAR B.S.L: 20 FEET SIDE B.S.L.: 10 FT MAX BLDG HEIGHT: 35 FEET MIN LOT WIDTH (AT FRONT B.S.L.): 60 FEET MIN LOT SIZE: 8,500 SQ. FEET CONCRETE R/W MONUMENTS (RWCM) INSTALL 4"X4" CONCRETE MONUMENTS AT LOCATIONS SHOWN. MONUMENTS SHALL BE 30" LONG, WITH FLAT TOP. THE TOP OF THE MONUMENT SHALL CONTAIN A METAL PIN OR BE SCORED WITH AN INDENTED CROSS TO IDENTIFY THE LOCATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
NOTE: LOTS 2-10 & 2-19 BUILDING PADS HAVE BEEN REDUCED TO ALLOW FOR THE MAXIMUM POSSIBLE PAD THE LOTS WILL ALLOW. Lot 2-10 = 40X55' LOT 2-19 = 40X50'



HARMONY AMENITY

ATTACHMENT D



ATTACHMENT D



IN
TE

R
ST

A
TE

 9
5

INTERSTATE 95

Q
U

A
CC

O
 R

O
A

D

IN
TE

R
ST

A
TE

 9
5

S
a
v
a
n
n
a
h
, 
G

e
o
rg

ia
 |
 (

9
1
2
) 

2
0
0
-3

0
4
1
 |
 C

C
I-

S
A

V
.C

O
M

SC
A

LE
:

C
HE

C
KE

D
 B

Y:
D

RA
W

N
 B

Y:
D

A
TE

:
JO

B 
N

UM
BE

R:

A
S 

N
O

TE
D

HA
RM

O
N

Y 
SU

BD
IV

IS
IO

N
 - 

M
A

ST
ER

 P
LA

N
PO

O
LE

R,
 G

EO
RG

IA
PR

EP
A

RE
D

 F
O

R:
 L

A
N

D
M

A
RK

 2
4,

 L
LC

SITE DATA

ZONING: PD (JABOT PUD)
TOTAL ACREAGE: 475.00± AC
HEALTH CARE CAMPUS 32.30± AC
HARMONY RESIDENTIAL 442.70± AC

ALLOWED RESIDENTIAL DENSITY: 1,770 D.U.

TOTAL PROPOSED DWELLING UNITS: 1,110

LOT DATA

EXISTING PHASES - 260 LOTS

HARMONY GREENE TOWNHOMES - 50 UNITS

HARMONY TOWNHOMES - 209 UNITS

HARMONY TRACT-W TOWNHOMES - 180 UNITS

HARMONY TRACT-D TOWNHOMES - 159 UNITS

FUTURE PHASES - 189 LOTS

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

SITE

TOTAL HARMONY DU's = 1,110

"FOR SALE" TOWNHOMES - 63 UNITS

ATTACHMENT D

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
TRACT A

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
BRIDGEWATER HOMEOWNERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
PID# 5-1010-01-040

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
JAMES C. WILSON, JR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
LOUIS C. YOUNG, JR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
PID# 5-1010E-06-044

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
BRIDGEWATER

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
SMB 29-S PG 65

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
FORMER QUACCO

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
ROAD R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
32.3 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
PARCEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
PARCEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
HEALTH CARE

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
CAMPUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
14,267,2461 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
327.531 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
UPLAND  11,426,619 SQ FT (262.319 AC)

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
WETLAND 2,838,642 SQ FT  (65.166 AC)

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
PID# 5-1010-01-007B

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
INTERSTATE 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
POOL BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
POOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
BLDG. TYPE 5J-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
BLDG. TYPE 5J-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
BLDG. TYPE 5J-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
BLDG. TYPE 3A-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
BLDG. TYPE 3A-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
BLDG. TYPE 6M-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
BLDG. TYPE 6M-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
BLDG. TYPE 6M-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
BLDG. TYPE 7D-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
BLDG. TYPE 7D-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
BLDG. TYPE 6B-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
BLDG. TYPE 6B-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
BLDG. TYPE 6B-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
BLDG. TYPE 5A-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
BLDG. TYPE 5A-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
BLDG. TYPE 5A-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
BLDG. TYPE 5A-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
BLDG. TYPE 4G-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
BLDG. TYPE 4G-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
BLDG. TYPE 5A-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
BLDG. TYPE 4G-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
BLDG. TYPE 4G-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
BLDG. TYPE 6C-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
BLDG. TYPE 5F-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
BLDG. TYPE 5F-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
BLDG. TYPE 5F-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
50' BUFFER (UNDISTURBED)

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
15' MAINTENANCE SHELF

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
BLDG. TYPE 4C-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
BLDG. TYPE 4C-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
BLDG. TYPE 4C-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
BLDG. TYPE 4C-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
BLDG. TYPE 4C-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
BLDG. TYPE 4C-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
BLDG. TYPE 4C-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
BLDG. TYPE 5J-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
BLDG. TYPE 5A-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
BLDG. TYPE 5A-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
BLDG. TYPE 5A-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
BLDG. TYPE 4G-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
BLDG. TYPE 4G-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
BLDG. TYPE 4G-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
BLDG. TYPE 6B-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
BLDG. TYPE 6M-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
SIGNAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
141

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
142

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
143

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
145

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
146

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
147

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
148

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
149

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
137

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
138

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
139

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
140

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
126

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
134

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
136

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
151

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
152

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
153

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
154

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
155

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
156

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
157

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
158

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
159

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
BLDG. TYPE 5J-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
BLDG. TYPE 5J-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
BLDG. TYPE 5J-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
BLDG. TYPE 3A-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
BLDG. TYPE 3A-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
BLDG. TYPE 6M-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
BLDG. TYPE 6M-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
BLDG. TYPE 6M-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
BLDG. TYPE 7D-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
BLDG. TYPE 7D-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
BLDG. TYPE 6B-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
BLDG. TYPE 6B-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
BLDG. TYPE 6B-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
BLDG. TYPE 5A-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
BLDG. TYPE 5A-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
BLDG. TYPE 5A-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
BLDG. TYPE 5A-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
BLDG. TYPE 5A-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
BLDG. TYPE 6C-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
BLDG. TYPE 5F-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
BLDG. TYPE 5F-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
BLDG. TYPE 5F-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
BLDG. TYPE 5J-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
BLDG. TYPE 5A-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
BLDG. TYPE 5A-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
BLDG. TYPE 5A-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
BLDG. TYPE 6B-K

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
BLDG. TYPE 6M-W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
D-D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
TOWNHOMES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
159 UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
160

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
161

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
162

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
164

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
165

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
250

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
170

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
171

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
172

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
173

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
199

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
200

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
201

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
202

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
203

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
260

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
259

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
258

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
257

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
254

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
253

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
244

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
243

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
242

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
241

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
240

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
239

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
238

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
237

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
236

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
235

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
234

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
233

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
256

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
231

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
230

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
229

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
228

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
198

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
197

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
196

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
195

AutoCAD SHX Text_1105
194

AutoCAD SHX Text_1106
193

AutoCAD SHX Text_1107
192

AutoCAD SHX Text_1108
191

AutoCAD SHX Text_1109
190

AutoCAD SHX Text_1110
189

AutoCAD SHX Text_1111
188

AutoCAD SHX Text_1112
187

AutoCAD SHX Text_1113
186

AutoCAD SHX Text_1114
185

AutoCAD SHX Text_1115
184

AutoCAD SHX Text_1116
174

AutoCAD SHX Text_1117
175

AutoCAD SHX Text_1118
176

AutoCAD SHX Text_1119
177

AutoCAD SHX Text_1120
178

AutoCAD SHX Text_1121
179

AutoCAD SHX Text_1122
180

AutoCAD SHX Text_1123
181

AutoCAD SHX Text_1124
182

AutoCAD SHX Text_1125
183

AutoCAD SHX Text_1126
CANAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1127
302

AutoCAD SHX Text_1128
303

AutoCAD SHX Text_1129
304

AutoCAD SHX Text_1130
305

AutoCAD SHX Text_1131
307

AutoCAD SHX Text_1132
313

AutoCAD SHX Text_1133
314

AutoCAD SHX Text_1134
315

AutoCAD SHX Text_1135
316

AutoCAD SHX Text_1136
317

AutoCAD SHX Text_1137
318

AutoCAD SHX Text_1138
319

AutoCAD SHX Text_1139
320

AutoCAD SHX Text_1140
321

AutoCAD SHX Text_1141
322

AutoCAD SHX Text_1142
323

AutoCAD SHX Text_1143
328

AutoCAD SHX Text_1144
329

AutoCAD SHX Text_1145
330

AutoCAD SHX Text_1146
331

AutoCAD SHX Text_1147
335

AutoCAD SHX Text_1148
336

AutoCAD SHX Text_1149
341

AutoCAD SHX Text_1150
342

AutoCAD SHX Text_1151
344

AutoCAD SHX Text_1152
345

AutoCAD SHX Text_1153
346

AutoCAD SHX Text_1154
347

AutoCAD SHX Text_1155
348

AutoCAD SHX Text_1156
349

AutoCAD SHX Text_1157
350

AutoCAD SHX Text_1158
301

AutoCAD SHX Text_1159
351

AutoCAD SHX Text_1160
352

AutoCAD SHX Text_1161
353

AutoCAD SHX Text_1162
354

AutoCAD SHX Text_1163
355

AutoCAD SHX Text_1164
356

AutoCAD SHX Text_1165
247

AutoCAD SHX Text_1166
306

AutoCAD SHX Text_1167
245

AutoCAD SHX Text_1168
262

AutoCAD SHX Text_1169
274

AutoCAD SHX Text_1170
273

AutoCAD SHX Text_1171
272

AutoCAD SHX Text_1172
241

AutoCAD SHX Text_1173
240

AutoCAD SHX Text_1174
332

AutoCAD SHX Text_1175
333

AutoCAD SHX Text_1176
334

AutoCAD SHX Text_1177
337

AutoCAD SHX Text_1178
338

AutoCAD SHX Text_1179
339

AutoCAD SHX Text_1180
340

AutoCAD SHX Text_1181
343

AutoCAD SHX Text_1182
239

AutoCAD SHX Text_1183
238

AutoCAD SHX Text_1184
237

AutoCAD SHX Text_1185
163

AutoCAD SHX Text_1186
232

AutoCAD SHX Text_1187
255

AutoCAD SHX Text_1188
243

AutoCAD SHX Text_1189
248

AutoCAD SHX Text_1190
249

AutoCAD SHX Text_1191
251

AutoCAD SHX Text_1192
252

AutoCAD SHX Text_1193
251

AutoCAD SHX Text_1194
250

AutoCAD SHX Text_1195
253

AutoCAD SHX Text_1196
254

AutoCAD SHX Text_1197
255

AutoCAD SHX Text_1198
256

AutoCAD SHX Text_1199
244

AutoCAD SHX Text_1200
245

AutoCAD SHX Text_1201
246

AutoCAD SHX Text_1202
371

AutoCAD SHX Text_1203
370

AutoCAD SHX Text_1204
367

AutoCAD SHX Text_1205
368

AutoCAD SHX Text_1206
369

AutoCAD SHX Text_1207
261

AutoCAD SHX Text_1208
260

AutoCAD SHX Text_1209
259

AutoCAD SHX Text_1210
258

AutoCAD SHX Text_1211
257

AutoCAD SHX Text_1212
242

AutoCAD SHX Text_1213
263

AutoCAD SHX Text_1214
264

AutoCAD SHX Text_1215
265

AutoCAD SHX Text_1216
266

AutoCAD SHX Text_1217
267

AutoCAD SHX Text_1218
268

AutoCAD SHX Text_1219
269

AutoCAD SHX Text_1220
270

AutoCAD SHX Text_1221
271

AutoCAD SHX Text_1222
327

AutoCAD SHX Text_1223
326

AutoCAD SHX Text_1224
325

AutoCAD SHX Text_1225
324

AutoCAD SHX Text_1226
312

AutoCAD SHX Text_1227
311

AutoCAD SHX Text_1228
310

AutoCAD SHX Text_1229
309

AutoCAD SHX Text_1230
308

AutoCAD SHX Text_1231
251

AutoCAD SHX Text_1232
252

AutoCAD SHX Text_1233
250

AutoCAD SHX Text_1234
249

AutoCAD SHX Text_1235
248

AutoCAD SHX Text_1236
284

AutoCAD SHX Text_1237
286

AutoCAD SHX Text_1238
287

AutoCAD SHX Text_1239
288

AutoCAD SHX Text_1240
289

AutoCAD SHX Text_1241
290

AutoCAD SHX Text_1242
247

AutoCAD SHX Text_1243
246

AutoCAD SHX Text_1244
291

AutoCAD SHX Text_1245
292

AutoCAD SHX Text_1246
293

AutoCAD SHX Text_1247
294

AutoCAD SHX Text_1248
295

AutoCAD SHX Text_1249
296

AutoCAD SHX Text_1250
297

AutoCAD SHX Text_1251
298

AutoCAD SHX Text_1252
299

AutoCAD SHX Text_1253
300

AutoCAD SHX Text_1254
281

AutoCAD SHX Text_1255
282

AutoCAD SHX Text_1256
283

AutoCAD SHX Text_1257
275

AutoCAD SHX Text_1258
276

AutoCAD SHX Text_1259
277

AutoCAD SHX Text_1260
278

AutoCAD SHX Text_1261
279

AutoCAD SHX Text_1262
280

AutoCAD SHX Text_1263
261 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1264
357

AutoCAD SHX Text_1265
358

AutoCAD SHX Text_1266
359

AutoCAD SHX Text_1267
360

AutoCAD SHX Text_1268
361

AutoCAD SHX Text_1269
362

AutoCAD SHX Text_1270
363

AutoCAD SHX Text_1271
364

AutoCAD SHX Text_1272
365

AutoCAD SHX Text_1273
366

AutoCAD SHX Text_1274
285

AutoCAD SHX Text_1275
HARMONY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1276
TOWNHOMES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1277
%%P23.66 AC. TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1278
209 UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1279
HARMONY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1280
GREENE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1281
TOWNHOMES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1282
18.88 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1283
50 UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1284
WETLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_1285
WETLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_1286
WETLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_1287
WETLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_1288
WETLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_1289
TRACT "D"

AutoCAD SHX Text_1290
376

AutoCAD SHX Text_1291
377

AutoCAD SHX Text_1292
378

AutoCAD SHX Text_1293
379

AutoCAD SHX Text_1294
380

AutoCAD SHX Text_1295
375

AutoCAD SHX Text_1296
374

AutoCAD SHX Text_1297
373

AutoCAD SHX Text_1298
372

AutoCAD SHX Text_1299
371

AutoCAD SHX Text_1300
381

AutoCAD SHX Text_1301
382

AutoCAD SHX Text_1302
383

AutoCAD SHX Text_1303
384

AutoCAD SHX Text_1304
385

AutoCAD SHX Text_1305
386

AutoCAD SHX Text_1306
387

AutoCAD SHX Text_1307
388

AutoCAD SHX Text_1308
389

AutoCAD SHX Text_1309
390

AutoCAD SHX Text_1310
391

AutoCAD SHX Text_1311
392

AutoCAD SHX Text_1312
393

AutoCAD SHX Text_1313
394

AutoCAD SHX Text_1314
395

AutoCAD SHX Text_1315
396

AutoCAD SHX Text_1316
397

AutoCAD SHX Text_1317
398

AutoCAD SHX Text_1318
399

AutoCAD SHX Text_1319
400

AutoCAD SHX Text_1320
401

AutoCAD SHX Text_1321
402

AutoCAD SHX Text_1322
403

AutoCAD SHX Text_1323
404

AutoCAD SHX Text_1324
405

AutoCAD SHX Text_1325
406

AutoCAD SHX Text_1326
407

AutoCAD SHX Text_1327
408

AutoCAD SHX Text_1328
409

AutoCAD SHX Text_1329
410

AutoCAD SHX Text_1330
411

AutoCAD SHX Text_1331
412

AutoCAD SHX Text_1332
413

AutoCAD SHX Text_1333
414

AutoCAD SHX Text_1334
415

AutoCAD SHX Text_1335
416

AutoCAD SHX Text_1336
417

AutoCAD SHX Text_1337
418

AutoCAD SHX Text_1338
419

AutoCAD SHX Text_1339
420

AutoCAD SHX Text_1340
421

AutoCAD SHX Text_1341
422

AutoCAD SHX Text_1342
423

AutoCAD SHX Text_1343
424

AutoCAD SHX Text_1344
425

AutoCAD SHX Text_1345
426

AutoCAD SHX Text_1346
427

AutoCAD SHX Text_1347
428

AutoCAD SHX Text_1348
429

AutoCAD SHX Text_1349
430

AutoCAD SHX Text_1350
431

AutoCAD SHX Text_1351
432

AutoCAD SHX Text_1352
433

AutoCAD SHX Text_1353
434

AutoCAD SHX Text_1354
435

AutoCAD SHX Text_1355
436

AutoCAD SHX Text_1356
437

AutoCAD SHX Text_1357
438

AutoCAD SHX Text_1358
439

AutoCAD SHX Text_1359
440

AutoCAD SHX Text_1360
441

AutoCAD SHX Text_1361
442

AutoCAD SHX Text_1362
443

AutoCAD SHX Text_1363
444

AutoCAD SHX Text_1364
445

AutoCAD SHX Text_1365
446

AutoCAD SHX Text_1366
447

AutoCAD SHX Text_1367
AMENITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1368
5 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1369
TRACT "D"

AutoCAD SHX Text_1370
OPTIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1371
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1372
CONNECTION,

AutoCAD SHX Text_1373
SUBJECT TO

AutoCAD SHX Text_1374
PERMITTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1375
TOWNHOMES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1376
TRACT "W"

AutoCAD SHX Text_1377
180 UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1378
ENVIRONMENTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1379
FUTURE PHASES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1380
189 UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1381
"FOR SALE" TOWNHOMES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1382
63 UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1383
75'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1384
300'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1385
600'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1386
SCALE: 1"=300'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1387
0'

nmckenzie_16
Polygon

nmckenzie_17
Text Box
HARMONY AMENITY SITE27.42 ACRES

nmckenzie_18
Polygon

nmckenzie_19
Text Box
CROSS CREEK REMAINING89.88 ACRES

nmckenzie_20
Rectangle

nmckenzie_21
Text Box
CROSS CREEK REMAINING - 105 SINGLE FAMILY DETACHED UNITS

nmckenzie_22
Rectangle

nmckenzie_23
Text Box
NEW HARMONY AMENITY SITE (UNDER CONSTRUCTION)

nmckenzie_24
Cloud+

nmckenzie_25
Cloud+
TOTAL PROPOSED DWELLING UNITS 1,270(WITH ADDITION OF CROSS CREEK)

nmckenzie_26
Cloud+

nmckenzie_27
Cloud+
TOTAL PROPOSED DWELLING UNITS 1,270(WITH ADDITION OF CROSS CREEK)

nmckenzie_28
Cloud+

nmckenzie_29
Cloud+
RELOCATE TO NEW LOCATION

nmckenzie_30
Cloud+

nmckenzie_31
Cloud+
TOTAL ALLOWED DWELLING UNITS 2,130 (WITH ADDITION OF CROSS CREEK

nmckenzie_32
Cloud+

nmckenzie_33
Cloud+
244 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS (CORRECTION FROM PREVIOUS VERSIONS TO RECONCILE DENSITY)



MELODY DRIVE
60' R/W

SYMPHONY DRIVE

60' R/W

CANTANA CIRCLE

60' R/W

MELODY DRIVE
60' R/W

CANTATA CIRCLE

MELODY DRIVE
60' R/W

CANTATA CIRCLE

C2.0

OVERALL VIEW

S
a
v
a
n
n
a
h
, 
G

e
o
rg

ia
 |
 (

9
1
2
) 

2
0
0
-3

0
4
1
 |
 C

C
I-

S
A

V
.C

O
M

SHEET:

SCALE:
CHECKED BY:
DRAWN BY:
DATE:
JOB NUMBER:

AS NOTED
NPM
SCF

12/09/22
21-976.000

REVISIONS:

©
 2

01
8 

CO
LE

M
AN

 C
O

M
PA

N
Y,

 IN
C.

   
   

   
 D

AT
E 

PL
O

TT
ED

: 1
/3

0/
20

23
 3

:4
0 

PM
   

BY
: S

ha
ne

e 
Fe

rg
us

on
   

 D
RA

W
IN

G 
PA

TH
: Q

:\
20

21
\2

1-
97

6.
00

0\
DW

G\
Ci

vi
l\2

1-
97

6.
00

0 
- H

AR
M

O
N

Y 
AM

EN
IT

Y.
dw

g

C
IV

IL
 C

O
N

ST
RU

C
TIO

N
 P

LA
N

S 
FO

R

HA
RM

O
NY

 SU
BD

IVI
SIO

N 
AM

EN
ITY

LO
C

A
TE

D
 IN

 P
O

O
LE

R,
 G

EO
RG

IA
PR

EP
A

RE
D

 F
O

R 
HA

RM
O

N
Y 

PA
RT

N
ER

S,
 L

LC

ATTACHMENT D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1388
ELEVATION: 15.09'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1389
MAG NAIL IN ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1390
%%UBENCH MARK%%U:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1391
NAVD 1988

AutoCAD SHX Text_1392
N/F: CHATHAM WATER UTILITY, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1393
PIN: 51010 01068

AutoCAD SHX Text_1394
PLAT BOOK 50, PAGE 425

AutoCAD SHX Text_1395
N/F: HARMONY PARTNERS, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1396
PIN: 51010F05072

AutoCAD SHX Text_1397
PLAT BOOK 52, PAGES 416-417

AutoCAD SHX Text_1398
PORTION OF PARCEL 3 PRB 9P, PG 13 N/F: FOREST LAKES DEVELOPERS, LLC PIN: 51010 01007

AutoCAD SHX Text_1399
LOT 244 PB 52, PGS 416-417 N/F: PETER & SHARON DELSOL PIN: 51010F05071

AutoCAD SHX Text_1400
LOT 243 PB 52, PGS 416-417 N/F: LANDMARK 24 HOMES OF GA, LLC PIN: 51010F05070

AutoCAD SHX Text_1401
LOT 242 PB 52, PGS 416-417 N/F: HARMONY PARTNERS, LLC PIN: 51010F05069

AutoCAD SHX Text_1402
LOT 241 PB 52, PGS 416-417 N/F: HARMONY PARTNERS, LLC PIN: 51010F05067

AutoCAD SHX Text_1403
48"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1404
LOT 240 PB 52, PGS 416-417 N/F: LANDMARK 24 HOMES OF GA, LLC PIN: 51010F05066

AutoCAD SHX Text_1405
LOT 239 PB 52, PGS 416-417 N/F: JODI-KAYE FOOTE PIN: 51010F05065

AutoCAD SHX Text_1406
LOT 238 PB 52, PGS 416-417 N/F: HARMONY PARTNERS, LLC PIN: 51010F05064

AutoCAD SHX Text_1407
LOT 237 PB 52, PGS 416-417 N/F: RHONDA PETERS PIN: 51010F05063

AutoCAD SHX Text_1408
LOT 236 PB 52, PGS 416-417 N/F: LANDMARK 24 HOMES OF GA, LLC PIN: 51010F05062

AutoCAD SHX Text_1409
LOT 235 PB 52, PGS 416-417 N/F: LANDMARK 24 HOMES OF GA, LLC PIN: 51010F05061

AutoCAD SHX Text_1410
OPEN SPACE A PB 52, PGS 416-417 N/F: LANDMARK 24 HOMES OF GA, LLC PIN: 51010F05053

AutoCAD SHX Text_1411
PORTION OF PARCEL 3 PRB 9P, PG 13 N/F: FOREST LAKES DEVELOPERS, LLC PIN: 51010 01007

AutoCAD SHX Text_1412
PORTION OF PARCEL 3 PRB 9P, PG 13 N/F: FOREST LAKES DEVELOPERS, LLC PIN: 51010 01007

AutoCAD SHX Text_1413
27.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1414
28.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1415
PORTION OF PARCEL 3 PRB 9P, PG 13 N/F: FOREST LAKES DEVELOPERS, LLC PIN: 51010 01007

AutoCAD SHX Text_1416
35' ACCESS & MAINTENANCE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1417
35' ACCESS & MAINTENANCE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1418
OPEN SPACE A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1419
OPEN SPACE B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1420
FORMER PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1421
20' ACCESS & DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1422
15' ACCESS & DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1423
20' DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1424
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1425
POR N:757451.19 E:938645.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1426
27.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1427
28.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1428
29.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1429
30.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1430
31.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1431
32.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1432
33.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1433
34.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1434
35.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1435
36.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1436
37.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1437
38.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1438
39.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1439
40.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1440
41.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1441
42.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1442
HARMONY SUBDIVISION PHASE 1 SMB 36S, PGS 89A-M

AutoCAD SHX Text_1443
HARMONY SUBDIVISION PHASE 5 PB 52, PG 416

AutoCAD SHX Text_1444
HARMONY SUBDIVISION PHASE 3 PB 50, PG 527

AutoCAD SHX Text_1445
20' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1446
15' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1447
15' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1448
20' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1449
20' ACCESS & UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1450
PLAT BOOK 50, PAGE 425 N/F: CHATHAM COUNTY PIN: 51010 01069

AutoCAD SHX Text_1451
20' ACCESS & DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1452
15' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1453
15' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1454
20' DRAINAGE & ACCESS EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1455
20' UTILITY R/W PUBLIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1456
PLAT BOOK 50, PAGE 425 N/F: CHATHAM WATER UTILITY LLC PIN: 51010 01068

AutoCAD SHX Text_1457
20' ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1458
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1459
N/F: CHATHAM WATER UTILITY, LLC PIN: 51010 01005C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1460
N/F: CHATHAM WATER UTILITY, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1461
PIN: 51010 01068

AutoCAD SHX Text_1462
LOT 247

AutoCAD SHX Text_1463
25' ACCESS & UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1464
OPEN SPACE B HARMONY; PHASE 5 PLAT BOOK 52, PGS 416-417

AutoCAD SHX Text_1465
15' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1466
PLAT BOOK 50, PAGE 425

AutoCAD SHX Text_1467
25' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1468
15' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1469
25' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1470
25' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1471
20' ACCESS & DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1472
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1473
20' DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1474
20' DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1475
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1476
15' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1477
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1478
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1479
SLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1480
SLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1481
SSMH TOP:16.02' IE:-5.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1482
8"PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1483
8"PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1484
48"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1485
48"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1486
IE:8.60' FES:9.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1487
STMH TOP:15.42' IE:9.22'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1488
STATIC WATER: 9.74'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1489
RI TOP:14.52' TH:12.00' IE:9.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1490
24"P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1491
31"P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1492
CHH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1493
TR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1494
UE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1495
UE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1496
ELAT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1497
ELAT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1498
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1499
WWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1500
WATER MAIN STUB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1501
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1502
ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1503
BFE:12'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1504
NAVD 88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1505
ZONE X

AutoCAD SHX Text_1506
APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF FLOOD ZONE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1507
BM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1508
FRAME RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1509
HARMONY; PHASE 5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1510
PLAT BOOK 52, PGS 416-417

AutoCAD SHX Text_1511
NAVD 88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1512
ELEVATION: 18.09'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1513
MAG NAIL IN ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1514
%%UBENCH MARK%%U:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1515
EX. 8" GRAVITY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1516
TO EXISTING LIFT STAION

AutoCAD SHX Text_1517
IE: 8.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1518
N/F: CHATHAM WATER UTILITY, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1519
PIN: 51010 01068

AutoCAD SHX Text_1520
LOT 247

AutoCAD SHX Text_1521
25' ACCESS & UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1522
OPEN SPACE B HARMONY; PHASE 5 PLAT BOOK 52, PGS 416-417

AutoCAD SHX Text_1523
15' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1524
PLAT BOOK 50, PAGE 425

AutoCAD SHX Text_1525
25' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1526
15' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1527
25' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1528
25' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1529
20' ACCESS & DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1530
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1531
20' DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1532
20' DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1533
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1534
15' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1535
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1536
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1537
SLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1538
SLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1539
SSMH TOP:16.02' IE:-5.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1540
8"PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1541
8"PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1542
48"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1543
48"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1544
IE:8.60' FES:9.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1545
STMH TOP:15.42' IE:9.22'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1546
STATIC WATER: 9.74'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1547
RI TOP:14.52' TH:12.00' IE:9.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1548
24"P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1549
31"P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1550
CHH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1551
TR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1552
UE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1553
UE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1554
ELAT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1555
ELAT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1556
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1557
WWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1558
WATER MAIN STUB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1559
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1560
ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1561
BFE:12'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1562
NAVD 88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1563
ZONE X

AutoCAD SHX Text_1564
APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF FLOOD ZONE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1565
BM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1566
FRAME RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1567
HARMONY; PHASE 5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1568
PLAT BOOK 52, PGS 416-417

AutoCAD SHX Text_1569
NAVD 88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1570
ELEVATION: 18.09'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1571
MAG NAIL IN ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1572
%%UBENCH MARK%%U:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1573
EX. 8" GRAVITY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1574
TO EXISTING LIFT STAION

AutoCAD SHX Text_1575
IE: 8.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1576
NOTE: 20' ACCESS/UTILITY EASEMENT WILL BE DUAL PURPOSED FOR CONTINUED ACCESS  TO THE WTF AS WELL AS FOR FUTURE FORCE MAIN USE.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1577
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1578
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1579
200'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1580
SCALE: 1"=100'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1581
0'



MELODY DRIVE
60' R/W

MELODY DRIVE

11

8

12

11
4

STRUCTURE
FFE: 16.60

MELODY DRIVE

TOP OF POOL
DECK 16.50

PLAYGROUND
AREA

NEW POND #1

S
a
v
a
n
n
a
h
, 
G

e
o
rg

ia
 |
 (

9
1
2
) 

2
0
0
-3

0
4
1
 |
 C

C
I-

S
A

V
.C

O
M

SHEET:

SCALE:
CHECKED BY:
DRAWN BY:
DATE:
JOB NUMBER:

AS NOTED
NPM
SCF

12/09/22
21-976.000

REVISIONS:

©
 2

01
8 

CO
LE

M
AN

 C
O

M
PA

N
Y,

 IN
C.

   
   

   
 D

AT
E 

PL
O

TT
ED

: 1
/3

0/
20

23
 3

:4
0 

PM
   

BY
: S

ha
ne

e 
Fe

rg
us

on
   

 D
RA

W
IN

G 
PA

TH
: Q

:\
20

21
\2

1-
97

6.
00

0\
DW

G\
Ci

vi
l\2

1-
97

6.
00

0 
- H

AR
M

O
N

Y 
AM

EN
IT

Y.
dw

g

C
IV

IL
 C

O
N

ST
RU

C
TIO

N
 P

LA
N

S 
FO

R

HA
RM

O
NY

 SU
BD

IVI
SIO

N 
AM

EN
ITY

LO
C

A
TE

D
 IN

 P
O

O
LE

R,
 G

EO
RG

IA
PR

EP
A

RE
D

 F
O

R 
HA

RM
O

N
Y 

PA
RT

N
ER

S,
 L

LC

STAKING PLAN

C4.0

ATTACHMENT D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1582
20' ACCESS & UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1583
15' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1584
(PRB 7P, PG 3)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1585
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text_1586
CMF (BROKEN)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1587
1"IPF

AutoCAD SHX Text_1588
1"IPF

AutoCAD SHX Text_1589
1"IPF

AutoCAD SHX Text_1590
1"IPF

AutoCAD SHX Text_1591
FM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1592
FM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1593
15' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1594
8"PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1595
EARTHEN DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1596
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1597
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1598
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1599
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1600
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1601
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1602
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1603
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1604
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1605
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text_1606
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text_1607
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text_1608
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1609
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text_1610
OHU

AutoCAD SHX Text_1611
OHU

AutoCAD SHX Text_1612
OHU

AutoCAD SHX Text_1613
OHU

AutoCAD SHX Text_1614
OHU

AutoCAD SHX Text_1615
OHU

AutoCAD SHX Text_1616
TR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1617
FM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1618
FM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1619
ELECTRIC PANEL(2)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1620
ELECTRIC PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1621
ELECTRIC PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1622
5X7' CONCRETE BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1623
20' DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1624
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1625
35.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1626
36.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1627
37.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1628
38.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1629
39.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1630
40.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1631
41.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1632
42.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1633
HARMONY SUBDIVISION PHASE 5 PB 52, PG 416

AutoCAD SHX Text_1634
20' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1635
20' ACCESS & UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1636
WATER DEPTH= 3'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1637
WATER DEPTH= 4'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1638
WATER DEPTH= 5'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1639
WATER DEPTH= 3'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1640
WATER DEPTH= 4'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1641
N/F: CHATHAM WATER UTILITY, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1642
PIN: 51010 01068

AutoCAD SHX Text_1643
PLAT BOOK 50, PAGE 425

AutoCAD SHX Text_1644
25' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1645
25' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1646
20' DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1647
20' DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1648
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1649
15' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1650
STATIC WATER: 9.74'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1651
NAVD 88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1652
ELEVATION: 18.09'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1653
MAG NAIL IN ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1654
%%UBENCH MARK%%U:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1655
N/F: CHATHAM WATER UTILITY, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1656
PIN: 51010 01068

AutoCAD SHX Text_1657
PLAT BOOK 50, PAGE 425

AutoCAD SHX Text_1658
25' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1659
25' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1660
20' DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1661
20' DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1662
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1663
15' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1664
STATIC WATER: 9.74'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1665
NAVD 88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1666
ELEVATION: 18.09'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1667
MAG NAIL IN ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1668
%%UBENCH MARK%%U:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1669
20' UTILITY/ ACCESS EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1670
384 LF DRAINAGE  SWALE @ 1.0% (AVG). 5' BTM WIDTH, 4:1 SS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1671
MONOLITHIC SIDEWALK AND PAVEMENT INTERFACE, TYP.  SEE DETAIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1672
RAMP SIDEWALK DOWN TO BE  FLUSH WITH EDGE OF PAVEMENT. MAX RUNNING SLOPE 5%.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1673
DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1674
5" WHITE STRIPING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1675
CROSSWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1676
HANDICAP RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1677
DEPRESS CURB TO TO CONSTRUCT RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1678
WHITE THERMOPLASTIC STOP BAR (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1679
R1-1 STOP SIGN (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1680
ADA PARKING, SEE DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1681
5" WHITE STRIPING PARKING STALL 20' X 9' TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1682
5' CONC. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1683
STANDARD DUTY PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1684
STANDARD DUTY PAVING 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1685
FLOOD ZONE AE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1686
PRIVATE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1687
BEGIN TRANSITION TO SUPER- ELEVATED ROAD SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_1688
5" WHITE STRIPING "EMERGENCY TURN-AROUND"

AutoCAD SHX Text_1689
4' CONC. SIDEWALK W/ 2' GRASS STRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1690
328 LF DRAINAGE  SWALE @ 0.75% (AVG). 5' BTM WIDTH 4:1 SS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1691
4' CONC. SIDEWALK W/ 2' GRASS STRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1692
END PITCHED CURB AND  GUTTER AT PROPERTY LINE AND TRANSITION INTO  3.5' GRASS STRIP AND  4' SIDEWALK ONLY.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1693
12.5' CONCRETE FLUME 5' FLOW WIDTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1694
12.5' CONCRETE FLUME 5' FLOW WIDTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1695
21' CONCRETE FLUME 5' FLOW WIDTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1696
BEGIN TRANSITION TO PITCHED  CURB & GUTTER, THIS SIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1697
NORMAL CURB &  GUTTER, THIS SIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1698
SUPER-ELEVATED ROAD SECTION,  2% CROSS SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1699
NORMAL CURB &  GUTTER, THIS SIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1700
INVERTED CROWN  SECTION, 2% CROSS SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1701
INVERTED CROWN  SECTION, 2% CROSS SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1702
68 LF CONCRETE INTERSECTION SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1703
HANDICAP RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1704
CROSSWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1705
CROSSWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1706
5" WHITE STRIPING "FIRE ACCESS"

AutoCAD SHX Text_1707
20' UTILITY/ ACCESS EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1708
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1709
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1710
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1711
SCALE: 1"=50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1712
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1713
PARKING CALCULATION TOTAL: 47 SPACES INCLUDING 4 HANDICAP SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1714
SITE PREPARATION NOTE: BACKFILL LAGOONS IN 2' LIFTS AND  COMPACT TO 98% ASTM1557.  CONTRACTOR PERFORM DENSITY TESTS TO CONFIRM SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS PRIOR TO SUB-GRADE PREPARATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1715
NOTE: THE TREATMENT FACILITY WILL BE DECOMMISSIONED AND ALL EQUIPMENT AND PIPING RELATED TO THE OPERATION OF THE FACILITY AND SPRAY FIELD WILL BE REMOVED BY OTHERS PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION.













 

 
1 
 

  
PLANNING & ZONING STAFF REPORT 

Variance for 130 Towne Center Drive Buffer Requirements 
 

 

Project:  #A24-0101 

P&Z Meeting Date:  July 8, 2024 

Public Hearing Date:  July 15, 2024 

Applicant and Authorized Agent:  Dan Fischer | EMC Engineering Services 

Location (Address):  130 Towne Center Drive 

Parcel (PIN):  50017C 02030 

Existing Zoning:  PUD (Planned Unit Development)- Godley Station 

   

Zoning Action:  Variance 

Request:  Request to encroach 4 feet into the 15-foot required buffer to 
construct required parking for a multi-family development. 

   

Application Filed:  June 6, 2024 

Legal Notice Published:  June 30, 2024 

Sign Posted:  June 21, 2024 

Letters Mailed:  June 21, 2024 

   

Staff Recommendation:  Denial 

Planning & Zoning Commission:  After review of the criteria, P&Z recommends denial of the request. 

Recommended Motion:  “After review of the criteria, move for denial of the request.” 

   



  

2 

Background:  The subject property is located in the Godley Station PUD, within a 
commercial tract and is approximately 10 acres in size.  The site is 
accessed via Towne Center Drive and was previously developed as 
the Surf Lagoon Water Park.   

The applicant is seeking approval for a variance to encroach 4 feet 
into the required 15-foot buffer to construct required parking for a 
multi-family development. Preliminary site, landscape and 
architectural plans have been approved by the Architectural Review 
Board of the Southern Portion of Godley Association, Inc. The 
developer owns the adjacent right-of-way and the subject parcel. 

Relevant Ordinances:  App. A, Art. V, Sec. 9 - Variances 

   

Zoning Action Standards:  1. That there are unique physical circumstances or conditions 
beyond that of surrounding properties, including irregularity, 
narrowness, or shallowness of the lot size or shape, or 
exceptional topographical or other physical conditions, 
peculiar to the particular property. 

• Although previously developed, the subject parcel is 
currently vacant but is generally the same size and 
shape as other parcels in the vicinity, and they do not 
have unique physical constraints that give them 
peculiar circumstances or conditions.  

2. That because of such physical circumstances or conditions, 
the property cannot be developed in strict conformity with the 
provisions of the zoning ordinance, without undue hardship to 
the property.  

• The parcel does not have any unique physical 
circumstances or conditions that apply to it. The layout 
of the proposed multi-family development can be 
reconfigured to accommodate the required parking to 
comply with parking requirements. The property could 
be developed meeting the requirements of the 
ordinance.   

3. That granting the variance will not result in authorization of a 
use not otherwise permitted in the district in which the 
property is located or cause substantial detriment to the 
public good. 

• The variance will not result in a use not authorized in 
the zoning district.   

   



  

3 

Conclusion:  Staff finds the request does not comply with the required criteria for 
a variance in meeting only one of three criteria.  As such, staff 
recommends Denial of the request. 

   

Attachments:  A. Vicinity Map 

B. Zoning Map 

C. Application and Submittal Documentation 

   
 



This map was created using Latapult | www.latapult.com | Bigger Data Faster Maps Stronger Decisions

Vicinity Map - 130
Towne Center

Drive
06/28/2024

 Parcels

Attachment A



This map was created using Latapult | www.latapult.com | Bigger Data Faster Maps Stronger Decisions

Zoning Map - 130
Towne Center

Drive
06/28/2024

 Parcels

 Business/Commercial

 Industrial

 PUD

 Residential

Attachment B



Attachment C



(See attached narrative)

6/6/24

Attachment C



PURPOSE OF THE BUFFER VARIANCE REQUEST – TOWNE CENTER MULTIFAMILY 

Requesting a 4' buffer variance along the southern property line due to the size and shape of the 
parcel to allow for the construction of required parking for a multifamily development.  The 
current buffer requirement is 15' as per section V.B. of the Development Guidelines of the 
Southern Portion of Godley Station PUD.  Preliminary site, landscape, and architectural plans 
have been approved by the ARB that include a planted evergreen buffer in the remaining 11' of 
space.  The proposed buffer variance is typical of previous developments in the area and will not 
be a detriment to the neighborhood.  The developer owns the adjoining private ROW and 
undeveloped parcel.  

Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C

Dan
PolyLine

Dan_1
Text Box
TOWNE CENTER MULTIFAMILY



O O O

O
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

OOOO

O
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

O

12

12
11

10

 9

 9

12

12

 9

11

12 4

 4 12

12 12

ST

ST

O

O

O
O

O
O

O O O O O O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

12

12

12

12

 8

 8  8  8

12 12

 8 10  8  8 10 11

12 11

 812

 7  7

10

 7

10

 7

10

 7

10

 7

10 10 8

 7

 8

12

12 12

12

12

 9

12

 7  7 9

10

 7 12  4

BUILDING A
FFE: 23.50

BUILDING B
FFE: 23.50

BUILDING C
FFE: 22.50

BUILDING D
FFE: 22.50

BUILDING E
FFE: 22.50

BUILDING F
FFE: 22.50

OFF-SITE
DETENTION POND

PARCEL 7HILTON HOME 2

MAINTENANCE
BUILDING

GARAGE
BUILDING, TYP.

REGIONAL
DETENTION

POND

10

SS

SS

SS
SS

SS SSSS SSSS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SSSSSSSS

SS

SSSSSS

SS

SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS

SS

SSSS SSSSSS

SS

SS

SS

6"
W

6"
W

10
"W

10"W 10"W 10"W 10"W 10"W 10"W 10"W

10"W
10"W

10"W

8"W
8"W

8"W

2"W

PROPOSED PUMP HOUSE

MAINTAIN EXISTING WELL LOCATION

SMOKER'S HUT

FH

W

BFP

WM

RPZ

W

RPZ

RPZ BFP

FH

FH

FH
BFP

RPZ

RPZ

BFP

RPZ

BFP

FH

FH

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

WM

FH

FH

DUMPSTER

DOG WASH

OOOOOOOOOOOOO

O
O

O
O

O
O

O

BFP

MONUMENT SIGN

ST

PAVILION

PLAYGROUND

PERMEABLE
PAVERS

PAVILION

PICKLEBALL COURT

VEHICLE CARE
STRUCTURE

ST ST

ST

ST

25' BUILDING SETBACK

25
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

E
TB

A
C

K

25
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

E
TB

A
C

K

25
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

E
TB

A
C

K

25' BUILDING SETBACK

15' BUFFER  (4' VARIANCE REQ'D)

15
' B

U
FF

E
R

15' BUFFER

15
' B

U
FF

E
R

15
' B

U
FF

E
R

15' BUFFER

25' BUILDING SETBACK

15
' B

U
FF

E
R

25
' P

A
V

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

ST

CLUB HOUSE
FFE: 22.50

DOG
PARK

POOL

SHEET

OF

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r:

SURVEY DATE:

SE
R

VI
C

ES
, I

N
C

.
 E

M
C

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 

SCALE:
DATE:

PROJECT NO.:

SURVEYED BY:

CHECKED BY:

DESIGNED BY:
DRAWN BY:

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1" =

0'

27
 C

ha
th

am
 C

en
te

r S
ou

th
, S

ui
te

 A
Sa

va
nn

ah
, G

A 
31

40
5

Ph
: (

91
2)

 2
32

-6
53

3
Fa

x:
 (9

12
) 2

33
-4

58
0

sa
va

nn
ah

@
em

c-
en

g.
co

m
w

w
w

.e
m

c-
en

g.
co

m
EN

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

TA
L

C
IV

IL
M

AR
IN

E

AL
BA

N
Y 

• A
TL

AN
TA

 • 
AU

G
U

ST
A 

• B
R

U
N

SW
IC

K 
• C

O
LU

M
BU

S
G

R
EE

N
VI

LL
E 

• S
AV

AN
N

AH
 • 

ST
AT

ES
BO

R
O

 • 
TH

O
M

AS
TO

N
 • 

VA
LD

O
ST

A

D
AT

E
N

O
.

R
EV

IS
IO

N
 D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
O

VE
R

AL
L 

SI
TE

 L
AY

O
U

T

TO
W

N
E 

C
EN

TE
R

 D
R

IV
E

PO
O

LE
R

, C
H

AT
H

AM
 C

O
U

N
TY

, G
EO

R
G

IA

PO
O

LE
R

 M
U

LT
IF

AM
IL

Y

TO
W

N
E 

C
EN

TE
R

 H
O

LD
IN

G
S

21-0140
WCS
WCS
EMC

-
ABM

1" = 50' 
MARCH 2024

4
32

50' 50' 

50' 

25'

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

SITE DATA:

1. LOCATION: TOWNE CENTER DRIVE, POOLER GA
31322

2. PARCEL AREA: 14.92 ACRES
IMPERVIOUS AREA: 10.10 AC
OFFSITE AREA: 3.68 AC
DISTURBED AREA: 18.60 AC

3. PIN: 50017C02030

4. ZONING: PUD

5. BUILDING SETBACKS:
FRONT: 25 FT
BACK: 25 FT
SIDE: 25 FT

6. PARKING CALCULATIONS:
1.75 SPACE PER UNIT
1.75 x 364 = 637 SPACES
1 SPACE PER 300 SF (FOR LEASING)
8400 SF / 300 SF = 28 SPACES

SPACES REQUIRED: 665 SPACES
SPACES PROVIDED: 667 SPACES

      (14 HC + 623 REG + 30 GARAGE)

7. GREENSPACE CALCULATION:
REQUIRED: 14.92 ACRES X 20% = 2.98 ACRES
PROVIDED:  4.82 ACRES (32.3%)

8. THIS PARCEL LIES WITHIN A ZONE X AS SHOWN ON
FEMA FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP 1305C0019H
EFFECTIVE DATE JULY 7, 2014.

9. SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR UTILITY
CONNECTIONS.

PATEL DR

TOWNE CENTER DR

N/F
TOWNE CENTER HOSPITALITY LLC

PIN: 50017C02057
ZONING: PUD

N/F
860 TC SAVANNAH HOLDINGS LLC

PIN: 50017C02046
ZONING: PUD

N/F
ROYAL GROUP MANAGEMENT LLC

PIN: 50017C02028
ZONING: PUD

N/F
BANSI PROPERTIES LLC

PIN: 50017C02061

N/F
BANSI PROPERTIES LLC

PIN: 50017C02063

N/F
BANSI PROPERTIES LLC

PIN: 50017C02058

N/F
VILLAGES AT GODLEY STATION

HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.
PIN: 5101401005

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEER

REGISTERED

*G

EO
RGIA

*

ALEC B. METZGER

No. PE30429

Attachment C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1716
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1717
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1718
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1719
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1720
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1721
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1722
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1723
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1724
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1725
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1726
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1727
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1728
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1729
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1730
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1731
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1732
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1733
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1734
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1735
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1736
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1737
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1738
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1739
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1740
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1741
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1742
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1743
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1744
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1745
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1746
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1747
O:\2021\21-0140 TOWNE CENTER MF - BPR\DWG\21-0140C_B02.DWG 5/28/2024 11:17 AM 5/28/2024 11:17 AM5/28/2024 11:17 AM

Dan_2
Highlight
15' BUFFER  (4' VARIANCE REQ'D)



 

 
1 
 

  
PLANNING & ZONING STAFF REPORT 

Variance for 850 Patel Drive Buffer Requirements 
 

 

Project:  #A24-0090 

P&Z Meeting Date:  July 8, 2024 

Public Hearing Date:  July 15, 2024 

Applicant and Authorized Agent:  Dan Fischer | EMC Engineering Services 

Location (Address):  850 Patel Drive 

Parcel (PIN):  50017C 02057 

Existing Zoning:  PUD (Planned Unit Development)- Godley Station 

   

Zoning Action:  Variance 

Request:  Request to encroach 5 feet into the 20-foot required road buffer to 
construct required parking for a hotel development. 

   

Application Filed:  June 6, 2024 

Legal Notice Published:  June 30, 2024 

Sign Posted:  June 21, 2024 

Letters Mailed:  June 25, 2024 

   

Staff Recommendation:  Denial 

Planning & Zoning Commission:  After review of the criteria, P&Z recommends denial of the request. 

Recommended Motion:  “After review of the criteria, move for denial of the request.” 

   



  

2 

Background:  The subject property is located in the Godley Station PUD, within a 
commercial tract. The southern property line is adjacent to Patel 
Drive and the western property line is adjacent to Kusum Way. Both 
streets are private rights-of-way. The lot subject to the variance 
request is approximately 3.5 acres in size.   

The applicant is seeking approval for a variance to encroach 5 feet 
into the required 20-foot road setback to construct required parking 
for a site planned for two hotels. Preliminary site, landscape and 
architectural plans have been approved by the Architectural Review 
Board of the Southern Portion of Godley Association, Inc. 

Relevant Ordinances:  App. A, Art. V, Sec. 9 - Variances 

   

Zoning Action Standards:  1. That there are unique physical circumstances or conditions 
beyond that of surrounding properties, including irregularity, 
narrowness, or shallowness of the lot size or shape, or 
exceptional topographical or other physical conditions, 
peculiar to the particular property. 

• The subject parcel is generally the same size and 
shape as other parcels in the vicinity, and they do not 
have unique physical constraints that give them 
peculiar circumstances or conditions.  

2. That because of such physical circumstances or conditions, 
the property cannot be developed in strict conformity with the 
provisions of the zoning ordinance, without undue hardship to 
the property.  

• The parcel does not have any unique physical 
circumstances or conditions that apply to it. The layout 
of the proposed two hotels can be reconfigured to 
accommodate the required parking, or the number of 
guest rooms can be adjusted to comply with parking 
requirements. The property could be developed 
meeting the requirements of the ordinance.   

3. That granting the variance will not result in authorization of a 
use not otherwise permitted in the district in which the 
property is located or cause substantial detriment to the 
public good. 

• The variance will not result in a use not authorized in 
the zoning district.   

   



  

3 

Conclusion:  Staff finds the request does not comply with the required criteria for 
a variance in meeting only one of three criteria.  As such, staff 
recommends Denial of the request. 

   

Attachments:  A. Vicinity Map 

B. Zoning Map 

C. Application and Submittal Documentation 

   
 



This map was created using Latapult | www.latapult.com | Bigger Data Faster Maps Stronger Decisions

Vicinity Map - 850
Patel Drive

06/28/2024

 Parcels

Attachment A



This map was created using Latapult | www.latapult.com | Bigger Data Faster Maps Stronger Decisions

Zoning Map - 850
Patel Drive

06/28/2024

 Parcels

 Business/Commercial

 Industrial

 PUD

 Residential

Attachment B



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



 

 
1 
 

  
PLANNING & ZONING STAFF REPORT 

Variance for 1565 Pooler Parkway (Lowe’s Outparcel) Setback Requirements 
 

 

Project:  #A24-0104 

P&Z Meeting Date:  July 8, 2024 

Public Hearing Date:  July 15, 2024 

Applicant and Authorized Agent:  Robert Forrest 

Location (Address):  1565 Pooler Parkway (Lowe’s Outparcel) 

Parcel (PIN):  51010 01051 

Existing Zoning:  C-2 (Heavy Commercial) 

   

Zoning Action:  Variance 

Request:  Request to encroach 12.7 feet and 25 feet into the 60-foot required 
setback to construct two buildings on the subject parcel. 

   

Application Filed:  June 14, 2024 

Legal Notice Published:  June 30, 2024 

Sign Posted:  June 21, 2024 

Letters Mailed:  June 21, 2024 

   

Staff Recommendation:  Approval 

Planning & Zoning Commission:  After review of the criteria, P&Z recommends approval of the 
request. 

Recommended Motion:  “After review of the criteria, move for approval of the request.” 

   



  

2 

Background:  The subject property is located at 1565 Pooler Parkway, is adjacent 
to Lowe’s and contains parking that was constructed when Lowe’s 
was developed. Even though there is a drive aisle that runs through 
the front portion of the property that serves Lowe’s and other 
commercial establishments, the actual parcel front yard is St. 
Joseph’s/Candler Drive, which runs along the southern property line. 
The subject parcel is approximately 3.24 acres in size.     

The applicant is seeking approval for a variance to encroach 12.7 
feet into the required 60-foot setback on the western portion of the 
parcel and to encroach 25 feet into the required 60-foot setback on 
the eastern portion of the parcel to develop future retail and 
commercial uses. 

Relevant Ordinances:  App. A, Art. V, Sec. 9 - Variances 

   

Zoning Action Standards:  1. That there are unique physical circumstances or conditions 
beyond that of surrounding properties, including irregularity, 
narrowness, or shallowness of the lot size or shape, or 
exceptional topographical or other physical conditions, 
peculiar to the particular property. 

• Although the parcel is rectangular in shape and 
generally the same size and shape as other parcels in 
the vicinity, it does have unique physical constraints 
that give it peculiar conditions. There is an existing 
drive aisle that runs through and along the western 
property line which provides access to Lowes and other 
commercial establishments. The parcel is also bisected 
by a large parking lot servicing Lowe’s. These 
circumstances have created two undeveloped pad-
ready sites on the eastern and western ends of the 
parcel. Parking needs are currently met as configured, 
however, there is not a significant amount of surplus 
parking which would only allow for minor parking lot 
modifications. 

2. That because of such physical circumstances or conditions, 
the property cannot be developed in strict conformity with the 
provisions of the zoning ordinance, without undue hardship to 
the property.  

• The parcel does have unique physical circumstances or 
conditions that apply to it. Due to the current drive 
aisle serving other commercial establishments running 
through the property and the parking lot configuration 
bisecting the subject parcel the 60-foot setback from 
the front yard requirement creates a condition 
whereby strict conformity with the provisions of zoning 
ordinance does result in a hardship to the property. 



  

3 

3. That granting the variance will not result in authorization of a 
use not otherwise permitted in the district in which the 
property is located or cause substantial detriment to the 
public good. 

• The variance will not result in a use not authorized in 
the zoning district.   

   

Conclusion:  Staff finds the request does comply with the required criteria for a 
variance in meeting two of three criteria.  As such, staff recommends 
Approval of the request. 

   

Attachments:  A. Vicinity Map 

B. Zoning Map 

C. Application and Submittal Documentation 

   
 



This map was created using Latapult | www.latapult.com | Bigger Data Faster Maps Stronger Decisions

Vicinity Map -
1565 Pooler

Parkway
06/28/2024

 Parcels

Attachment A



This map was created using Latapult | www.latapult.com | Bigger Data Faster Maps Stronger Decisions

Zoning Map -
1565 Pooler

Parkway
06/28/2024

 Parcels

 Business/Commercial

 Industrial

 PUD

 Residential

Attachment B



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



© 2024 Microsoft Corporation © 2024 Maxar ©CNES (2024) Distribution Airbus DS

TENANT A
(3,300 SF)

TENANT B
(3,300 SF)

TENANT C
(3,300 SF)

ST. JO
SEPH

'S/C
AN

D
LER

 D
R

IVE

10' SIDE BLDG. SETBACK, TYP.

1

1

2

3

2

4

10' REAR BUILDING SETBACK

10' SIDE BUILDING SETBACK

1

1

2

ST. JO
SEPH

'S/C
AN

D
LER

 D
R

IVE

35' FRONT BUILDING
SETBACK (PRIMARY)

PROPOSED BULDING
(23,566 SF)

5'

5'

178.53'

132'

11.25'

55'55'55'

165'

10'

R14'

DRIVETHRU

12'

48'

9'

R15'

R50'9'20'
3

R10'

9'

5

5

5

5

6

7

5

R20'

24'

3

60'

5

60' FRONT BUILDING
SETBACK REQUIRED BY
ORDINANCE (PRIMARY)

11

8

7

6

10' SIDE BUILDING SETBACK

5'

PROPOSED DUMPSTER
ENCLOSURE

R8.57'

20'

24'

R25'

47.3' FRONT BUILDING
SETBACK (PRIMARY)

20'

2

OUTDOOR
CONCRETE PATIO

© 2024 Microsoft Corporation © 2024 TomTom 

SHEET

OF

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r:

SURVEY DATE:

SE
R

VI
C

ES
, I

N
C

.
 E

M
C

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 

SCALE:
DATE:

PROJECT NO.:

SURVEYED BY:

CHECKED BY:

DESIGNED BY:
DRAWN BY:

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1" =

0'

PO
 B

ox
 2

08
6

12
11

 M
er

ch
an

t W
ay

, S
ui

te
 2

01
St

at
es

bo
ro

, G
A 

30
45

8
Ph

: (
91

2)
 7

64
-7

02
2

Fa
x:

 (9
12

) 2
33

-4
58

0
st

at
es

bo
ro

@
em

c-
en

g.
co

m
w

w
w

.e
m

c-
en

g.
co

m
EN

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

TA
L

C
IV

IL
M

AR
IN

E

AL
BA

N
Y 

• A
TL

AN
TA

 • 
AU

G
U

ST
A 

• B
R

U
N

SW
IC

K 
• C

O
LU

M
BU

S
G

R
EE

N
VI

LL
E 

• S
AV

AN
N

AH
 • 

ST
AT

ES
BO

R
O

 • 
TH

O
M

AS
TO

N

D
AT

E
N

O
.

R
EV

IS
IO

N
 D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
C

O
N

C
EP

TU
AL

 P
LA

N

PO
O

LE
R

 P
AR

KW
AY

 &
 S

T.
 J

O
SE

PH
'S

/C
AN

D
LE

R
 D

R
IV

E
PO

O
LE

R
, C

H
AT

H
AM

 C
O

U
N

TY
, G

EO
R

G
IA

PO
O

LE
R

 L
O

W
E'

S 
O

U
TP

AR
C

EL

C
O

R
 P

R
O

PE
R

TI
ES

, L
LC

.

24-2045
KES
KES

-
-

CPR
1" = 30' 

06/19/2024

1
1

30' 30' 

30' 

15'

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

HATCH LEGEND:

PROPOSED STANDARD
DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT

PROPOSED CONCRETE
PAVEMENT / SIDEWALK

Know what's below.
www.Georgia811.com

R

Call before you dig.

SITE NOTES:
PROJECT DESCRIPTION THE SUBJECT SITE CONSISTS OF AN OPEN/GRASSED AREA, EXISTING

PARKING AND EXISTING ACCESS ROAD, LYING ON ONE PARCEL OF LAND.
IT IS THE INTENTION OF THE DEVELOPER TO CONSTRUCT A RETAIL
SHOPPING CENTER CONTAINING APPROXIMATELY 35,508 TOTAL SF AND
ASSOCIATED SITE IMPROVEMENTS.

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION LOT 4 - ARMSTRONG TRACT (LOWE'S OUTPARCEL)
PIN# 51010-01051

AREA PROPERTY AREA 3.24-ACRES

DISTURBED AREA ±1.0 ACRES (EXACT ACREAGE TBD)

ZONING EXISTING C-2 (HEAVY COMMERCIAL)

PROPOSED C-2 (HEAVY COMMERCIAL)

SETBACKS FRONT SETBACK: 60-FT

SIDE SETBACK: 10-FT

REAR SETBACK: 10-FT

BUILDING HEIGHT REQUIRED MAXIMUM: 60-FT

UTILITIES WATER
SANITARY SEWER

CONNECT TO EXISTING WATER AND SANITARY
SEWER MAIN SERVING THE SURROUNDING
DEVELOPMENTS

OFF STREET PARKING NOTES:

REQUIRED PARKING SHOPPING CENTERS GREATER THAN 10,000 SQ FT OF TOTAL
FLOOR AREA: 4.5 PER 1,000 SQ FT OF TOTAL FLOOR AREA
RETAIL BUISNESS: 1 SPACE PER 250 SQ FT OF TOTAL FLOOR AREA

REQUIRED PARKING DESIGN
CONSTRAINT

LOWES: 140,000 SQFT
RETAIL SHOPPING CENTER: 23,566 SQFT
RETAIL STRIP: 9,900 SQFT

REQUIRED PARKING CALCULATION 4.5 SPACE PER 1,000 SF * (140,000 SF) = 630 SPACES
4.5 SPACE PER 1,000 SF * (23,566 SF) = 106 SPACES
1 SPACE PER 250 SF * (9,900 SF) = 40 SPACES
TOTAL REQUIRED PARKING = 776 SPACES

PARKING PROVIDED LOWES PARKING LOT = 678 SPACES
LOWES OUTPARCEL LOT = 107 SPOTS
TOTAL PROVIDED PARKING = 785

THIS CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN IS INTENDED TO ILLUSTRATE DEVELOPMENT POTENTIAL.  THIS PLAN DOES NOT
BIND OR LIMIT THE OWNER / DEVELOPER, NOR SHALL THE ENGINEER BE BOUND OR LIMITED BY THE PLAN.
ALL ILLUSTRATIONS / DRAWINGS ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE

CONCEPTUAL PLAN SPECIAL NOTES
  PROPERTY BOUNDARIES, AS SHOWN, ARE APPROXIMATE AND ARE BASED ON GIS
  INFORMATION. EMC ENGINEERING SERVICES, INC. HAS NOT PERFORMED A BOUNDARY
  OR TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY ON THIS PROPERTY AT THE TIME OF THIS CONCEPTUAL
  PLAN.

  APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF EXISTING SANITARY SEWER STRUCTURES AND PIPES.
  SHOWN FOR COORDINATION PURPOSES ONLY

  APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF EXISTING STORMWATER STRUCTURES AND PIPES.
  SHOWN FOR COORDINATION PURPOSES ONLY.

   5' PEDESTRIAN CROSSWALK (THERMOPLASTIC, PAINTED WHITE)

  STOP SIGN. 36" R1-1

  HANDICAP SIGN/ VAN ACCESSIBLE SIGN

  MENU BOARD

1

2

3

SITE

VICINITY MAP:
NOT TO SCALE

4

PROPOSED HEAVY DUTY
CONCRETE PAVEMENT

5

6

7

Attachment C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1748
N/F QUEENSBOROUGH NATIONAL BANK & TRUST PIN: 51010-01077

AutoCAD SHX Text_1749
N/F LOWE'S HOME CENTERS INC. PIN: 51010-01048

AutoCAD SHX Text_1750
N/F H/S POOLER OUTPARCELS LLC PIN: 51010-01051

AutoCAD SHX Text_1751
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text_1752
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text_1753
N/F LOWE'S HOME CENTERS INC. PIN: 51010-01048

AutoCAD SHX Text_1754
N/F LOWE'S HOME CENTERS INC. PIN: 51010-01048

AutoCAD SHX Text_1755
G:\24\24-2045 POOLER LOWES OUTPARCEL\DWG\24-9999 POOLER LOWES OUTPARCEL DRIVE THRU CONCEPT.DWG 6/19/2024 8:22 AM 6/19/2024 8:22 AM6/19/2024 8:22 AM



Attachment C












































































	I. ROLL CALL/DECLARATION OF QUORUM
	II. CALL TO ORDER
	III. INVOCATION
	IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	V. ANNOUNCEMENTS
	VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS
	A. Millage Rate Public Hearing
	6A_City of Pooler_Public Notice_2024-07-10_Millage Rate Public Hearings_draft1
	6A.2_2024.07.10 Current Tax Digest and Five Year History of Levy
	6A.3_2024.05.23 Computation of Millage Rate Rollback
	6A.4_Property Tax FAQ's


	VII. CONSENT AGENDA
	A. City Council Workshop Minutes of July 1, 2024
	7A_City Council Workshop_2024-07-01_Minutes_draft

	B. City Council Meeting Minutes of July 1, 2024
	7B_City Council Meeting_2024-07-01_Minutes_draft

	C. City Council Executive Session Minutes of July 1, 
	7C_City Council Meeting_2024-07-01_Executive Session Affidavit_executed

	D. Town Hall Minutes of July 2, 2024
	7D_Town Hall Meeting_2024-07-02_Minutes_draft

	E. Special Event Permit Application for Jesus the Cap
	7E_Special Event Permit Application for Jesus the Captain of My Boat Children’s Festival on Ju

	F. Release of Performance Bond and Acceptance of Main
	7F_Release of Performance Bond and Acceptance of Maintenance and Sidewalk Bonds for Harmony Phase 7


	VIII. DEPARTMENT REPORTS
	A. Public Works
	8A.1_PW
	8A.2_PW
	8A.3_PW

	B. Finance
	8B_Finance

	C. Fire-Rescue
	8C_Fire

	D. Police
	8D_Police

	E. Recreation
	jul15

	F. Planning & Development
	8F.1_Planning & Zoning Minutes_2024-06-10_Minutes
	8F.2_Planning & Zoning Meeting_2024-06-24_Minutes
	8F.3_P&D


	IX. ORDINANCES, PROCLAMATIONS, RESOLUTIONS
	A. Ordinance O2024-07.B – To Amend Chapter 46 – Fire 
	9A_Ordinance O2024-07.B_To Amend Chapter 46 - Fire Prevention and Protection, Sections 7, 8, 9 (Knox)_draft1

	B. Proclamation for International Friendship Day
	9B_Proclamation_2024-08-15_International Friendship Day


	X. OUTSTANDING BUSINESS
	A. Westside Commerce Center Native Development Group 
	10A_Westside Commerce CenterNative Development Group Request for Consideration


	XI. NEW BUSINESS
	A. Zoning Map Amendment for 1405 Quacco Road (Public 
	11A_1405 Quacco Road Zoning Map Amendment

	B. Zoning Map Amendment for Jabot PUD (Public Hearing
	11B_Zoning Map Amendment - Jabot PUD Amendment

	C. Variance Request for 130 Towne Center Drive (Publi
	11C_130  Towne Center Drive Variance Request

	D. Variance Request for 850 Patel Drive (Public Heari
	11D_850 Patel Drive Variance Request

	E. Variance Request for 1565 Pooler Parkway Lowe’s Ou
	11E_1565 Pooler Parkway Lowes Outparcel Variance Request

	F. Final Plat and Performance Bonds for Westbrook Are
	11F.1_Posting of Performance Bond Final Plat for Westbrook Area L1
	11F.2_Posting of Performance Bond Final Plat for Westbrook Area L2
	11F.3_Posting of Performance Bond Final Plat for Westbrook Area L3


	XII. PUBLIC COMMENT
	XIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION
	XIV. ADJOURNMENT



